thurrock.gov.uk

Thurrock: A place of opportunity, enterprise and excellence, where
individuals, communities and businesses flourish

Children's Services Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

The meeting will be held at 7.00 pm on 13 October 2016

Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, New Road, Grays, Essex, RM17 6SL

Membership:

Councillors Bukky Okunade (Chair), Angela Sheridan (Vice-Chair), John Allen,
Martin Kerin, Joycelyn Redsell and Aaron Watkins

Myra Potter, Parent Governor Representative

Anne Sentance, Church of England Representative

Kim James, Chief Operating Officer, HealthWatch Thurrock
Substitutes:

Councillors John Kent, Terry Piccolo and Sue Sammons and 1 Conservative
Vacancy

Agenda

Open to Public and Press
Page
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Minutes 5-12

To approve as a correct record the minutes of Children’s Services
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 6 July 2016.

3 Items of Urgent Business

To receive additional items that the Chair is of the opinion should be
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with Section 100B
(4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declaration of Interests



5 Educational Attainments
6 Children's Social Care Complaints and Representations Annual
Report 2015/16

7 Ofsted Inspection Report and Action Plan
8 School Capital Programme 2017/18
9 Council Spending Review Update

10 Work Programme

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies:

13-34

35-54

55-110

111 - 162

163 - 176

177 -178

Please contact Jenny Shade, Senior Democratic Services Officer by sending an

email to Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Agenda published on: 5 October 2016



Information for members of the public and councillors

Access to Information and Meetings

Members of the public can attend all meetings of the council and its committees and
have the right to see the agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working days
before the meeting, and minutes once they are published.

Recording of meetings

This meeting may be recorded for transmission and publication on the Council's
website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
to be recorded.

Members of the public not wishing any speech or address to be recorded for
publication to the Internet should contact Democratic Services to discuss any
concerns.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact Democratic Services at
Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at
council and committee meetings

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at
council and committee meetings as a means of reporting on its proceedings because
it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to its local
communities.

If you wish to film or photograph the proceedings of a meeting and have any special
requirements or are intending to bring in large equipment please contact the
Communications Team at CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk before the
meeting. The Chair of the meeting will then be consulted and their agreement sought
to any specific request made.

Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar
devices to use social media, make recordings or take photographs these devices
must be set to ‘silent’ mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or
committee.

The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has
been discussed prior to the meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not
disrupt proceedings.

The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording
and use of social media if any of these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting
proceedings at the meeting.

Page 1


mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk
mailto:CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk

Thurrock Council Wi-Fi

Wi-Fi is available throughout the Civic Offices. You can access Wi-Fi on your device
by simply turning on the Wi-Fi on your laptop, Smartphone or tablet.

e You should connect to TBC-CIVIC
e Enter the password Thurrock to connect to/join the Wi-Fi network.

e A Terms & Conditions page should appear and you have to accept these before
you can begin using Wi-Fi. Some devices require you to access your browser to
bring up the Terms & Conditions page, which you must accept.

The ICT department can offer support for council owned devices only.

Evacuation Procedures

In the case of an emergency, you should evacuate the building using the nearest
available exit and congregate at the assembly point at Kings Walk.

How to view this agenda on a tablet device

. You can view the agenda on your iPad, Android Device or Blackberry
w Playbook with the free modern.gov app.

Members of the Council should ensure that their device is sufficiently charged,
although a limited number of charging points will be available in Members Services.

To view any “exempt” information that may be included on the agenda for this
meeting, Councillors should:

e Access the modern.gov app
e Enter your username and password

Page 2


https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

Breaching those parts identified as a pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal offence

Helpful Reminders for Members

e Is your register of interests up to date?
o In particular have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests?
e Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been recorded correctly?

When should you declare an interest at a meeting?

i Does the business to be transacted at the meeting

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interests or those of:

where you are aware that this other person has the interest.

{ What is a Non-Pecuniary interest? — this is an interest which is not pecuniary (as defined) but is nonetheless so :

e What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, Cabinet,
Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs); or

e If you are a Cabinet Member making decisions other than in Cabinet what matter is
before you for single member decision?

. relate to; or
o likely to affect
any of your registered interests and in particular any of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests?

. your spouse or civil partner’s
e aperson you are living with as husband/ wife
e aperson you are living with as if you were civil partners

A detailed description of a disclosable pecuniary interest is included in the Members Code of Conduct at Chapter 7 of :
the Constitution. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests. H

significant that a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant
that it would materially impact upon your judgement of the public interest. H

If the interest is not already in the register you must
(unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring
Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and nature
of the interest to the meeting

: If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not the subject of a :
i pending notification you must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous
application from the Monitoring Officer, you must:

- Not participate or participate further in any discussion of
the matter at a meeting;

- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the
meeting; and

- leave the room while the item is being considered/voted
upon

If you are a Cabinet Member you may make arrangements for
the matter to be dealt with by a third person but take no further
steps

Declare the nature and extent of your interest including enough
detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature

You may participate and vote in the usual
way but you should seek advice on
Predetermination and Bias from the

Monitoring Officer.




thurrock.gov.uk

Vision: Thurrock: A place of opportunity, enterprise and excellence, where individuals,
communities and businesses flourish.

To achieve our vision, we have identified five strategic priorities:

1. Create a great place for learning and opportunity
e Ensure that every place of learning is rated “Good” or better

¢ Raise levels of aspiration and attainment so that residents can take advantage of
local job opportunities

e Support families to give children the best possible start in life

2. Encourage and promote job creation and economic prosperity
e Promote Thurrock and encourage inward investment to enable and sustain growth
e Support business and develop the local skilled workforce they require

e Work with partners to secure improved infrastructure and built environment

3. Build pride, responsibility and respect
e Create welcoming, safe, and resilient communities which value fairness

e Work in partnership with communities to help them take responsibility for shaping
their quality of life

e Empower residents through choice and independence to improve their health and
well-being

4. Improve health and well-being
e Ensure people stay healthy longer, adding years to life and life to years

e Reduce inequalities in health and well-being and safeguard the most vulnerable
people with timely intervention and care accessed closer to home

e Enhance quality of life through improved housing, employment and opportunity

5. Promote and protect our clean and green environment

e Enhance access to Thurrock's river frontage, cultural assets and leisure
opportunities

e Promote Thurrock's natural environment and biodiversity

¢ Inspire high quality design and standards in our buildings and public space

Page 4



Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the Meeting of the Children's Services Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on 6 July 2016 at 7.00 pm

Present: Councillors Bukky Okunade (Chair), Angela Sheridan (Vice-
Chair), John Allen, Joycelyn Redsell and Aaron Watkins

Myra Potter, Parent Governor Representative
Anne Sentance, Church of England Representative

Apologies: Councillor Martin Kerin

In attendance: Councillor James Halden, Portfolio Holder for Education
Andrew Carter, Head of Children's Social Care
Beth Capps, Senior Public Health Manager
Roger Edwardson, Interim Strategic Leader School
Improvement, Learning and Skills
Andrea Winstone, School Improvement Manager
Jenny Shade, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Charlotte Raper, Senior Democratic Services Officer

Before the start of the Meeting, all present were advised that the meeting may be
filmed and was being recorded, with the audio recording to be made available on
the Council’s website.

1. Minutes

The Minutes of Children’s Service Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held on
the 8 March 2016, were approved as a correct record.

2. Items of Urgent Business
There were no urgent items of business.
3. Declaration of Interests

Councillor Okunade declared a non-pecuniary interest as she was a member
on the Advisory Board at the Thameside Children Centre.

Councillor Sheridan declared a non-pecuniary interest as she was a member
on the William Palmer Committee and had a child at St Cleres School.

The Parent Governor Representative declared a non-pecuniary as she was a
member of staff at Palmer’s College and had children attending Little Thurrock
Primary School and St Thames of Canterbury Primary School.

4, Terms of Reference

Page 5



The Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms of
Reference were noted.

Ofsted Inspection Report and Action Plan

The Chair congratulated Dave Peplow on the outcome of the Local
Safeguarding Children Board Ofsted Inspection and stated that an agenda
item on Items Raised by Thurrock Local Safeguarding Children’s Board would
now be a standard item on the agenda.

Dave Peplow briefly presented the findings and commented on the two
recommendations from the Ofsted Report on Local Safeguarding Children’s
Board and briefed members on the review written by Alan Wood into the
effectiveness of local safeguarding children’s boards.

The Chair asked Dave Peplow that taking into account the Alan Wood'’s
Review and the two recommendations had this had any effect on the service.
Dave Peplow stated that no it was business as usual with no change in
arrangements until further notice was received.

Andrew Carter briefly presented the report which updated members on the
outcomes of the recent Ofsted Inspection which was judged to “Require
Improvement”. A Self-Assessment had been undertaken prior to the Ofsted
Inspection which did not identify anything that was not already known.
Members were asked to comment on the 16 recommendations on the draft
Action Plan which was scheduled to be sent to Ofsted. There would be a
slight delay in sending the draft Action Plan back to Ofsted to ensure that
members of the Children’s Services Overview and Committee were given the
opportunity to comment.

It was stated that the same report was presented to the Corporate Parenting
Committee on Tuesday 5 July 2016 where some useful recommendations
were identified.

Councillor Allen asked Officers was the Council meeting the needs of those
children waiting for adoption. Andrew Carter stated that 18 children were
adopted last year and that the Government measures on how long it takes to
go through the adoption process rather than numbers. The aim would be to
reduce the time it takes in Thurrock to be nearer the UK average times.

Councillor Watkins asked Officers if previous fostered children had been
approached to promote foster carer in Thurrock. Andrew Carter stated that
care leavers assisted with the recruitment of new foster carers but stated that
word of mouth in the local community proved to be best method of recruiting
new foster carers.

Councillor Watkins asked Officers what was in place for the Staying Put
Policy. Andrew Carter stated that 5 looked after children benefited from the
Staying Put Policy and that consultations were in place with foster carers and
Independent Fostering Agency providers. It was also the aim to actively

Page 6



promote the scheme as an option and work would be undertaken with the
Eastern Region partners to improve the local and regional offer. Andrew
Carter stated that the Children in Care Council were in attendance at the
Corporate Parenting Committee where a debate took place on the way
forward of the Staying Put Policy.

The Parent Governor Representative stated that the action plan could have
been more detailed. Andrew Carter stated that a finalised report would be
returned to the committee.

Councillor Redsell asked Officers what co-ordination was in place between
the council and schools on those children in elected home education. Roger
Edwardson stated that it had been evidenced that those children home
educated were more likely to under achieve in this environment and would be
best to retain in school. Council Inspectors were available but not always
taken up by parents.

Councillor Redsell stated that it was good that the same items had been
picked up at both committees.

RESOLVED

That the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
monitored the progress of the council in implementing the
recommendations of the Ofsted Inspection Report.

Review of Children's Centre Service

Two reports were presented for this item as the two services would
collaborate to deliver a joined up service for families with children up to the
age of 19.

Roger Edwardson briefly presented the report on the Review of the Children
Centre Services to identify the most effective way of delivering a sustainable
Children Centre service delivery model by 2017. The School Improvement
Team worked very closely with Public Health on the 0-19 Wellbeing Offer
Report to improve the outcomes for younger children.

Beth Capps presented the report on the 0-19 Wellbeing Model which outlined
the key outcomes of the model and how these would be delivered.

It was stated that both reports would be presented to Cabinet in September
2016.

Councillor Redsell asked Officers what action was in place at schools to
educate children about smoking. The Officer confirmed that it should start with
educating children at an early age and that work on the ASSIST, a prevention
programme, would form part of the future model.

Page 7



Councillor Halden stated that this would be the right reason to bring the
children centres and education into public health so that it moved forward in a
more integrated way to ensure that children are ready for adulthood. A draft
principle would be brought to Cabinet in September for approval after which
Councillor Halden will spend time with Roger Edwardson at the children
centres throughout October.

Councillor Redsell stated that the Council should be setting a better example
and stop staff from smoking outside the office as this does not set a good
example especially to the students from the college. Roger Edwardson stated
that officers had been given a directive for this not to happen outside the
council building but the problem was the enforcement of this.

Beth Capps stated Thurrock had a No Smoking Policy and that the Chief
Executive had already challenged staff smoking outside the building and staff
had responded and work will continue on preventing staff smoking outside the
building.

Councillor Watkins asked Officers what the overall vision of children centres
would be in Thurrock over the next few years. Andrea Winstone stated at this
time it was not known and that this report was around the redesign of the
children centres in conjunction with 0-19 wellbeing report. The long term
future of children centres will be presented to the committee at a later date
awaiting some government directive.

Roger Edwardson informed members that the “Daily Mile” had been
introduced into primary schools were children were walking one mile each day
round the school field.

A discussion took place between Members, Officers and Co-Opted Members
on Bullying at schools and asked that a report be brought to the committee.

Roger Edwardson stated that the mental health of children was a review to be
undertaken whilst working together with Public Health.

The Chair asked how effective the shared premises plan was progressing.
Beth Capps stated this was currently at the mapping stage looking at all the
premises that would be available to deliver these services in a joint and
flexible approach.

RESOLVED

1. That the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
supported the review of the Children’s Centre Services to be
completed by April 2017.

2. That the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
endorsed the report alongside the 0-19 Wellbeing Offer of the
same date as the two services were collaborating to deliver a
joined up service for families with children up to the age of 19.

Page 8



3. That the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
supported the proposed model that integrated delivery of a range
of services to support the wellbeing of children and families.

4, That the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
agreed that Officers proceed with the further development of the
proposed integrated model.

5. That the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
noted that further reports on the model would be brought back to
the Committee and to Cabinet.

Update on the Megan Serious Case Review Action Plan

Andrew Carter presented the update report that set out the review on the
multi-agency action plan to address the findings of the Megan Serious Case
Review. Members were referred to the Action Plan which would be monitored
by the local safeguarding children board and the local safeguarding children
board audit group where sections of the plan had been identified and
agencies will be asked to supply evidence to prove that work had been done
and improvements would be been made.

Councillor Halden left the committee room at 8.36pm.

Dave Peplow stated he welcomed the level of interest to the action plan by
the overview and scrutiny committee members.

Councillor Redsell asked Officers if anything could have been picked up
earlier on this case. Andrew Carter stated that yes, the review identified that
social services had known these children from an early age but instead of
addressing the issues and difficulties no sufficient changes were made and for
those changes that were made no follow up on the substantiality of that
change was carried out.

Councillor Watkins asked Officers what action had been taken to monitor the
recommendations that had been completed. Dave Peplow stated that
evidence would be requested from agencies but had powers to request
information for safe guarding purposes. On-going monitoring would be on-
going and continue to share information and undertake staff training.

The chair asked if the "Neglect Toolkit" developed as a result of Megan
serious case review have been disseminated and used by children's services
social workers. The Officer stated that a Tool Kit designed primarily for
adolescence which had been developed to understand what neglect looked
like and that the Ofsted Report identified that the tool kit had been used.

Councillor Allen asked Officers when social workers were assigned to a case.
Andrew Carter stated that there were a whole series of reasons when a social

Page 9



worker would be assigned but it was more about ensuring it was at the right
time of intervention.

RESOLVED

That the Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee will monitor the
progress of the council and partners in fully implementing the Megan
Serious Care review Action Plan.

Work Programme

The work programme was discussed and agreed:

That the item on Serious Case Reviews for James and Harry be added
to the work programme for October 2016.

The item on Final Report on the Ofsted Action Plan be added to the
work programme for October 2016.

That the item on 0-19 Wellbeing be added to the work programme for
October 2016.

That the Performance Dashboard be added to the work programme for
October.

That the item on Review of Children’s Centre Services be added to the
work programme for December 2016.

The item on Update on Ofsted Action Plan added to the work
programme for December 2016.

That the item on Update of Child Exploitation be added to the work
programme for December 2016.

That the item on School Improvement Peer Report be added to the
work programme for December 2016.

That the item on Anti-Bullying be added to the work programme for
December 2016.

That the item on Commissioning out of Nurseries in Tilbury be added to
the work programme for February 2017.

That the item on the implementation of the increase from 15 to 30
hours free childcare from September 2017 be added to the work
programme for February 2017.

That the item on Anti-Bullying Prevention at Primary Schools be added
to the work programme for February 2017.

The meeting finished at 9.03 pm

Approved as a true and correct record
CHAIR

DATE

Page 10



Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact
Democratic Services at Direct.Democracy@thurrock.qov.uk

Page 11


mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

13 October 2016 ITEM: 5

Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Educational Attainments

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:

All

All

Report of: Rory Patterson, Director of Children’s Services
Roger Edwardson, Interim Strategic Leader School Improvement, Learning and
Skills

Accountable Head of Service: Roger Edwardson, Interim Strategic Leader School
Improvement, Learning and Skills

Accountable Director: Rory Patterson, Director of Children’s Services

This report is public

Executive Summary

Raising achievement in all areas of education remains a key priority and the Council
has seen considerable success in the last four years as attainment and progress
have risen significantly, particularly in the primary sector. However a new curriculum
was introduced in 2014 and new assessment procedures were introduced in 2015
which have resulted in national curriculum levels being abandoned and a new
system and more rigorous tests being introduced. As a result comparisons can’t be
made between previous years’ data and the last academic year.

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

Recommendation(s)

That the Overview & Scrutiny Committee notes the provisional
outcomes of the summer 2016 tests and examinations and commends
schools, pupils, and parents/carers on their achievements.

That the Committee recognises that data can’t be compared to previous
years due to a change in curriculum and assessments.

Introduction and Background

The target for Thurrock Schools and Academies is to be improving year on

year and at least above the national average at Phonics in Y1, KS1, KS2, KS4
and KS5 and to reduce the gaps in attainment for vulnerable children.

Page 13



2.1.1

21.2

213

214

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

As a result of a continued support for Early Years teaching & moderation in
settings and schools, outcomes for Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) are
above national for the fourth year running.

Early Years — Foundation Stage
KS1 (7 year old)

KS2 (11 year old)

KS4 (16 year old)

KS5 (18 year old)

In 2016 KS1 assessments are no longer reported as levels and cannot be
compared to previous years. National Curriculum levels have been replaced
by National Standards in the interim Teacher Assessment Frameworks, which
are only to be used in 2016 and 2017. The results are still based on teacher
assessments and for the first time this year include a combined reading,
writing and maths measure. Grammar, punctuation and spelling assessments
were not included this year due to an error at STA.

In 2016, the new more challenging national curriculum, which was introduced
in 2014, was assessed by new tests and interim frameworks for teacher
assessment. KS2 results are no longer reported as levels: each pupil receives
their test results as a scaled score and teacher assessments based on the
standards in the interim framework. Progress data will be released by the DfE
in December.

2016 GCSE results show a significant improvement on last year moving the
overall performance close to the 2014 results (previously in line with the
National Average (NA). The key measure of 5+GCSE’s with English (EN) and
mathematics (MA) is not being used by the Department of Education this year
preferring to consider Progress 8 and Attainment 8 (see graphs). This report
attempts to report the improvement on previous years.

Issues and Options

Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS age 5)

The Good Level of Development (GLD) measure is awarded at the end of
EYFS when a pupil has achieved at least the expected level in all of the prime
areas of learning and in literacy and mathematics.

The GLD has risen again and exceeds the national average by six percentage
points.

Page 14



Good Level of Development 3 year trend
80
—
e
60
50
40 =@=Thurrock
== England
30
20
10
0 . . .
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

3.1.3 To reach the percentage of children making a good level of development,
each child is assessed against 17 Early Learning Goals; whether she/he
meets the level, has not yet reached the level or exceeded it and points are
awarded accordingly in a range between 17 to 51. If a child meets every Early
Learning Goal, she/he will receive at least 34 points.

3.1.4 The provisional GLD result for Thurrock is very encouraging as it puts the
borough scores above the national and above others in the East of England
region. As referred to at 2.1.1, this is an outcome of significant investment in
school improvement staff for this phase and expertise in training and
supporting staff in schools and settings.

3.1.5 The Average Total Points has remained the same.

3.1.6 The inequality gap measures the percentage gap in achievement between the
lowest 20% of achieving children (mean score), and the median score for all
children. Thurrock was 5.1 percentage points below the national average in
2014 at 28.8%. The gap last year improved by 0.9%. This year has seen the
gap close by a further 1.9 percentage points to 26%. 2016 national data is
not yet available for this indicator, meaning that vulnerable children in the
Early Years Foundation stage perform better than the national average.

3.1.7 There was a significant improvement in GLD performance for boys in 2014

and this figure has continued to rise over the last three years, the current GLD
achievement for 2016 being 3% higher than 2015. Performance for girls has
also improved, by 2% in 2016, with GLD results for both genders likely to
remain significantly higher than the national average.

Page 15



2015-16 GLD | Average Total Points

Thurrock (All) 75% 34.2
- Boys 67% 33.2
- Girls 83% 35.3
National (Estimated) | 69% n/a

3.2 Year 1 Phonics (age 6)

3.2.1 The year 1 phonics screening check is undertaken in June by all year 1 pupils
and those pupils in year 2 who did not achieve age related expectations whilst
in year 1. The percentage of children who reached the expected standard has
risen by 7 percentage points; the national average has risen by 4 percentage
points. Thurrock averages are now above national by 2 percentage points.

Y1 Phonics Screening Check

=@==Thurrock  =Jll= National

83

81

2014 2015 2016

Page 16



3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

Key Stage 1 (age 7, year 2)

In 2016 KS1 assessments are no longer reported as levels and cannot be
compared to previous years. National Curriculum levels have been replaced
by National Standards in the interim Teacher Assessment Frameworks, which
are only to be used in 2016 and 2017. The results are still based on teacher
assessments and for the first time this year include a combined reading,
writing and maths measure. Grammar, punctuation and spelling assessments
were not included this year due to an error at STA.

% pupils assessed as working at or exceeding the Expected

Standard KS1

80
70
60
50
40 M Thurrock
M National
30
20
10
0
Reading Writing Maths Combined
3.3.3 In all areas the Thurrock averages are two percentage points above the
national for the percentage of pupils achieving the expected standard.
3.3.4 For the first time in 2015 teachers have assessed pupils against the interim

teacher assessment frameworks. Pupils working above the national expected
standards were assessed to see if they were working at ‘greater depth’. This
can’t be compared to previous years’ Level 3 National Curriculum data.

Page 17




% pupils achieving greater depth

30

25

20

15

10

M Thurrock
M National

0
Greater Depth Greater Depth Grreater Depth Greater Depth
Reading Writing Maths Combined RWM
3.3.5 The percentage of pupils assessed to be working at greater depth is low

compared to those nationally. This could be due to teachers not feeling
confident in using the interim assessment frameworks for the first time as well
as a new more rigorous curriculum.

3.4 Key Stage 2 (age 11, year 6)

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

In 2016, the new more challenging national curriculum, which was introduced
in 2014, was assessed by new tests and interim frameworks for teacher
assessment. KS2 results are no longer reported as levels: each pupil receives
their test results as a scaled score and teacher assessments based on the
standards in the interim framework.

The expected standard in the tests is a scaled score of 100 or above.
Attainment nationally in the tests is highest in grammar, punctuation and
spelling (GPS) at 72% and lowest in reading at 66%. At 74% attainment in the
writing teacher assessment is higher than in any of the test subjects.

Last year, to achieve a level 4 (the previous expected standard) pupils would
have needed to get 46 per cent in their maths tests and 36 per cent in
reading. This year, under the new, tougher standards, those percentages
have increased to 54.5 per cent for maths, and 42 per cent for reading. GPS
has remained the same at 61 per cent.

In Thurrock, reading was 62%, GPS was 71%, in maths 68% and in writing
was 75%. This is close to the national average and is within 2 percentage

Page 18



points of the combined reading, writing and maths (Nationally the average is
53% and in Thurrock schools the average is 51%). This is different from the
pattern seen in previous years where attainment at level 4b or above was
highest in reading and lowest in grammar, punctuation and spelling.

3.4.5 We understand that pupils who don’t meet the expected standard at the end
of year 6 will, from next year (2017), might have to re-sit their English and
maths SATs at secondary school. The government said the consultation on
the proposals, which would see the resits introduced from December 2017,
would go ahead as planned.

2016 Provisional KS2 assessment data

M Thurrock  ® National

75 74

71 72 68 70

Reading GPS Maths Writing RWM

3.4.6 We are still waiting for progress data which the DfE has stated it will release in
December.

Page 19



4 GCSE KS4 (age 16) - Indicative results

-
2016 Provisional KS4 assessment data
58.0 56.6 59 57.1 58.2
2014 2015 2016
5+ A*-Cinc E&M
N B Thurrock  ® National

5+ A*-C inc E&M
2014 2015 2016
Thurrock | 58.0 52.9 58.2
National 56.6 57.1 ??

2016 Provisional KS4 assessment data

0.17

0.10

-0.03
2015 2016
Progress 8

M Thurrock W National

Progress 8
2015 2016
Thurrock | 0.10 0.17
National | -0.03 ??

Page 20



2016 Provisional KS4 assessment data

60.2

2014 2015 2016
A*-Cin both English and maths

M Thurrock  ® National

A*-C in both English
and maths
2014 2015 2016
Thurrock | 60.4 54.4 60.2
National 58.9 59.2 ??

2016 Provisional KS4 assessment data

48.40

47.84

2015 2016
Attainment 8

M Thurrock  m® National

Page 21




Thurrock | 46.30 | 47.84
National | 48.40 7?7

41.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Attainment 8
2015 2016

Provisional results for Thurrock schools and academies shows a significant
improvement from last year when results dropped to 53.2% for 5+ GCSEs
including English and mathematics. The provisional results indicated more
than 58% of pupils achieved the benchmark of 5 plus A*-C grades including
English and Mathematics which would show this year’s performance is likely
to be in line with the new national average.

St Clere's School is the most improved with 78 per cent of students gaining
the five or more higher level grades including English and maths. William
Edwards School also improved on last year's results, with a 13 percentage
point increase to 70 per cent. 84 per cent of Harris Academy students also
gained the higher grades, which is in line with last year's good results.

As part of changes to the secondary accountability system Progress 8 and
Attainment 8 will be key measures of school performance from 2016 onwards.
They will replace the existing 5+ A*-C including English and maths headline
measure, and the existing expected progress measures, for all schools.

Progress 8 captures the progress a pupil makes from the end of primary
school to the end of secondary school. It is a value added measure, which
means that pupils’ results are compared to the results of other pupils with the
same prior attainment. The greater the Progress 8 score, the greater the
progress made by the pupil compared to the average of pupils with similar
prior attainment.

Attainment 8 measures the achievement of a pupil across 8 qualifications
including mathematics (double weighted) and English (double weighted),
three qualifications that count in the English Baccalaureate (EBacc) measure
and three further qualifications that can be GCSE qualifications (including
EBacc subjects) or any other approved non-GCSE qualifications.

The performance tables will be adjusted in line with these new accountability
measures and breakdowns will be amended accordingly. For the majority of
schools, the performance tables will only show Progress 8 and Attainment 8
data for 2016, as this is the first year that they will be held accountable to the
new measures.

These results remain indicative and the first release from the DfE is due in
October. The Department for Education will confirm national figures this
autumn. These results are provisional and are currently subject to appeals by
a number of schools across the borough.

Page 22



4.8

4.9

5.1.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.3

5.3.1

Significant changes to GCSE are now published for use in 2017. The scoring
system changes from the current range of A*-E pass grades to a 1-9
framework where 9 is equivalent to the “A*” grade.

The strategic priority for 2016/17 is to ensure young people achieve above the

national average and that pupils in receipt of pupil premium make accelerated
progress.

Children Looked After (CLA)
Foundation Stage — 5 Year Olds

2012/2013 | 2013/2014 | 2014/2015 | 2015/2016
Cohort Size 6 9 5 11
Good Level of 17% 44% 80% 64%
Development
National Figure 62% 62% 65% 69%

There were 11 pupils in the cohort this academic year. Although previous data
indicates that there is a decrease in attainment from the previous year, 7
pupils out of 11 achieved Good Level of Development [GLD]. The cohort size
has increased significantly compared to the previous year although 6 pupils
[54%] stopped being in care during this academic year. 10 pupils [91%]
attended a Thurrock school. Progress for these children was in line with
expectations based upon their individual PEP data and educational targets.

Key Stage 1 — 7 year olds

The testing system has changed for KS1 this year and, as a result of this, it is
not possible to make comparisons with previous years’ attainment data. There
were 12 pupils in the cohort with 5 of these attending a Thurrock school. 4
pupils left care during the academic year. 1 pupil was disapplied from SATs
due to significant Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND).

The following percentages were achieved for those reaching the expected
standard [figures based upon those eligible for the tests — 11 pupils]:-

Reading 63% [7 pupils]

Writing 55% [6 pupils]

Maths 63% [7pupils]

Combined 55% [6 pupils]

There are no national CLA data comparisons available at this time.

Key Stage 2 — 11 year olds

There were 14 children looked after in the total Year 6 cohort that Virtual

School was responsible for with 8 pupils attending Thurrock schools which
equates to 57% of the cohort. In total 12 pupils took their Standardised

Page 23



5.3.2

5.4

5.4.1

54.2

54.3

54.4

5.4.5

5.4.6

Assessment Tests (SATs) and the following percentages were achieved for
those reaching the expected standard:-

Reading 25% [3 pupils]
Writing 58% [7pupils]
Maths 58% [7pupils]
Combined 25% [3 pupils]

This year’s Key Stage results have seen a dramatic drop nationally and this
set of results is in line with this trend. There are no national CLA data
comparisons at this time. Many of our pupils were working at age related
expectations based upon teacher assessment but this did not translate in the
rigorous testing process. One pupil made the equivalent of 3 years progress
in the academic year and thus avoided being placed on an Education Health
Care Plan (EHCP).

Key Stage 4 — 16 year olds

These figures represent the Virtual School Cohort responsibilities. These
figures are indicative and will be finalised once the DFE data is released. The
eligible cohort will be reduced based upon DFE criteria and the LA census
return.

19 pupils were entered for GCSE from the Children in Care cohort of 55 pupils
with 7 [17%] attending a local Thurrock school. All 7 were entered for
examinations and all achieved a qualification in a range of subjects.

From the total of the 19 pupils actually entered for GCSEs, 5 students [26.3%]
gained 5 or more A*-C grades including EN and MA. This is an increase of
from 12.5% in 2015 and 9% in 2014.

From the total cohort of 55 pupils, the 5 pupils who obtained 5 or more A*-C
grades including EN and MA equates to 9% which is again an increase from
previous years of 5%.

48 [83%] Year 11 pupils looked after by the local authority attended a
provision out of borough, of which 17 [49%] students were in specialist
provision. A total of 7 students [17%] did not sit formal qualifications. 3 of
these have significant SEND and 4 pupils are resitting Year 11 and so were
not eligible for exams this academic year. The remainder of the cohort sat a
range of qualifications including entry level, functional skills, BTEC and
maximum of 2 GCSEs.

Additionally 8 pupils [14.5%] achieved grade C or above in English and 8
pupils [14.5%)] achieved grade C or above in Maths.

The number of pupils who were Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children

[UASC] was 23 pupils [42%]. 2 pupils were able to sit GCSEs and the other
students studied ESOL [English Spoken as Other Language].

Page 24



5.5

20

15

10

CLA outcomes against total cohort
Key Stage 4 GCSE 5+ A*- Cinc En & Ma

=== Thurrock

/ ~f- England

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

30

20

10

Outcomes for CLA students who were entered for GCSE
Key Stage 4 GCSE 5+ A*-Cinc En & Ma

=@==Thurrock

7 == England

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Key Stage 5 — “A” level results

Page 25




5.5.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

5.5.4

5.5.5

5.5.6

6.1

7.1

This year's provisional figures show that the percentage of A*-E passes in
school sixth forms and at Palmer’s College is 98 per cent. The percentage of
grade A*-C passes for 2016 is 40 per cent. One-in-five students received an
A* or A grade. Students taking A-levels in Thurrock have maintained the
positive performances of recent years.

Palmer’s College again maintained an impressive 97% pass rate for the fifth
year in a row with 20 subjects gaining a perfect 100% pass rate. The
Stanford & Corringham 6" Form Centre is also celebrating another good year
of GCE Advanced Level and Vocational results as achievement hits a new
high. The subject pass rate was 100% and all students achieved two or more
passes. 44% of entries achieving an A*, A or B grade.

At Ockendon School Academy and Studio School the overall pass rate is 93
per cent with a significant number of students achieving the higher grades A*-
C at 70 per cent of the entry and 40 per cent gaining A*-B grades.

Harris Academy Chafford Hundred reported 100 per cent of their students
passed their A-levels for the second year in a row. 120 students at the
Academy collected an excellent set of A-level results. Overall, 100 per cent
of entries across the 27 subjects on offer achieved pass marks, with 52 per
cent achieving A*-B grades.

Ormiston Park Academy has seen the number of students going to university
increase, more A-Level entries than ever before and more students achieving
higher grades. Similarly, vocational outcomes were its best yet, with more
students than ever achieving Distinction* grades. The academy achieved

a 96% overall pass rate and a 51% pass rate at A*-B.

Thurrock Careers continues to offer impartial information advice and guidance
about future career pathways. There is always a Personal Adviser (PA)
available for support in school and opportunities for further help can be
obtained through The Inspire Youth Hub.

Reasons for Recommendation

None.

Impact on Corporate Policies, Priorities, Performance and Community

Impact

This report relates to the council priority to improve to create a great place for
learning and opportunity.

Implications

Page 26



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Financial
Implications verified by:  Kay Goodacre
Finance Manager, Corporate Finance —

Children and Adult’s

There are no direct financial implications in this report.

Legal
Implications verified by:  Lucinda Bell
Education Lawyer
This report requires the Committee to note its contents only. No decision is
required. However, there are relevant general duties on the Council, of

which are:-

A duty is imposed on the Council by s13A of the Education Act (EA)
1996 duty to promote high standards and the fulfilment of potential.

S22(3)(a) of the Children Act 1989 imposes a duty on the Council to

safeguard and promote the welfare of any child it looks after, and this includes

in particular a duty to promote their educational achievement.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Rebecca Price
Community Development Officer

Information on the equality gap appears in section 3.1.7 of this report and
says that vulnerable children in the Early Years — Foundation stage perform
better than the national average for vulnerable children. The spring term
report will present more granulated data regarding the performance of key
groups.

Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Section 17, Risk
Assessment, Health Impact Assessment, Sustainability, IT,
Environmental

Page 27



9.1.1

9.1.2

9.1.3

914

10.

11.

Risks

Schools, including academies that do not meet the floor standard are at risk of
inspection by Ofsted and intervention by the relevant accountable body.

A failure to raise standards will exacerbate recruitment and retention
difficulties and make it harder for children and young people to reach age
related expectations and to progress to further education, training and
employment in the jobs that growth in the borough will generate.

Conclusion

Pupils and those who support them in and beyond school are to be praised
for the progress that has been made this year. It is important that the good
progress in many areas is now built on to ensure that in every subject, at
every age, improvement which outstrips the national standard is made.
Forensic analysis of data to target support and extensive use of school-to-
school mechanisms in addition to interventions commissioned by the Thurrock
Education Alliance, the School Improvement team and external consultants
has proven to be effective.

Where schools have found it more difficult to improve standards a number of
contributory factors may be identified:

- continuing recruitment and retention issues at all levels
- further changes to assessment regimes
- achieving a consistently high standard of teaching and learning

In response, a number of strategies are already being adopted, such as
working in partnership with and commissioning support from the Teaching
Schools and engaging with more schools regionally in a systematic sharing of
good practice. The establishment of TRIADs in the primary sector is new and
is designed and supported by HMI which should improve outcome in 2017.

The school improvement projects funded through the Education Commission
budget are regularly monitored and the effectiveness and impact continues to
be measured.

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):
None.
Appendices to the report

Appendix 1 - KS4 Headline Summary 2016.

Page 28



Appendix 2 - KS2 Headline Summary 2016.

Report Author:

Roger Edwardson
Strategic Leader School Improvement, Learning and Skills

Children’s Services

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

'sa4nbiy [[eioA0 201Ny 3y} JO Jied Se pojunod Jou Si NG UOHeULIOjU] J0j PIPNIaU] SI BlEp AWSpeaYy dAIQ 9ION

[ T vz [ %z vz [ %8zz | ¢ RARAM €] %L 8¢ | %L8E [ %S'SE | | EEA ] [T [ Teoo] [ _ [%ezz | %69z ] reuonen]
V (%92 | ¥ %222 | %807 | %261 | ¥ KRARA ¥ | %L 6E | %6EE | %L 6Z |V | ¥8'Ly £oy V[ 10 o0L'o %0°LZ_| %0°L2 ¥d0uny|
| | | Awspeoy SAlO |
%0 %0 | %0 %0 %0 %0 | %0 %0 00 59 000 VN %6E | %by sdojeas
| %0 %0 | %0 %0 %0 %0 | %0 %0 |[€] 00 00 000 VN | %9 B/u iIH uodeag
V| %ie [ V] %be | %z | %6l || %99 [V | %9 [ %8y | %sc [¥ | 905 (812 Yoo 110 %6l | %¥l _ spiemp3d weiim
%SG %l | %91 | %8I %01 %6l | %6c | %eec |V | 86r Gy ¥ | 0zo 600 %ve | %EE Awapedy uopuaydQ 2yl | 2
%1 %L | %6 | %St %1 %0L | %L1 | %cz [ Loy g'sy 0Z0- S0'0- %l | %YE Awspeoy AemeyieH eyl
V| % Y| % | %z %E Y %L | %E %Y L'y 0'/¢ ¥ | 60°0- 1€°0- %6y | %ct Awspeoy Aemsies ayL
%62 %0E | %0€ | %iz |¥ | %09 %6v | %19 | %9F S'zy 8l ¥ | oro 000 %SL | %2 $21910 1S
¥ | %St T %Z | %6 %y | ¥ | %gs %9 | %Sh | %0l | &'LY L'9g ¥ | 200 6.°0- | %ls | %99 Awspeoy yed uojsiwo
V| %z |V ] %0z | %2l | %L %.Z |W | %0S | %6L | %z 8o LSy 1€°0- LE0- %le | %8z Awapeoy yooiquasseH
V| %09 |V | %8E | %92 | %8l %08 |¥ | %09 | %ee | %9z |¥ | 965 0'sS ¥ | z60 €L0 %8l | %8l Awapeoy suie
%6E | W | %rv | %Sz | %92 %rS || %29 | %or | %0S 0°6S 1SS 1¥0 250 wre | %ve JusAuoD sheid
¥ | %og 1 %82 | %68 | %6E %ps [ W | %9 | %wss | %6y [V | g6r L6 ¥ | J00 10°0- %8l | %8l IieH a1ge
910z S0z | vioz | €10z | 9102 soz | wioz | €10z | 90z | SL0Z ; i 9Loz | sikoz | vioz 100U9g
Bujasiyoe spdnd e jo % pasaug % _ T {ssiqe] pod Fa)
ajealnejesseg ysibug 9ajeasnejesseq ysibug = pabejueapesiq o
L] l€|%zes | %68s [%er9 ] | |el%ese [%rso [wers [ | [€ %169 ]%s889 [%ese | | %146 | %995 %909 | c22 | viz | 9z | leuoneN|
W [%2°09 [ %V vS | % 09 | %665 | ¥ %189 %969 [ %L 0L | %S 0L [ ¥ [%eZL [ %z S9 | %989 | %929 | ¥ [%z'8S |l %625 | %0'8S [%S65| 592 | s9z | 69z yoounyy
%L %0 %EL | %6 _ | %L | %€ Awapeay an0]
€| %0 |€| %0 | %0 %0 |€| %0 %0 | %0 %0 |€| %0 %0 | %0 %0 €| %0 |€| %0 | %0 | %0 | 6Ll | ozl GEl _sdoal]
€| %0 |€| %0 | %0 %0 %0 %0 | %0 %0 | €| %0 %0 | %0 %0 |€| %0 | %0 | %0 | %0 ey | e gy | [liH uodeag
Y| %l %8S | %29 | %v9 |V | %08 %9 | %9L | %18 [V | %zg [¥ | %l | %89 | %i9 [V | %0L %S | %09 | %¥9 | vic viz | sz SpIemp3 Wel(ip
¥ | %ss %or | %05 | %ls |V | %l9 %SG | %65 | %89 [W | %9s [W] %e9 | %09 | %9s [¥ | %S Wiy | %0S | %G | L2 | S92z | 29z |  Awspeoy uopusyoQ aui| z
[ %se ¥ | %cs | %oy | %0r | %S %99 | %S9 | %vS || %lv | W | %l9 | %ES | %iv %GE %9y | %9 | %o | 62 L9z | ose Awapeoy AemeyreH syl | g
¥ | %zs %Ly | %0S | %0S |¥ | %SS %0S | %95 | %S9 |¥ | %89 %S | %lo | %es | ¥ | %iv %8€ | %S | %0S | L9z | 9vz | 6'sz Awispeoy Aemalen ayL
¥ | %8 %67 | %9 | %19 |¥ | %sg %28 | %28 | %SL |V | %E8 %0S | %59 | %vs |W | %8l %6y | wz9 | %99 | 241z | ziz | 1.2 ~ SpeI0ls
V| %8y |V | %EY | %6E | %OF %S %S | %y | %lv ¥ | %l8 | %19 | %09 | %9S |¥ | %or %0Y | %EE | %0 | €S2 16z | 652 AWspedy Yed UoISILIO
%9€E %67 | %05 | %E9 %99 %69 | %S | %82 %8E %0S | %9S | %S9 %ZE %8y | %y | %lo | o9z | 0z | g9z ~ Awaspeoy yooiquassey
VY| %se %8 | %6 | %e6 |€&!| %sg %G58 | %€E6 | %e6 [V | %66 %96 | %66 | %001 €| %8 %y8 | %26 | we6 | oez | ziz | 612 Awspedy siuey
V| %8L | W | %0L | %¥9 | %S |¥| %6l |W | il | %bL | %9 %EY %Y8 | %2l | %e8 %69 | W | %0L | %E9 | %S | 9.2 6.2 v'i2 JusAU0) sheln)| g
V| %9 %8S | %¥s | %es |V | %99 1 %€E9 | %9. | %0e [ | %9z %el | %88 | %c8 | ¥ | %09 %8S | %L | %es | 922 | 672 | 082 lleH siges| Z
9102 S0z | vLoz | €10z | 910z S0z | vioz | 1oz | 9Lo0z S0z | ¥Loz | €10z | 9L0Z S0z | vroz | €10z | 910z | swoz | vioz jooydog S10
pauiquiod $3509 stpew = ysibug oul (3sIvy [sa1qel Had 23a)
38909 syiei pue ysijbuz o-,v i 3899 usibu3 9-v (Jusjeainba 10) 3§99 2.V +5% SdV Zs) Anu3 up

19qWNU 8[OYM }SBJEBU BY} 0} PAPUNOI Useq dAeY sabejuaoiad [0oyos
JuswpuaLLIe 0} 109[GNs 8J0ja1ay] pue [euoisircid aie S)Nsal 8say) 8)0U 9Sea|d

{910z 3snBny yigz uo sjooyss wouy) synsau § abeyg A9y [rUOISIACI] Ho0lNYy |


jshade
Text Box
       APPENDIX 1


This page is intentionally left blank



Key Stage 2 2016 - Summary Comparison - All Pupils

Reading Writing Maths GPS RWM % Acheiving at least the Expected Standard
ofs School Pupils [ <Exp m m in Reading, Writing & Maths
2 [Abbots Hall P I 30 43 | 53 | 7 [99.1 50 | 17 [100.0| [ 33 | 67 | 20 [101.8] | 47 Quarry Hill Academy
2 |Arthur Bugler P 60 38 |62 | 17 |101.0 55 | 7 |100.4| | 35 | 65 | 12 |101.9]| | 42 | 2 Warren P
2 |Aveley P 60 55 | 43| 12 |99.3 58 |10 |101.4| [ 32 | 67 | 20 |1029| [ 40 | 5 .
[llzeacon i 5 0 |0 "o 100|700 o | © 0o | 0 ] 0 [0 0 |0 [ 0o [0 0 o St Marys Catholic P
2 [Belmont Castle P | B3 52 | 47 | 7 | 983 9 38 | 62 | 7 |1000| [ 41 | 59 | 17 |1018| [ 37 | 2 Tudor Court P
2 [Benyon P 29 41 [ 48| 3 |985 7 38 | 59 | 3 | 989 41 | 55 | 10 [1009| [ 41 | 3 Kenningtons P
[Bl|Bonnygate P 32 28 |66 | 3 |100.6 6 28 | 72 | 9 [102.0] [ 13 16 [1042| 53 [ 0 St Jossphs Catholic P
2 [Bulphan CofE P 1 36 | 64 | 0 |100.9 0 36 | 64 | 9 |1018| [ 27 | 73 | 18 [1024]| [ 36 | ©
2 [Chadwell St Mary P 29 31 |69 | 7 |101.7 [l o B2 24 |76 |31 [1048| [ 62 | 3 Chadwell St Mary P
Corringham P 60 27 768 | 10 |102.0 25 | 70 | 8 [102.7| |17 |78 | 32 [105.7| | 60 | O Orsett C of E P
Deneholm P 59 48753 | 9 [994 29 |71 |17 [102:3| |17 | 83| 32 [105.7| | 46 | 3 West Thurrock P
Dilkes P 60 33 |65 | 13 [1017 30 | 70 | 20 [1039| | 15 | &5 105.8| | 58 | 3 Thameside P
2 [East Tilbury P 72 33 | 64 | 8 |100.4 40 | 57 | 10 |1014| [ 31 | 67 | 11 [1024| | 47 | 3
2 |Giffards P 59 31 | 68 9 [100.8 31 | 68 9 [101.8] | 25 | 73 | 17 [102.9 53 5 Corringham P
2 |Graham James P 30 47 753710 [100.1 33 | 67 | 10 |1009| | 37 | 63 | 7 [|101.9| [ 43 Harris Primary Academy
2 [Harris Primary Academy 90 28 770 | & |101.6 22 |78 | 18 |1038| [ 20 |80 | 31 [105.2| [ 60 | 6 Dilkes P
N/AlHarris Mayflower FS
2 |Herringham P 50 38 | 54 | 16 | 99.6 2 |54 76 993 38 [ 58 [ 18 [100.8| [ 48 [ 2 St Thomas of Canterbury
2 |Holy Cross Catholic P 43 35 | 65 102.6 30 [ 70 103.8| | 21 | 79 106.3| | 56 | 5 Holy Cross Catholic P
2 [Horndon-on-the-Hill 30 30 | 70 | 13 |103.0 47 | 53 | 13 [100.9| [ 23| 77 | 13 [1037| | 50 Stanford le Hope P
2 |Kenningtons P a7 34 |66 | 11 |101.0 1 15 [103.8| | 30 | 70 | 15 [102.4 2 Stifford Clays P
2 [Lansdowne P 99 57 | 31 | 4 |95.9 60 | 33| 6 |94 47 |40 | 4 |[978 20 | 0
Little Thurrock P 80 35 |64 | 19 [1015 34 |65 | 15 [1019| | 28 | 71 | 10 [1027| | 49 | 6 Bonnygate P
Orsett C of E P 31 23 L) 29 I [ 327 68 | 26 [104.0] [ 61 [WEIM Giffards P
Purfleet P 56 45 32 |66 | 13 [102.8 Horndon-on-the-Hill
Quarry Hill Academy 59 3 7 93 -27 106.5 10 X
Shaw P 57 28| 67 | 4 [100.8 28 | 67 | 16 |102.2| [ 47 | 2 Little Thurrock P
@JSomers Heath P 30 57 | 40 | 3 | 986 40 | 60 | 17 [101.0] [ 33| 3 Herringham P
(@) st Josephs Catholic P 38 13 29 718 21 | 79 |11 [1031 13 18 63 | 0 Shaw P
2 |StMarys Catholic P 39 23 1038 [28 [ 72| 5 18 |80 | & [1042] [ 13 41 | 67 I East Tibury P
2 [StThomas of Canterbury 88 17 104.2| [7317| 69 | 11 19 |80 [ 16 [104.1 8 58 | 3
Stanford I Hope P 54 41 1007| [26 |74 | 7 22 | 76 | 19 [103.8| |20 | 78 | 28 |104.6| [ 56 | 4 Abbots Hall P
2 |stifford Clays P 89 30 1029 | 24 | 76 | 17 24 |76 | 14 [103.1| | 20 | 80 | 15 [103.4| | 54 | 5 Purfieet P
2 [Thameside P 74 28 102.0| [ 27 | 73 24 |73 | 10 [102.7| [ 20 | 77 | 27 [1043]| [ 61 | 5 Deneholm P
2 [The Gateway FS 90 53 | 42 | 4 |96.9 2 77| 3 59 | 39 | 1 |97.5 54 | 43 | 4 |97.8 26 | 1 Woodside P
N/A| Tilbury Pioneer Academy
[l Trectops 17 o0 [0 [oo]l[70] o [ o 0 | 0 [0 |00 0 Graham James P
2 |Tudor CourtP 90 POl 78 23 23 [77 1 17 |81 4 104.8 8 Arthur Bugler P
2 |Warren P 90 22 20 80 6 10 8 6 05.9 84 . 6 Benyon P
2 |West Thurrock P 59 22 775 | 7 [102:9| |17 | 80 | 12 17 | 83 [ 22 [104.0] |20 | 76 | 24 [104.7| | 61 | 3 Aveley P
2 |Woodside P 60 40 | 57 | 12 |[101.5| [ 30 | 70 | 8 30 | 67 | 7 |1019| [ 28 | 68 | 12 |1028| | 45 | 2
Belmont Castle P
Thurrock 2142 34 | 62 | 13 [1013| | 24 | 76 | 10 30 | 68 | 13 [1022| [ 25 | 72 | 21 1036 | 51 | 4 Bulphan CofE P
National (unvalidated) NA 31 | 66 | 19 [1026| | 25 | 75 | 15 27 | 70 | 17 |103.0[ [ 24 | 72 | 23 [1040| | 53 | 5 Somers Heath P
The Gateway FS
Thurrock (Boys only) 1096 36 | 59 [ 10 [1004] [ 32 ] 68 | 6 29 [ 68 | 15 [102.4] [ 30 | 66 [ 17 [102.5] [ 48 | 3
Thurrock (Girls only) 1046 | | 32 | 66 | 16 |102.3| | 17 | 83 | 14 30 | 68 | 12 |1024| | 20 | 78 | 26 |1048| | 55 | 5 Lansdowne P
Tilbury Pioneer Academy
West Locality 473 37 | 60 | 10 [1007] [ 20 [ 80 [ & 29 [ 70 | 14 [1024] [ 26 | 72 | 21 [1035] [ 51 | 3 )
Central Locality 865 | | 29 | 69 | 17 |1025| [ 23 | 77 | 13 | [ 23 | 76 | 17 |1035| | 19 | 80 | 26 |105.0| [ 57 | 5 Harris Mayflower FS- | i i i i i
East Locality 782 38 | 58 | 11 [1003| [ 26 | 74 | & 39 | 59 | 10 [1008| [ 32 | 65 | 17 [1022| [ 46 | 3 0%  20%  40% 60%  80%  100%
EEmEXS = GCDS emmwThurrock Expt — essssNational Exp+
Notes: Thisearly data was collected from schools on 15 July 2016 and is unvalidated Key: X Top resultsin Thurrock
Data includes amendments that will be reflected in validated results Above comparator average*

* Comparator for schools is the Thurrock average, for Thurrock it's the National average Bottom results in Thurrock



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

13 October 2016 ITEM 6

Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Children’s Social Care Complaints and Representations
Annual Report 2015/16

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All No

Report of: Anas Matin, Statutory Complaints and Engagement Manager

Accountable Head of Service: Andrew Carter, Head of Children’s Social Care

Accountable Director: Rory Patterson, Corporate Director of Children’s Services

This report is Public

Executive Summary

The Annual Report for Thurrock Council on the operation of the Children’s Social
Care Complaints Procedure covering the period 1 April 2015 — 31 March 2016 is
attached as Appendix 1. It is a statutory requirement to produce an annual
complaints report on children’s social care complaints.

The report sets out the number of representations received in the year including the
number of complaints, key issues arising from complaints and overall learning and
improvement activity for the department.

A total of 289 representations were received during 2015-16 as detailed below:

117 Compliments

81 Stage 1complaints

2 Stage 2 complaints

1 Stage 3 complaint

48 Concerns and issues
17 MP enquiries

12 Member enquiries

4  Ombudsman enquiries
7 MEP

1. Recommendation(s)

1.1 That the Scrutiny Committee consider and note the report.

Page 35



2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

6.1

Introduction and Background

This is the Annual Report for Thurrock Council on the operation of the
Children’s Social Care Complaints Procedure covering the period 1 April 2015
— 31 March 2016. It is a statutory requirement to produce an annual
complaints report on Children’s Social Care Complaints and Representations.

The Children’s social care complaints procedure is operated in accordance
with the Council’s policy on Complaints and Representations, the Children Act
1989 Regulations and ‘Getting the Best from Complaints’ guidance 2006 and
the Council.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options
This is a monitoring report for noting, therefore there is no options of analysis.
Summary of representations received in 2015/16

117 Compliments

81 Stage 1 Complaints

2 Stage 2 Complaints

1 Stage 3 Reviews

48 Concerns and issues
17 MP enquiries

12 Member enquiries

4 Ombudsman enquiries
7 MEP

Appendix 1 provides a detailed summary regarding the above.
Reasons for Recommendation

It is a statutory requirement to produce an annual complaints report on
children’s social care complaints. It is best practice for this to be considered
by Overview and Scrutiny. This report is for the purpose of monitoring and
noting.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

This report has been agreed with the Children’s social care senior
management team.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

Thurrock’s Children and Young People’s Plan 2013-2016 sets out a vision for
ensuring that ‘every child has the best start in life’. Safeguarding and
protecting the well-being of vulnerable child and young people is one of the
priorities in the plan. This is reflected in the ‘protection when needed’ priority.

Page 36



6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Feedback from children and young people is an important part of the service
performance and quality framework. It enables the service to identify areas
for improvement, to recognize the things that are done well and to help
assess progress in meeting our priorities for children and young people.

Implications
Financial

Implications verified by: Kay Goodacre

Finance Manager, Corporate Finance —
Children and Adult’s

There are no specific financial implications arising from this report which the
committee should note. However, any compensation payments agreed
represent a financial cost to the service.

Legal

Implications verified by: Lindsey Marks
Principal Solicitor Children’s Safeguarding

There are no specific legal issues arising from the report as this is just for
members’ information.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Rebecca Price
Community Development Officer

The Council’s complaints system has been designed to provide an effective
means for service users or their representatives to complain about the quality
or nature of services and to satisfy those who complain or comment that they
have been dealt with promptly, fairly, openly and honestly. The Council is
committed to promoting equality of opportunity for all. We will always take into
consideration issues of age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage and
civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex, and
sexual orientation during the complaints process to ensure that an equitable
service is available to all. There are no specific diversity issues arising from
this report.

Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder)

None

Page 37



8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’'s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):
None
9. Appendices to the report

Appendix 1 — Children’s Social Care Complaints and Representations Annual
Report 2015/16.

Report Author:

Anas Matin
Statutory Complaints & Engagement Manager
HR, OD & Transformation

Page 38



APPENDIX 1

thurrock.gov.uk

Children’s Social Care Complaints and
Representations

Thurrock Council

Annual Report 2015-16

Anas Matin

Statutory Complaints & Engagement Manager
HR, OD & Transformation

June 2016 Page 39



OCoOoNORwN =

Contents

Introduction

Summary of Representations Received
Compilaint Issues

Stage 1 Complaint Outcomes
Response Times

Policy Work

Stage 2 Complaints

Stage 3 Complaints

Concerns

Compliments

Local Government Ombudsman
Learning from Complaints

Staff Training

Feedback and participation
Action Plan

June 2016 Page 40



1.

Introduction

The Children’s Social Care Statutory Complaints Procedure stipulates that an annual
report on complaints and representations should be produced, as processed under the
Children Act 1989, and the Children Act 1989 Representations Procedure (England)
Regulations 2006, Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000 and Adoption & Children Act 2002.
Thurrock’s procedure is governed by the ‘Getting the Best from Complaints’ guidance
2006.

This report provides information about the complaints and representations received for the
period 1 April 2015 — 31 March 2016. The report sets out the number of representations
including complaints received, key issues and learning for the department.

Staff are encouraged to resolve issues at the first point of contact in line with good practice
as outlined by the Local Government Ombudsman. Staff are familiar with the Social Care
Complaints Procedure and in directing service users to access the complaints procedure
where a complaint cannot be resolved locally.

The statutory complaints procedure sets out that a complaint can be made as a result of a
range of issues that are relating to statutory social services functions such as:

an unwelcome or disputed decision,

the quality and appropriateness of a service,
delay in decision making or provision of services,
attitude or behaviour of staff

or the quantity, frequency or cost of a service

A complaint will not be considered:

e if the person making the complaint does not meet the legal requirements of who may
complain and is not acting on behalf of such an individual

e when the complaint is not in relation to the local authority or anybody acting on its
behalf

e where the same complaint has already been dealt with at all stages of the
complaints procedure

The Complaints Procedure operates in 3 stages:
Stage 1

Local Resolution where Team/Service Managers respond to a complaint within 10 working
days which can be extended to 20 working days for more complex complaints.

Stage 2

The complainant can request their complaint to be progressed to stage 2 within 20 working
days of receiving their stage 1 response. This stage involves an independent investigation
which is conducted by an independent investigator and independent person who oversees
the investigation for fairness and transparency of the process. The investigation can take
within 25 to 65 working days.

June 2016 Page 41



Stage 3

Where a complainant requests a review of their complaint, the panel must be organised
within 30 working days of the request.

Local Government Ombudsman

If a complainant is not satisfied with the outcome of the independent review panel, they
have the right to take their complaint to the local Government Ombudsman. Complainants
can refer their complaint to the Ombudsman’s office at any time, although the Ombudsman
may refer the complaint back to the Local Authority if it has not been fully considered
through the complaints procedure.

Advocacy

In our complaints leaflet, we advise that children and young people have a right to
advocacy when making a complaint or if they need any support. This is in accordance
with the Advocacy Regulations 2004.

One complaint from children and young people was supported by advocacy. This
complaint was addressed and resolved at stage 1.

2. Summary of Representations received

A total of 289 representations were received during financial year 2015-16 as detailed
below:

81 Stage 1 Complaint

2 Stage 2 Complaints

1 Stage 3 Reviews

48 Concerns/ issues

117 Compliments

17 MP Enquiries

12 Member Enquiries

7 MEP

4 Ombudsman enquiries

Total Representations 2014-2016

120 T
100 1

W 2014-15
0 T T T T T T T T ) W 2015-16

[e))
o
ANANANAN

June 2016 Page 42



The increase in representations is attributed to an increase in the number of complaints
and compliments.

The department received a total of 81 stage 1 complaints in 2015/16 compared to 54
complaints received last year which is an increase of 50%.

Trends in complaints received from 2010 until 2016:

120 1
100 T
80 17
W Stage 1
60 17
M Stage 2
Stage 3
40 1
20 17
0 T T T T T 1
2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11

Table 2

During 2014/15, we have received two stage 2 complaints. The number of stage 2
complaints remained the same during 2015/16. This clearly indicates that we have kept
the number of stage 2 complaints to a minimal for the last two years, which is a very
positive outcome.

Furthermore, during 2014/15 we have received a request for two stage 3 complaints.
However, during 2015/16 we have received only one request for a stage 3 complaint. This
means that our stage 3 complaints have gone down by 50% from last year, which is a
great result for Children’s Social Care.

Position of complainant

Table 3

June 2016 Page 43



Summary of complainant’s position

80
70

60

a0

30

20

NN

10

D T T 1
Adult Young person

Table 4

The number of complaints received directly from young people (6%) in comparison to
(94%) from adults during 2015/16.

Although there has been a steady decline in the number of stage 1 complaints over the
past five years. This was attributable to the number of issues resolved as concerns.
However, during 2015/16, the number of stage 1 complaints has increased significantly;
possible reasons for the increase of stage 1 complaints are: improved public awareness
due to high profile cases reported in the media. The complaints service maybe more
accessible to complainants due to online facilities such as email or by calling the
complaints team directly. All of the above factors may have contributed to the increase in
complaints. However, a key measure is the % of complaints upheld, and this has not
increased significantly. See Section 4 for additional details.

The number of referrals received in 2015/16 was 2417, which is a rate of 608 per 10,000
populations.

Complaints by Service Area for 2015-16:

Adoption

Finance

Child Protection

Disabled Children

Oaktree Centre
Complaints Family Support (Central)
Family Support (North East)
Family Support (South East)
Family Support (West)
Fostering & Adoption

Children & Families Assessment
Team CFAT

bl N OO |N|O

w
o

June 2016 Page 44



Fostering Assessment
CEF

Permanence/Court Work
Through Care 1

Through Care 2

Aftercare Team

Adolescent Team

= WwWiOodNO|OW|O| O

Children’s Commissioning

o

Other*
Total 81

Table 5

3. Complaint issues

It is important to consider the reasons why complaints are made as detailed in Table 6.
Table 6 indicates that staff attitude and conduct was the reason most frequently
complained about, followed by assessment and decision making.

However, it should also be noted that Children’s social care services are generally very
much involved with families and their personal issues. This will inevitably lead to queries
and complaints about social work staff and their involvement and professional opinions
when making assessments and reports.

Issue 2014/15 | 2015/16
Assessment/decision making 8 20
Communication 8 10
Delays in Service 4 4
Foster care 1 0
Welfare issues 4 3
Quality of Service 4 10
Staff conduct/attitude 19 29
Historical Case note Request 0 1
Finance/Charging 2 3
Various issues 0 1
Other* 4 0
Total 54 81
Table 6

*Missed appointment (2), transport concerns(1), Information and advice (1) - 2014/15

4.Stage 1 Complaint Outcomes
The stage 1 outcomes are detailed below. It is noted that 44.4% were not upheld

compared to 51.8% during 2014/15. Therefore, there is a reduction of 7.4% in the number
of complaints that are not upheld, which is a positive outcome.

June 2016 Page 45



Outcome 2014/15 | Percentage | 2015/16 | Percentage
Upheld 4 7.4% 7 8.6%
Partially Upheld 9 16.7% 13 16%
Not Upheld 28 51.8% 36 44.4%
In Progress 9 16.7% 19 23.4%
Withdrawn* 4 7.4% 3 3.7%
Out of Jurisdiction 0 3 3.7%
Total 54 81
Table 6
*One complaint closed during 2014/15
Stage 1 Complaint Outcomes
m 2014/15
m 2015/16

Table 7

With regard to those complaints upheld, the Department offered apologies and advised
the service users of actions that would be taken to prevent the incident that led to the
complaint recurring. Further details regarding complaint outcomes are detailed in the
‘Learning from Complaints’ section of this report.

5. Response Times

For stage 1 complaints, responses should be completed within 10-20 working days. For
the 59 completed complaints, the department responded to 36 complaints (61%) within the
timescale. The remaining complaints were either withdrawn/cancelled or still in progress at
the end of this reporting year.

The statutory response timescale for stage 2 complaints is between 25 and 65 working
days. It is the service’'s aim to undertake stage 2 complaints within this time period.
However, this timeframe can often be exceeded for a number of reasons. This includes
the serious nature of the issues being investigated and the time incurred ensuring
comprehensive investigation, as well as ensuring the combined availability of the
investigation team and staff for interviews and file viewing.

June 2016 Page 46



6. Policy Work

Thurrock is a member of the Eastern Regional Complaints Group and Public Sector
Complaints Network. Information is shared on a periodic basis in terms of key national
legislative changes that affect the complaints process, in addition to any relevant key
learning from specific complaints, including public reports from the Local Government
Ombudsman. The complaints Manager has established positive links with the relevant
colleagues and will be taking matters forward and attend future meetings.

The Complaints Manager has also established links with the London Complaints Group
Managers’ chair and will be attending future meetings in London to ensure any learning is
captured.

Furthermore, the Complaint Manager is also aware of the National Complaints Managers
Group (England) and intends to establish a positive working relationship with this group, so

that statutory complaints and benchmarking can be adopted in line with national
perspective.

7. Stage 2 Complaints

Two complaints progressed to stage 2 of the complaints procedure during the reporting
period. These complaints are still being investigated by independently commissioned
complaint investigators in line with the complaints procedure. See a summary of case
details below:

Case 1- Complainant states that Thurrock Council have failed in their duty of care to one
of his sons following an allegation of physical abuse by his mother.

Case 2 - Letter received from complainant regarding child in need support for her three
children.

8. Stage 3 complaints

One complaint progressed to stage 3 panel review during this reporting period.

Stage 3 - Complainant alleges that Children Social Care has neglected their duty of care
towards his son. Outcome: Upheld.

Compensation awarded and learning has been taken forward by senior management.

9. Concerns

Apart from complaints, the complaints team recorded other representations received about
the service (as it is required to do). Representations can be positive comments and
feedback about the service or comments and queries regarding a service.

The complaints service recorded 48 concerns which is a decrease of 19% on the previous

year when 59 were recorded. If a concern cannot be readily resolved, it will become a
complaint.

June 2016 Page 47



The majority of issues were based around contact and communication from staff where
calls/emails were not responded to and staff conduct during home visits. There were
requests for a change of social worker following a breakdown in the relationship, requests
for assistance, clarification of social work involvement. There were also concerns raised
where the complainant is not in agreement with comments made on assessment reports,
and complaints and allegations against partners or other family members.

10. Compliments

Compliments are expressions of good feedback and the team recorded 117 compliments
this year compared to 107 recorded last year 2014/15.

Compliments received by service team:

Family Group Conference

Aftercare

Permanency Team

Adolescent Team

Disabled Children Team

Family Support SE

Family Support NE

Family Support Central

Family Support West

Foster care Team

Independent Reviewing Officer
Adoption Team

Children Families Assessment Team
(ofe]1) 1) [T 1 MASH (Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub)
Oaktree Resource Centre
Permanance/court work
Performance Quality and Business Support
Sunshine Centre

Therapeutic Foster Care

Through Care 1

Through Care 2

Troubled Families

Thurrock Youth Offending Service
Domestic Abuse Service

Sunshine Centre

o

-—

== O=BANNOW=RNN=OOIANDNDNAMPA=2O=|O

117

TOTAL
Table 8

What people have said:
¢ "Nick was great! He made us feel relaxed and at ease which enabled the conversations

and discussions to flow. He was very approachable and answered many questions for
us.” Adoption team.

June 2016 Pageo48



e "Thank you so much for your support and yes Yvonne did contact me we had a nice
chat, also J will be staying with me for the respite care when the foster carers go away,
so not sure if all was your doing but thank you with a big hug". Performance and
Business Support.

e "Just to say that the foster carers shared that you are the best social worker they
worked with. They felt that you are always on board and you have good communication
skills, well done!" Permanence and Court work.

e "Teresa is incredibly passionate at ensuring that C has the best opportunities. She
encourages C to participate in groups and socialises with people, adults and children
alike. Furthermore, she knows C very well. C is fully integrated within the family".
Therapeutic Foster Care Team.

e "Many thanks for all you've done for me while | was a Sunshine Centre user. I've had a
great time over the last few years and shall be sad to say goodbye, but I'm too old now.
I've loved it being with you all - thank you so much — M." Sunshine Centre

e |RO Angela Grant, as follows: "She is amazing (Carer) - and my LAC reviewing officer
is amazing too!" Independent Reviewing Officer

e CAFCASS: "I have looked at the report and it was very good." Children & Families
Assessment Team

e "| used your excellent package on Friday (well abbreviated version) and it worked a
treat. Big thanks and this is the second family | have used this on. | value your support
and guidance!" Domestic Abuse Service

e "l just wanted to pass on the positive feedback that | get from professionals about your
team. A number of professionals from education have made positive comments and
told me that they feel listened to and well supported by your team." MASH

e "| want to say a BIG thank you to you for this great work. Most especially for your
patience with me in making up my mind to be part of this story book for my little angel
and princess as | call her. This is great work that you have done which cannot be
monetary quantified. My heart is overjoyed that at last, E can have some answers to
her origin and culture. My family and |, sincerely thank you and everyone who has
contributed to making this story book a reality. God bless you and your family."
Oaktree Resource Centre

11. Local Government Ombudsman

The Ombudsman investigates complaints of injustice caused by ‘maladministration’ or
‘service failure’. The Ombudsman cannot question whether a Council’s decision is right or
wrong simply because a complainant disagrees with it. The Ombudsman must consider
whether there was fault in the way the decision was reached. If there has been fault, the
Ombudsman considers whether there has been an injustice, and if there has, a remedy
will be suggested.

There were 4 Ombudsman enquiries received for 2015/16 period as detailed below:

June 2016 Page 49



LGO Case 1 — Complaint regarding contact issues with his daughters. Outcome: Out of
jurisdiction due to court involvement.

LGO Case 2 — A sixteen year old made a complaint about a social worker. Outcome:
Withdrawn not investigated by LGO.

LGO Case 3 — Complainant raised a safeguarding issue regarding his son who has been
put in a placement over the Easter Holidays. Outcome: Awaiting decision from LGO.

LGO Case 4 - Father made a complaint about a social worker who he believes lied under
oath. Outcome: Upheld — maladministration & Injustice, compensation paid.

12. Learning from Complaints

Learning from complaints is an important aspect of the complaints procedure. The
following are examples of learning that were identified from the complaints processed
during 2015/16:

Communication

e We learnt that it is worth advising clients in advance of a change to their regular carer
and notify them of any instances where the carer is running late.

e There needs to be collaborative approach to communicate and co-ordinate a response
to a request.

Service improvement

e Change of Procedure - any long term staff sickness of over 2 weeks should be formally
considered by the team manager and actions agreed to reduce the impact of any delay
upon the applicant’s assessment process.

e The process of preparation for panel and pre-panel checks needs to be reviewed to
ensure that applicants are given realistic panel dates (noting that the decisions of panel
are independent) and all statutory and necessary checks are completed appropriately.

e The service provider involved is no longer providing care on behalf of Thurrock Council.
Staff Training

e Spoken to the new social worker about liaising with service user directly in relation
to the level of financial support.

o Staff member has worked hard to address the concerns about an institution through
the relevant channels.

e There should be improved co-ordination between services (where there is a
dispute) to ensure that a resolution is reached at the earliest opportunity.

e Virtual school needs to produce / recirculate guidance for social workers on the
process to be followed and perhaps provide regular information sessions given the
turnover of staff.

June 2016 Page50



e The social worker did not appear to be clear on the process and | would suggest
that all education requests are passed to the virtual school and that the social
workers are made aware that they cannot authorise education provision.

e Staff training - Care proceedings are contentious because there is always a risk of
removing children from the care of their parents and / or significant others.
Everyone involved with such process needs to be acutely conscious of this fact and
be sensitive to heightened emotions.

e Feedback has been provided to the social worker and manager around the quality
of the court report and Child and Family assessment.

e The complaint related to inaccuracies contained within an Assessment compiled by
a Social Worker. This was discussed with the social worker prior to his exit from the
service. Social Worker acknowledged the concerns, accepted responsibility where
the complaint had been upheld.

e Lack of understanding of the processes and support available, does indicate some
failure to explain such services to the complainant.

13. Staff Training

Staff are able to access e-learning courses as provided by the Workforce Planning and
Development team regarding complaints handling and customer care.

All service teams have received refresher training on the complaints procedure and this is
a rolling requirement.

14. Feedback and participation

The Complaints Manager is a member of the Children’s Participation and Engagement
Champion’s Group, which includes member representation from the Children in Care
Council/Open Door Advocacy, foster carers and the key services for children in care. The
group’s primary focus is to ensure services are accessible for children in care as well as
considering ways of actively engaging young people and children in care and capturing
their views and feedback.

The focus for this past year was in developing the children looked after website which
remains an ongoing priority.

Complaints leaflets and materials are sent to all children in care and leaving care and they
also receive this information at every review. Children and young people also complete

Independent Review forms with their views about care and Children’s Services which are
taken forward and monitored by the Independent Reviewing Officer.

15. Action Plan

The objective is to continue to learn from complaints, strengthen service
provision and thus reduce the number of complaints:

June 2016 Page 51



e The complaints’ team will provide ongoing training and advice to teams in respect of
complaint handling, through regular emails, writing policy documents, telephone
advice and face to face meetings; as this is an ongoing policy.

e To ensure that children and young people feel confident and aware of how to
provide their views and feedback about services through various communication
tools.

e The complaints’ team will monitor learning from complaints on a quarterly basis by
keeping an up to date spreadsheet and Investigation log.

e The introduction of ‘alternative dispute resolution’ has been implemented and
proving to be quite successful. This will improve the working relationship between
service users and service providers.

e Implement process to assist in the development of comprehensive procedures -
ongoing.

e Attain a minimum response time to 90% target.

e Complaints team intend to provide training to all new managers, deputy managers
and senior practitioners through regular workshop, one to one meeting, advice and
guidance - ongoing.

e Work closely with operational services to ensure that all new service users are
aware of complaints - ongoing.

e Ensure that there is consistency across services; hence the complaints team have
developed a response template.

e The Complaints Manager will support operational staff and Managers in handling
and responding to complaints more effectively.

e The Complaints team has a presence at Senior Management Meetings and Staff
meetings throughout the year. Staff regularly liaises with the Complaints Manager
when complaints assistance is required.

e The Complaints Manager will ensure that a weekly report is produced for the senior
management team and followed by a quarterly report with detailed analysis of
complaints and representations.

e The complaints procedure has been reviewed and will be updated end of August
2016.

e The service will continue to increase the awareness of the complaints and
representations procedure for staff and service users.

e The Complaints Manager meets with staff and teams regularly to discuss concerns

and complaints through team meetings and face to face discussions on a day to
day basis.

June 2016 Pages52



e The Complaints Manager will continue to work closely with the Essex Complaints
Manager Network and other Councils; to explore the potential for developing shared
arrangements to access a pool of experienced independent persons for Stage 2
investigators and Stage 3 reviews. Also to maintain links regionally and nationally
with complaints teams in other authorities for key issues arising and sharing best
practise.

e To provide ongoing training and advice to teams in respect of complaint handling
procedures.

e To ensure that children and young people feel confident and are aware of how to
provide their views and feedback about services through various communication
tools.

e To develop further ways of making the service more accessible.

e Complaints activity and learning will continue to be reported to the department
throughout the year and disseminated to all staff.

e A new process map has been introduced for learning from complaints.
e The complaints manager has engaged in meeting with services and their team

managers, in order to understand each service in an informed manner, so that a
robust complaints management service can be provided to our service users.

June 2016 Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

13 October 2016 ITEM: 7

Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Ofsted Inspection Report and Action Plan

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All Non-Key

Report of: Andrew Carter, Head of Children’s Social Care

Accountable Head of Service: Andrew Carter, Head Children’s Social Care

Accountable Director: Rory Patterson, Corporate Director of Children’s Services

This report is Public

Executive Summary

This covering report provides information on the outcomes of the recent Ofsted
Inspection, the recommendations from the inspection and draft Action Plan to
address the recommendations.

1. Recommendations

1.1  That Children’s Overview and Scrutiny note the outcomes of the recent
Ofsted Inspection, recommendations and draft action plan to address
the recommendations; and

1.2 That the Board receive assurance that action plan will deliver the
required improvement.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 Alllocal authorities in England are inspected under the Single Inspection
Framework (SIF) within a three-year period. The Children’s Safeguarding
Board is inspected at the same time. The Ofsted inspection of services for
children in need of help and protection, children looked after and care leavers
took place between 22.2.16 — 17.3.16. The full report of the inspection is
attached to this report as Appendix 1.

2.3 Inresponse to the recommendations of the Ofsted Report the department has

drafted a detailed action plan. The action plan is attached to this report as
Appendix 2.

Page 55



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

Services to children, young people and families in Thurrock were judged to
‘Require Improvement’ by Ofsted. This means that the service has fallen back
from the previous judgement of ‘Good’ in 2012. The inspectors stated in their
report that ‘children and young people were found to be safe in Thurrock
during this inspection, with none identified who were at immediate risk of
significant harm without plans and services being in place to reduce these
risks and to meet their needs’. No individual cases of concern were drawn to
the attention of managers during the inspection.

Ofsted has made 16 recommendations in relation to practice improvements
that are required in Thurrock. The 16 recommendations can be found at page
7 & 8 of the Ofsted Report. Key areas of concern included:

e The instability of the social care workforce. The service was dependent on
a high proportion of agency social workers, although it was acknowledged
that a range of creative ideas had been implemented to improve
recruitment;

e The service for children looked after was not consistent and too many
children became looked after on an emergency basis:

e More needed to be done to increase the number of in-house foster carers
as too many children and young people were placed out of the borough;

e Management oversight needed to be improved and frontline staff had to be
supervised regularly to improve the quality of practice;

e The organisation’s use of management information and quality assurance
was poor and this impedes improvement; and

e Training for all social workers to ensure permanence work with children
starts earlier and that delay is avoided.

A one page summary of the report for children and young people can be
found at page 9 of the Ofsted Report.

The local authority is required to prepare and publish a written statement of
the action it intends to take in response to the report. It should send a copy of
this to Ofsted within 70 working days of receiving the final report. A detailed
action plan has been completed by the department and submitted to Ofsted
by the deadline on 31 August. The plan was quality assured by the regional
Ofsted Inspector and the Inspector who lead the inspection before
submission.

An improvement Board has been established to ensure that all of the
recommendations and other areas for improvement have been implemented.
The Board is chaired by the Corporate Director of Children's Services. The
Portfolio Holders for Children and Adults and Education and Health will
provide an additional layer of oversight and challenge through by monitoring
progress against the action plan on a monthly basis.

Page 56



3.6

6.1

6.2

6.3

Ofsted is currently consulting on a new inspection framework where it is
proposed that those authorities who were judged Requires Improvement will
receive another inspection within three years. In addition, it is anticipated that
new modular inspections will be undertaken in the next year. These
inspections are carried out over 2-3 days to test whether authorities are
making the requisite progress with their improvement plans. Furthermore,
social care departments will be expected to submit an annual self- evaluation
to Ofsted which must evidence improvement. While this is discretionary,
failure to do so could trigger a full inspection of the service.

Consultation
N/A

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

The completed action plan will allow the council to meet and improve upon its
core statutory functions in the delivery of services for children in need of help
and protection, children looked after and care leavers.

Implications

Financial

Implications verified by: Kay Goodacre
Finance Manager

There are no immediate financial implications for the authority arising out of
the action plan.
Legal

Implications verified by: Lindsay Marks
Principal Solicitor, Children’s Safeguarding

The Local Authority has a statutory duty to provide services to children in
need of help and protection, failure to effectively do so could lead to legal
challenges and reputational damage. The Local Authority is required to
provide clear evidence of how it is implementing the inspection
recommendations.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Natalie Warren

Page 57



6.4

Community Development and Equalities
Manager

The local authority and its partners must ensure that a range of services and
provision is in place to protect children from all backgrounds. In implementing
the action plan the authority must ensure that improvements are made for
children and young people from all backgrounds and that none are directly or
in-directly discriminated against.

Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder)

N/A

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):

Ofsted Single Framework Inspection Report dated 24.5.16
Appendices to the report

Appendix 1 - Ofsted Single Inspection Report

Appendix 2 - Local Authority Draft Action Plan

Report Author:

Andrew Carter

Head of Service

Children’s Social Care

Page 58



APPENDIX 1
0
PR
*XKK

Ofsted

Thurrock Council

Inspection of services for children in need of help and
protection, children looked after and care leavers

and

Review of the effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding Children
Board®

Inspection date: 22 February 2016 to 17 March 2016
Report published: 24 May 2016

Children’s services in Thurrock Council require improvement to
be good

1. Children who need help and protection Require improvement
2. Children looked after and achieving o
Require improvement
permanence
2.1 Adoption performance Require improvement
2.2 Experiences and progress of care leavers Require improvement
3. Leadership, management and governance Require improvement

! Ofsted produces this report under its power to combine reports in accordance with section 152 of
the Education and Inspections Act 2006. This report includes the report of the inspection of local
authority functions carried out under section 136 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006 and the
report of the review of the Local Safeguarding Children Board carried out under the Local
Safeguarding Children Boards (Review) Regulations 2013.

nnn EO
aUC JJ


jshade_1
Text Box
APPENDIX 1


Ofsted

Executive summary

Services to children, young people and families in Thurrock require improvement.
Children and young people were found to be safe in Thurrock during this inspection,
with none identified who were at immediate risk of significant harm without plans
and services being in place to reduce these risks and to meet their needs.

While there are pockets of good practice across all areas of children’s social care, the
majority of practice is less than good, specifically much of the core business
regarding assessment and planning for children, securing a stable workforce,
supervision and management oversight. In the last inspection of safeguarding and
looked after children services in 2012, the local authority was judged to be good.
Following this inspection, senior officers and leaders did not continue to ensure that
children and families received consistently good services.

The local authority has addressed effectively almost all areas for improvement that
were identified at its last inspection, including its response to referrers, access to a
range of leisure activities for children looked after and implementation of early help
assessments. However, the quality of assessments and plans for children in need,
including children with a disability, those in need of protection, children looked after
and care leavers, requires improvement.

The local authority appointed a new permanent head of children’s social care in
October 2014, a new chief executive in September 2015 and an interim director of
children’s services (DCS) in late January 2016, pending the swift appointment of their
new DCS who is due to start in May this year. These appointments have been of
highly skilled professionals who have demonstrated their positive impact on services
in a relatively short time.

Most children benefit from early help provided by a range of strong commissioned
services. Children who have more complex needs and require a coordinated response
do not always receive such effective early help and support. The local authority does
not ensure that all children who have been missing from home or care benefit from a
return home interview after they have been missing. Children in need of protection
receive a swift and appropriate service, but children in need often experience delay
in seeing their social worker for an assessment of their needs. Children are not
effectively supported to attend and participate in their formal review meetings. When
these meetings take place, reports and minutes from previous meetings are often
shared too late to be fully considered.

2 Page 60



Ofsted

Children looked after do not receive a consistently good service, and too many
become looked after in an emergency. The recruitment of foster carers is not
resulting in an appropriate range of local placement options, and too many children
live outside the borough, away from their communities, families and friends. Children
looked after achieve well relative to their peers in the early years. Outcomes for
children looked after at the end of key stage 2 have improved significantly, but are
still below outcomes for all children. However, educational outcomes for children
looked after who are taking GCSE examinations are poor. Personal education plans
are not sufficiently detailed. The virtual school does not effectively monitor the
educational progress and outcomes for the majority of children looked after who live
outside the borough.

Waiting times for children with a plan for adoption are reducing. However, workers
within mainstream social work teams do not consistently consider adoption for all
children who cannot return home. Post-adoption support is insufficient for children
and families who are entitled to this service. Care leavers receive good day-to-day
support, but not enough young people are benefiting from staying put arrangements
after they turn 18 years, and they do not all receive effective support to transition
into adulthood. Pathway reviews are not being undertaken within timescales.

The local authority’s use of performance management and quality assurance
information across all areas of the service is poor, and impedes any improvement
needed. Use of feedback from children and families to inform service development is
underutilised. Accurate data regarding performance is collated, but managers do not
analyse this data in order to inform service developments. There are weaknesses in
the analysis of social workers’ activity in relation to timeliness (for example, of multi-
agency safeguarding hub (MASH) processes and assessments), the consideration of
trends from return home interviews and ‘children missing education’ information, the
overview and analysis of findings from audit, and the full analysis of key factors
affecting services for children in need of protection and children looked after.

The instability of the workforce leaves services vulnerable. The local authority is fully
aware of the workforce challenges and has a range of creative initiatives in place to
address this in the longer term. Management oversight of frontline practice is
inconsistent, with too many areas of weakness, and results in a lack of effective
challenge to progress children’s plans and effect change for children. Currently, the
local authority does not systematically ensure that the workforce receives supervision
of sufficient quality and frequency.

Some elements of services to children and their families have improved. The local

N (1
aUC U Ju N



Ofsted

authority’s Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), for example, is securing strong
information sharing between professionals and robust decision making regarding
appropriate services for children and their families. Management oversight within the
MASH is very strong. Other improvements include the response for children who are
at risk of child sexual exploitation, which reduces their risks. The authority has also
substantially improved its offer to teenagers, the vast majority of whom receive a
good service from the adolescents team.

Despite changes of key personnel, the local authority has greatly improved its
corporate and cross-party political support for children’s services. The local authority
had a recent peer review of its corporate arrangements by the Local Government
Association, which endorsed the strong working relationships seen during this
inspection. Effective support from the political leadership is evident through the
challenging overview and scrutiny function, and in the proactive Health and
Wellbeing Board.

4 Page 62



Ofsted

Contents
Executive summary 2
The local authority 6
Information about this local authority area 6
Summary for children and young people 11
The experiences and progress of children who need help and
protection 12
The experiences and progress of children looked after and achieving
permanence 20
Leadership, management and governance 33
The Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) 40
Executive summary 40
Recommendations 41
Inspection findings — the Local Safeguarding Children Board 41
Information about this inspection 48
Danp A2
LI QUC UJ



Ofsted

The local authority
Information about this local authority area?
Previous Ofsted inspections

The local authority operates no children’s homes.

B The last inspection of the local authority’s safeguarding arrangements was in
June 2012. The local authority was judged to be good.

B The previous inspection of the local authority’s services for children looked after
was in June 2012. The local authority was judged to be good.

Local leadership

B The interim director of children’s services has been in post since January 2016.

B The chair of the Local Safeguarding Children Board has been in post since
August 2012.

Children living in this area
B Approximately 40,093 children and young people under the age of 18 years live
in Thurrock. This is 25% of the total population in the area.
B Approximately 21% of the local authority’s children are living in poverty.
B The proportion of children entitled to free school meals:
— in primary schools is 14% (the national average is 16%)
— in secondary schools is 14% (the national average is 14%).
®  Children and young people from minority ethnic groups account for 22% of all
children living in the area, compared with 22% in the country as a whole.

B The largest minority ethnic group of children and young people in the area is
Black or Black British.

B The proportion of children and young people with English as an additional
language:

— in primary schools is 17% (the national average is 19%)

— in secondary schools is 10% (the national average is 15%).

2 The local authority was given the opportunity to review this section of the report and has updated it
with local unvalidated data, where this was available.

6 Page 64



Ofsted

B Thurrock has the highest rate of unaccompanied asylum-seeking children
(UASC) in the eastern region: 20.7 children per 10,000 population. The number
of UASC has doubled in the last 12 months. In December 2015, one in four
children looked after was a UASC.

Child protection in this area

B At 22 February 2016, 1,609 children had been identified through assessment as
being formally in need of a specialist children’s service. This is an increase from
1,563 at 31 March 2015.

B At 22 February 2016, 263 children and young people were the subject of a child
protection plan. This is an increase from 201 at 31 March 2015.

B At 22 February 2016, two children live in a privately arranged fostering
placement. This is a reduction from seven at 31 March 2015.

B Since the last inspection, four serious incident notifications have been
submitted to Ofsted and five serious case reviews have been completed or are
ongoing at the time of the inspection.

Children looked after in this area

B At 22 February 2016, 336 children are being looked after by the local authority
(a rate of 87.2 per 10,000 children). This is an increase from 280 (70 per
10,000 children) at 31 March 2015.

— of this number, 245 (or 72.9%) live outside the local authority area

— 31 live in residential children’s homes, all of whom live outside the
authority area

— one lives in a residential special school® outside the authority area

— 238 live with foster families, of whom 65.1% live outside the authority
area

— five live with parents, of whom two live outside the authority area
— 77 children are UASC.

[ In the last 12 months:

— there have been 18 adoptions

— 25 children became subjects of special guardianship orders

3 These are residential special schools that look after children for 295 days or less per year.




Ofsted

114 children ceased to be looked after, of whom 5.3% subsequently
returned to be looked after

21 children and young people ceased to be looked after and moved on to
independent living

no children or young people ceased to be looked after and are now living
in houses of multiple occupation.

Page 66



Ofsted

Recommendations

1. Ensure that accurate performance data is analysed and that this leads to
specific actions for improvement.

2.  Strengthen oversight, coordination and quality assurance of early help services
to ensure that children and families are receiving the right support at the right
time.

3. Ensure that assessments and plans for children are of a consistently high
quality.

4. Improve the offer of return home interviews to children and young people who
have been missing from home or care to increase take-up of these interviews.

5. Ensure that more children are supported to participate in, and contribute to,
their meetings, conferences and reviews, that they and their parents have
access to reports beforehand, and that meeting minutes are circulated
promptly.

6. Ensure that robust arrangements are in place to reduce the need for children
and young people to become looked after in an emergency.

7. Ensure that the recruitment of foster carers is appropriately targeted, better to
meet the current and future demand for foster placements, and to reduce the
number of children looked after who have to be placed out of the borough.

8.  Ensure that personal education plans are of a consistently high standard and
that the virtual school monitors and analyses effectively the progress of all
children looked after, including those who attend schools outside of Thurrock.

9. Ensure that managers oversee and drive forward permanence plans for children
effectively.

10. Develop post-adoption support arrangements to ensure that all children and
families who are eligible have access to an appropriate service.

11. Ensure that an effective ‘staying put’ policy makes it possible for more young
people to live with their former foster carers beyond the age of 18 years.

12. Ensure that pathway assessments and plans are developed to engage care
leavers effectively, and that care leavers benefit from regular reviews.




13.

14.

15.

16.

Ofsted

Ensure that care leavers are supported to gain independence skills effectively,
including through the setting of aspirational targets to help them to achieve
educational and employment goals.

Secure a more stable workforce to ensure that children are able to build
enduring relationships with social workers and to enable the local authority to
drive through improvement to services, such as increasing early planning for
permanence for children that starts at the front door.

Ensure and demonstrate that children’s and families’ views and feedback are
used well to shape service developments.

Regularly audit supervision files to ensure that frequency and quality of
supervision are resulting in improved practice.

10

Page 68



Ofsted

Summary for children and young people

B Services to children and families in Thurrock require improvement. This means
that the local authority has not maintained the quality of services since its last
inspection in 2012, when services were judged to be good.

B Managers do not effectively use the information that they have about the
performance of children’s social care to understand what is going well or less
well, or to help them to plan relevant improvements to services.

B Early help to children and their families is often helpful when only one service is
involved. However, when children’s needs are more complex and several
services need to be involved to help them, these services do not always work
well together to provide effective help to children.

B Most children who need a social worker are properly referred for this service.
However, there are a small number of children who experience increasing levels
of need and risk, and are not referred for a social work service quickly enough.

B The council set up a new team in 2014 to manage referrals for children: the
multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH). This team is doing some very good
work. There is a range of professionals from different agencies within this team
and they work closely together to share information and make good decisions
about who should be working with children and families to meet their needs.

B Children who need immediate protection are seen quickly, and professionals
work well together to make sure that any immediate risk is reduced. For those
children who are in need, there is often a delay in seeing their social worker.

B The quality of assessments and plans for children, including those in need of
protection, those who are looked after and care leavers, are not good enough.
Managers do not monitor social workers and the progress of plans well enough,
which means that there is sometimes a delay in things changing for the better
for children and their families.

B The vast majority of teenagers receive a good service from the adolescents
team. They have detailed assessments of need and effective plans.

B Younger children looked after are doing better at school, but most teenagers
looked after are not supported to achieve good grades in their GCSEs.

B Although improving, there is still some delay for children who are being
adopted.

B Managers have worked well to make sure that children who are at risk of child
sexual exploitation receive a good service that reduces their risk.

B When children have been missing, return home interviews help them to talk
through any issues. However, not all children receive an interview.

B Thereis a Children in Care Council, but managers and politicians need to do
more to make sure they listen to the children and care leavers of this council.

Page69
11



Ofsted

The experiences and progress of
children who need help and Requires improvement
protection

Summary

Early help commissioned services are effective and underpinned by a
comprehensive early help commissioning strategy. However, oversight and
monitoring of early help is not fully developed, so not all children and families
receive early intervention and coordinated services at the time that they need it.
Thresholds across early help and children’s social care are not always applied
appropriately, leading to delays in a small number of children and families
receiving timely support.

Strong multi-agency partnership working ensures that urgent responses to protect
children are established through the multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH).
Contacts are progressed quickly and receive effective management oversight, and
appropriate consent is obtained from families.

The majority of social work intervention for children in need requires improvement.
There are some examples of more positive practice, but this is inconsistent across
the service. Weaker practice is particularly evident in assessments, planning and
driving change for children. High caseloads and frequent changes in staff in some
teams have had an impact upon relationships with children and families. For a
minority of children, this means that change to meet their needs or reduce risk is
not always timely or sustained.

A few children experience delays in being seen for an assessment of their needs.
Feedback and advocacy for children and young people are not routinely used, and
not enough children are supported to attend meetings. Plans are neither
proactively driven forward to improve outcomes nor specific enough for families to
know how to improve their circumstances.

Risks relating to child sexual exploitation are responded to well, and risk
assessments tools are used effectively to reduce risks to children. Responses to
children missing are inconsistent. Not all children receive a return home interview,
and records from these are not always uploaded into children’s records. When
completed, return home interviews are of good quality.

While there is detailed oversight of individual children missing education and
children electively home educated, the local authority does not routinely analyse and
evaluate the data on them to respond to trends or to inform service development.

12 Page 70



Ofsted

Inspection findings

17.

18.

19.

20.

A comprehensive early help commissioning strategy is in place, and appropriate
early support is available for most children and families. This includes an
effective range of commissioned services which are leading to improved
outcomes for children and their families. Although all universal services are
signed up to the offer of early help across the local authority area, children’s
centres and health visitors currently underuse early help assessments to inform
their work with children and families. This means that they are not effectively
coordinating early support for children and their families with other agencies.

When children and families with more complex needs require a coordinated
early help response by more than one agency, there is some variability in
practice. For most children, the local authority’s early help team oversees these
cases effectively, providing support to lead professionals, and makes good use
of the multi-agency group (MAG) panels in the locality to clarify additional
support needs for children and their families, and to signpost relevant services.
For a small minority of children, there is insufficient monitoring and quality
assurance of the early help offer, which results in a lack of assessment and a
lack of a successful offer of help. The local authority recognises that
coordination and oversight of early help are an area for improvement. It is
currently exploring relevant options to achieve this (Recommendation).

Thresholds are understood, and are being appropriately applied in the large
majority of cases, which means that children’s and young people’s needs are
effectively risk assessed and their cases stepped up to children’s social care
when required. However, a small number of children do not receive the right
help at the right time, or help that is proportionate to their needs and risks.
During this inspection, a small number of cases were raised where children
would have benefited from receiving a social work service rather than early
help. The local authority responded swiftly and robustly to ensure that these
children’s needs and risks were being appropriately recognised and addressed.
Parents spoken to by inspectors shared their frustration at not receiving support
in a timely way. Conversely, some children who could have received
appropriate support though provision of early help have received a statutory
service.

Effective step-down arrangements between children’s social care and early help
are not consistently in place. A lack of continuing oversight of children’s cases
that have been stepped down means that the local authority cannot be assured
that all children continue to receive services that promote their welfare via early
help after closure to children’s social care. During this inspection, no children

N 71
aUC [

13



21.

22.

23.

24,

Ofsted

were identified to be at immediate risk of significant harm without services in
place to reduce risk and meet their needs.

The MASH provides a strong response to referrals for early help, troubled
families and children’s social care. Contacts made using early help assessments
are variable in quality, with a minority lacking basic information that is needed
to inform decisions fully regarding the most appropriate response. For children
in need of protection, strategy meetings are identified swiftly and prioritised for
urgent action.

The troubled families programme in Thurrock is successful. All 360 families in
phase one were helped to turn around much earlier than the target deadline.
Managers have set a target to build upon existing success, with a further 1,160
families being helped by 2020. Recently, a frontline troubled families worker
has been based in the MASH to identify eligible families actively and to make
sure that they receive a timely response. The proactive way in which the local
programme is prioritising children with child protection and child in need plans
is providing additional practical support to these most complex families.

Strong multi-agency performance and information sharing has enabled the
MASH to respond to 96% of contacts within 24 hours over the past six months.
Good use is made of risk assessment tools and children’s family history,
alongside clear management oversight and direction in all cases. Professionals
obtain appropriate consent from families and, where the need for consent is
overruled for the protection of children, the reasons for this are clearly
recorded. Appropriate feedback following contact is provided to referrers in
order to share the actions taken to promote children’s welfare. An experienced
and stable emergency duty team ensures that immediate responses to
safeguard children out of office hours are effective. The MASH has a good
reputation with professionals, who praise the holistic approach taken in
responding to children’s needs, the advice available to professionals and the
range of information collated to help inform decisions to safeguard children.

When children need protecting, strategy meetings are timely and include
professionals from an appropriate range of agencies. Development of the MASH
has helped to secure routine engagement from health and police professionals
in strategy meetings. This means that intelligence about risks to children is
shared effectively, and demonstrates a real shared ownership of decisions to
keep children safe. In a small number of cases, not all key professionals
participated in strategy discussion to inform decision making, although minimal
impact on decision making for individual children was seen during this
inspection. However, the large majority of children in need experience a delay

14

Page 72



25.

26.

27.

28.

Ofsted

in being seen after allocation by children’s social care, including after a step up
from early help. Additionally, some teams have high caseloads and have had
many changes of staff, which means that not all children and families were able
to develop trusting relationships with workers.

The large majority of child protection investigations are thorough, timely and
informed by information gathered from relevant professionals and children’s
histories. Children are seen, and parental involvement and views are
appropriately obtained. Responses to safeguard children are proportionate to
risks identified, and effective actions are taken to ensure their safety and
welfare.

Developments to safeguard children at risk of female genital mutilation, as part
of a Department for Education-funded innovation project, are beginning to
improve awareness of this safeguarding issue across agencies. Referrals to the
MASH have increased since December 2015, but further awareness raising is
needed to ensure that all children who may be at risk of female genital
mutilation in the local authority area are identified and appropriately supported.

Assessments of children’s needs, risks, strengths and wishes vary in content
and quality. Most assessments do not identify the impact of risks or family
history for children well, and only a minority fully explore the child’s experience.
Consideration of identity, diversity and cultural needs, or how these can
increase children’s vulnerability, is inconsistent, and these needs are identified
only in a small minority of assessments. These include assessments completed
for children with disabilities, where evidence that social workers know the
children well is not always clear and the impact of disability on children’s
identity is not fully addressed. Too few assessments contain the views of
children. Their experiences do not routinely inform decisions made for them.
Although there are systems in place to review the progress of assessments,
these are not robust. A lack of management oversight contributes to drift in
achieving change for a minority of children (Recommendation).

Child protection conferences are well attended by relevant agencies and include
positive multi-agency engagement. Families do not always receive child
protection reports in time to be able to prepare adequately for meetings, and
advocacy is not routinely accessed for those families that would benefit from
additional support. Children’s assessments are used for initial and review
conference reports, but do not always clearly record what changes and actions
have been taken or progressed to safeguard children. The local authority is
reviewing this, but a new process is not yet in place (Recommendation).

AN 772
aUC 9

15



29.

30.

31.

32.

Ofsted

Child in need and child protection plans do not consistently address children’s
needs and are variable in detail. Half the plans seen require improvement to
ensure that clear outcomes are identified and specific outcome targets set for
individual children. In a small minority of cases, poor management oversight
has led to drift in plans being progressed, and they are not updated following
reviews. Few plans seen by inspectors showed evidence of strong management
oversight and direction. However, core groups are held regularly, and are
appropriately attended by parents and the relevant professionals in order to
review and progress plans. When cases transfer between teams, risk
assessment tools are appropriately used to identify actions, and appropriate
challenge by managers is evident (Recommendation).

Positive and focused work with most teenagers and their families is completed
by the adolescents team. This includes effective use of the child sexual
exploitation risk assessment and adolescent neglect tool, when relevant, to
support young people in need, including those in need of protection. Clear,
directive and creative plans help professionals to prevent family breakdown and
provide effective direct work with young people.

At the time of inspection, 263 children were subject to child protection plans,
which is a substantial increase from the 201 who were subject to a plan at 31
March 2015. Managers have explored the reasons for this increase and
appropriately identify that it is in response to stepping-up cases where no
meaningful change or reduction of risk for children was being achieved at the
child in need level. During this inspection, no children were found to be subject
to child protection plans who did not require this level of statutory intervention.

At the time of this inspection, there were 125 children subject to child
protection plans due to risk of emotional abuse, 120 due to neglect, six due to
risk of physical abuse and 12 due to risk of sexual abuse. The local authority
removed the category of multiple abuse by the end of January 2016 after a
review revealed that the category was masking information regarding the risk
of sexual abuse. This led to an increase in children who were subject to child
protection plans for risk of sexual abuse, from 1% to 5%, since March 2015.
There has also been an increase in the use of the category of emotional abuse,
from 26% to 48% in the same period. The local authority is appropriately
reviewing this in order to gain a fuller understanding of the issues leading to
this increase. Effective child protection surgeries with senior managers are held
in order to review progress and to reduce risk for children who have been
subject to child protection plans for a nine-month period or longer. The
additional oversight provided by these surgeries has helped the local authority

16

Page 74



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Ofsted

safely to manage down the number of children remaining on child protection
plans for over two years.

Social workers recognise and respond well when children are at risk of sexual
exploitation. Good use is made of the pan-Essex risk assessment tool to identify
those who are most at risk. This leads to strategy meetings for those with
complex needs to share information and to develop a strong, coordinated,
multi-agency response for individual children. The child sexual exploitation
coordinator provides social workers and managers with effective challenge,
advice and guidance. Although the local authority currently keeps separate data
in respect of children missing from home, school or care, and those at risk of
child sexual exploitation, the operational risk assessment group rigorously
cross-checks data against the most recent list of children reported as missing to
the police to ensure that individual children are safeguarded and protected.
However, the group is not using data collected from return home interviews to
inform planning for these vulnerable children.

Appropriate referrals are made to a commissioned service to deliver return
home interviews, but the large majority of children decline the offer of a return
home interview after they have been missing. When they are completed, the
return home interviews are rich in information about the child’s life, home
circumstances, who their friends are and places where they like to go.
However, these records are not reliably uploaded to children’s local authority
records. This limits the potential use of this information to plan actively to
reduce risk for children and young people (Recommendation).

The local authority has developed a range of good initiatives to help children
and young people, including children looked after, to keep themselves and
others safe from issues such as from bullying and online grooming. Successful
projects such as ‘Show racism the red card’ are used in schools to deliver key
messages about hate crime and ‘Prevent’. An e-safety project has reached a
number of troubled families, helping to make parents aware of potential
dangers online.

A consultant practitioner provides expert advice to social workers in supporting
children and families where parental substance misuse or mental health issues
are a feature. This includes advice on hair strand tests and reports for court
processes, to ensure that all risks to children are appropriately identified.

Children and young people aged five to 16 years who are experiencing
domestic abuse within their families have access to domestic abuse support
groups that are innovative, fun and creative. These groups support children to
understand their rights, protect themselves and learn new skills. Appropriate

rayc rJ

Danp 70
17



38.

39.

40.

41.

Ofsted

referrals are made to the multi-agency risk assessment conference (MARAC),
where positive attendance, engagement from a range of agencies and clearly
recorded safety plans ensure that effective actions are in place to protect
children and adults.

Homeless 16 and 17 year olds who are identified as vulnerable or living in
unsuitable accommodation are effectively assessed, and provided with
accommodation if they are found to be in need. Those young people who do
not wish to become looked after are appropriately supported through a joint
protocol between housing and children’s social care for homeless young people.
They are provided with expert mediation from the homeless intervention
project to assist them to return home, or they are provided with hostel
accommodation with additional support from a commissioned provider. Bed and
breakfast accommodation has not been used for the past two years.

There are 79 children missing education, including those who are in alternative
education but not receiving their full 25 hours per week offer, with the number
being reduced each month. A rigorous system is in place to monitor children
missing education, and effective monthly strategic meetings on children missing
education involve key professionals and their managers to focus on all children
missing education. The local authority assures itself that children have a
suitable school place and are confirmed as attending before it ceases its
monitoring. Vulnerable children, including unaccompanied asylum-seeking
children and those in Years 10 and 11, are discussed at detailed monthly
inclusion panels. Here, the headteachers of secondary schools explore who can
provide the best place for each individual child.

There are currently 173 Thurrock children who are electively home educated.
The local authority actively reviews all children who are electively home
educated at the monthly strategic meetings on children missing education. This
includes checking the information that they hold to ensure that children are not
at risk and that they have been seen, and to identify when a conflict with
school can be resolved. A ‘traffic light’ system is used to flag families on this list
that may need additional support. The local authority does not sufficiently
analyse and evaluate the data about children missing from education and those
who are electively home educated to find out if there are particular trends, for
example if numbers are increasing or decreasing, or to consider fully why this
may be (Recommendation).

Notifications about private fostering arrangements are responded to within
statutory timescales and, in the large majority of cases, are subject to robust
scrutiny to ensure that children are safe. Children are seen and visited

18

Page 76



42.

43.

Ofsted

frequently, with their views and wishes recorded in private fostering
assessments. Neither proactive engagement with community faith groups nor
awareness raising with professionals and the public have increased
notifications. These are very low, and only two children are currently being
supported as privately fostered children.

The local authority’s response to allegations against professionals working with
children are effective and timely. Referrals and management planning meeting
minutes clearly record risks to children and the actions to be taken. All planning
meetings are well attended by appropriate agencies in order to share relevant
intelligence and information, and to ensure that children are protected. Officers
efficiently track the progress of investigations and plans.

The 'Prevent’ duty has a high profile in Thurrock as a result of cooperative
working relationships through the community safety partnership. Multi-agency
working is supported by a clear ‘Prevent’ strategy and a thorough action plan
that has recently been refreshed. A helpful practitioner guide for direct work
with young people was used well with 14 young people in the past year. An
excellent equality impact assessment underpins the ‘Prevent’ agenda. There is
strong collaboration between agencies, including the Local Safeguarding
Children Board (LSCB).

19



Ofsted

The experiences and progress of
children looked after and achieving Requires improvement
permanence

Summary
Greater persistence is required to translate senior managers’ goals into improved

outcomes for all children looked after. Most become looked after in an emergency,
including unaccompanied asylum-seeking children (UASC). The recruitment of
foster carers needs to be better targeted. The fact that most children looked after
live outside of the borough is having a significant impact on social work time,
energy and resources. This is contributing to the generally poor quality of
assessments and plans. Children’s electronic case files are often incomplete. Family
group conferences are not used fully, and the use of the public law outline is not
consistently well recorded. The quality of pre-proceedings letters is variable.
Assessments completed in support of care or adoption proceedings are generally of
a good standard. The length of care proceedings has been reduced, and most are
completed within 26 weeks. Good use of special guardianship is providing long-
term stability for children and young people.

Most children live in settled and stable placements, but the staying put policy is not
yet successful in achieving stability for young people post-18. Good attention is
paid to children’s health and emotional well-being. Reviews are regular, but
children and families do not routinely see social workers’ reports beforehand, and
there are significant delays in distributing review meeting minutes. Not enough is
done to support children to contribute to and participate in their reviews. Children
looked after who are at risk of sexual exploitation receive effective help. The
response for children who have been missing is inconsistent, and one in five are
not offered an interview to explore their issues. The virtual school is not effectively
evaluating the educational progress of children looked after. While the gap in
attainment between younger children looked after and their peers is narrowing,
very few young people looked after achieve five good GCSEs.

Adoption is not routinely considered at the earliest opportunity for all children who
cannot safely return home. Once children have a plan for adoption, timely progress
is made in recruiting and matching them with adoptive families. Further work is
required to improve the volume and range of post-adoption support.

Assessments of care leavers’ needs and subsequent plans are not sufficiently
detailed and their style does not engage young people. Not all care leavers are
supported to gain relevant independence skills. Care leavers do benefit from good
day-to-day support, live in safe and suitable accommodation and the number of
care leavers engaged in education, employment or training has increased.

20 Page 78



Ofsted

Inspection findings

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

Children become looked after when risks increase and they need to be
safeguarded and protected. The local authority responds positively to the needs
of unaccompanied asylum-seeking children (UASC), who currently account for
23% of the children looked after population. However, too many children come
into care in an emergency. These include UASC, for whom it is often not
possible to forward plan. However, emergency placements are potentially
traumatic for children and undermine the local authority’s ability to match them
with suitable placements (Recommendation).

The number of children looked after has increased from 280 at 31 March 2015
to 336 at the time of this inspection. In a small number of cases, inspectors
saw evidence of the local authority having missed the opportunity to prevent
family breakdown because it had been slow to intervene. However, when the
vast majority of children return home, robust arrangements are put in place to
ensure that they are appropriately safeguarded and protected.

The local authority is making extensive use of the public law outline, but this is
not always well recorded, and the quality of pre-proceedings letters is variable.
Some letters identify issues and concerns clearly and concisely, and explain in
plain and simple language what needs to change. Others are over-complicated
and include jargon and acronyms, which makes them less easy for parents to
understand.

The creative potential of family group conferences (FGCs) to explore and
develop family-based solutions is not being fully realised. FGCs are only used in
cases where the public law outline has commenced, and there is a waiting list
for this service. As a result, when cases come to court the local authority
frequently finds itself under pressure to complete multiple viability assessments.

In the last nine months, the weekly threshold panel has become increasingly
influential in overseeing potential placement decisions for children looked after.
However, it does not retrospectively review all emergency placements, and this
limits the local authority’s ability to learn from these cases in order to reduce
the number of children who become looked after in an unplanned way
(Recommendation).

The majority of assessments require improvement. Inspectors observed delays
in starting assessments, particularly in the case of UASC and older assessments
that had not been updated. Assessments completed in support of care or
adoption proceedings are generally of a much better standard. Almost all are

nrn 70
aUC rJ

21



50.

51.

52.

53.

Ofsted

timely, take good account of historical issues and concerns, and are strong on
analysis (Recommendation).

In the majority of cases, children are seen alone by their social worker, the
views and experiences of the child are well recorded, and there is good
observation and analysis of children’s behaviour and interactions, and
purposeful direct work. In a minority of cases, there is evidence of poor
recording, lack of focus, historic gaps in the pattern of regular statutory visits
and, in the case of UASC, delays between children becoming looked after and
being seen by a social worker. In 2015, high staff turnover made it difficult for
children and young people to build and maintain meaningful relationships with
their social workers, and this contributed to drift and delay. According to foster
carers, since then the appointment of a number of newly qualified social
workers with protected caseloads has made a significant difference. Improved
stability of social workers within the children looked after social care teams now
means that frequent changes of social workers are now the exception rather
than the norm.

Until very recently, social workers have not been sufficiently proactive in
identifying children, particularly those who are estranged from their families,
including UASC, who would benefit from having an independent visitor to
befriend, advise and support them during their time in care. Between April and
December last year there were 106 requests for advocacy support, all of which
were met. Currently, however, nearly half of children looked after who are old
enough to do so do not participate in or contribute to their reviews. The local
authority has also recognised that further work is required to ensure that
children and young people know how, and feel confident to, provide feedback
on the services that they receive (Recommendation).

While good understanding and awareness of child sexual exploitation, and the
need to safeguard and protect children who go missing from care, ensure that
risks are identified and assessed, one in five children looked after who go
missing are not offered a return interview. The local authority recognises that
this is not good enough and is appropriately planning to address the problem
(Recommendation).

Progress has been made in promoting the health and well-being of children
looked after, as evidenced by improved performance figures. For example,
dental checks are up from 84% in 2013—-14 to 93% in 2014-15, and in 2014—
15 86% of children looked after were to up to date with their immunisations
compared to only 57.8% the year before. However, confusion about referral
pathways and delays in completing the necessary paperwork mean that the

22

Page 80



54.

55.

56.

57.

Ofsted

timeliness of initial health assessments (IHA) is still a cause for concern. While
the issue is being actively addressed, as of 1 March 2016 approximately 20% of
children looked after who were eligible for an IHA assessment were waiting for
an appointment and a further 20% were waiting for the necessary paperwork
to be completed. This is not acceptable, particularly given the high number of
UASC who may not have had their health needs assessed for some time.

The local authority and its health partners are developing a more responsive
approach to the emotional well-being and mental health of children and young
people, including children looked after. Since 1 November 2015, children and
families are able to self-refer to a single point of contact. Here, they are offered
an effective weekday triage service resulting, for the most vulnerable, in an
immediate response from the crisis team, or, in the case of those whose needs
are less urgent, in timely clinic-based appointments. Six-weekly looked after
children surgeries, chaired by the head of service, make sure that, after initial
health assessments have been completed, the education and health needs of
children looked after are met.

Although 87% of children looked after attend a good school, the virtual school
does not consistently analyse and evaluate the information that it collects on
the educational progress of children looked after, particularly the 73% of
children looked after who attend schools outside of Thurrock
(Recommendation).

In 2014/15, 80% of children looked after reached a good level of development
at the end of the early years foundation stage (EYFS) and performed better
than their peers overall. During the same period, the number of children looked
after who attained a level 2B+ at key stage 1 in reading dropped to 70% and in
writing to 50%. However, the most recent, unvalidated data suggests an
improving picture at the end of key stage 2 with 89% of children looked after
making the expected two levels of progress between key stage 1 and key stage
2. Although slightly below the average for all Thurrock children, the gap in
attainment in reading, writing and mathematics at the end of key stage 2 is
closing. The corporate parenting committee has identified the attainment of
young people looked after at the end of key stage 4 as a cause for concern.
Very few young people achieve five A* to C grades, including maths and
English, at GCSE. The prediction that 15% of Thurrock young people looked
after would achieve five A* to C grades in 2015/16 has been reduced to a
prediction of 10%.

The quality of personal education plans (PEPSs) is not good enough. The better
ones include clear targets with measurable success criteria, and capture the

n 01
(@ N

LaVal
ayc

23



58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

Ofsted

child’s voice and foster carers’ views well. The minority that are less good lack
key information, include targets that are general rather than specific, and are
not always sufficiently individualised for brothers and sisters. While 90% of
compulsory school-aged children have a PEP, only 76% of those in Year 12,
and 69% in Year 13, have one (Recommendation).

When children looked after are missing education, prompt action is taken to
find a suitable school place for them. Currently, four school-aged children
looked after are missing education. Two of these are not in receipt of full-time
education and are accessing suitable alternative part-time provision or tutoring,
as part of agreed plans to support them back into full-time education as soon
as possible. For the remaining two children, the local authority is working
proactively to identify an appropriate education place.

Most children looked after live with families. Only 31 (9%) live in residential
care. A service level agreement with Essex County Council increases access to
foster placements within a reasonable distance of Thurrock. The local authority
is aware that it needs to improve long-term stability for children looked after,
but inspectors found that most children are living in settled placements.

The large majority of placements are of a good standard and are meeting
children’s needs. Good communication and liaison between carers, placements,
schools and social workers ensure that packages of support, sometimes
involving a range of different agencies, are well coordinated. Children looked
after are encouraged and supported to maintain contact with their birth
families, where applicable. In most cases, contact arrangements are clear,
appropriate and well recorded. Children looked after are encouraged and
supported to participate in social and leisure activities. However, while the local
authority has a formal scheme of delegation, it is not being used. In practice,
foster carers contact social workers for permission for children to participate in
everyday activities. This is wasteful of social workers’ time, unhelpful for carers
and potentially intrusive for children.

The quality of care plans varies considerably. Although most focus on
outcomes, the majority are over-lengthy and are neither sufficiently specific nor
measurable. This makes it difficult for children looked after to understand or
own their plans and, in some cases, contributes to drift (Recommendation).

The majority of reviews are timely, purposeful, well attended and well
recorded. Independent reviewing officers (IROs) are knowledgeable and
experienced, and know the children well. They are concerned by and continue
to challenge the fact that children and families do not routinely have the
opportunity to read social workers’ reports or view proposed changes to their

24

Page 82



63.

64.

65.

66.

Ofsted

care plans before their looked after reviews. This is disempowering as well as
disrespectful for children. Delays in circulating review meeting minutes are
contributing to drift and delay. They also mean that children looked after, and
those who are caring for them, do not have ready access to the decisions taken
and actions agreed at their reviews. The backlog, which is substantial, is due to
a combination of relatively high IRO caseloads and a lack of administrative
support, exacerbated by the number of children who are living out of borough
(Recommendation).

With refreshed marketing and publicity materials, the fostering team has
recently renewed its efforts to attract potential foster carers. In the absence of
any specific recruitment targets, the general focus is on increasing the number
of in-house foster carers who are able to foster older children, and brothers and
sisters together. It is too early to evaluate the full impact of the recruitment
campaign, but there is evidence of some success in recruiting new carers. The
number of expressions of interest in fostering have increased and, in October
2015, Thurrock had 96 fostering households, up from 85 in March 2015
(Recommendation).

Prospective foster carers are assessed thoroughly. In-house foster carers are
well supported, have good access to training and are subject to rigorous annual
household reviews. With training accredited by the University of Essex and
support from a clinical psychologist, a skilled group of therapeutic foster carers
provide high-quality placements for children who might otherwise need
residential care.

The quality of evidence and legal applications is generally good. Positive
working relationships with the Child and Family Court Advisory and Support
Service (Cafcass) and the judiciary are helping to drive down the average
length of care proceedings, which has fallen significantly. The large majority are
now completed within 26 weeks. This means that children do not have to wait
longer than necessary for key decisions to be made about their futures.

Achieving permanency is not always clear or straightforward for children, with
evidence of delays in some cases and plans being changed significantly in
others. In the absence of full engagement from the frontline teams to achieve
earlier permanence, the drive and ambition evidenced by middle and senior
managers is not yet consistently evident. Inspectors observed a lack of urgency
in some cases. The local authority continues to make good and effective use of
special guardianship orders (SGOs) to make it possible for children to live with
extended family members when it is not safe for them to return to live with

N QO
aUC OUOJ

25



67.

68.

69.

70.

Ofsted

their birth parents. In the last 12 months, 25 children became the subject of an
SGO.

Staying put arrangements, which enable care leavers aged 18 and over to
continue to live with their former foster carers, are not yet fully developed. Only
seven young people are living with their former foster carers as part of a
staying put arrangement. Lack of certainty about their future is a potential
source of anxiety for young people and their carers (Recommendation).

The generally poor quality of chronologies makes it difficult for children and
young people to understand their life stories. The quality of case records is
variable. Key documents including, for example, threshold panel minutes,
return home interviews and pre-proceedings letters are not consistently being
uploaded to the electronic case record system. This has significant implications
for children, if and when they choose to access their records.

A small but active Children in Care Council is having an impact. For example,
members of the council have been involved in the recruitment of social
workers, and in reviewing and refreshing the pledge. They are particularly
proud of having managed to secure a commitment from senior managers to
include passports, savings accounts and life story work within the new pledge.
However, disillusion has led to some young people leaving the Children in Care
Council. Currently, the council has very little contact with the many children
looked after who are living more than 20 miles outside the borough.

In the majority of cases, the service that children and young people receive is
sensitive to their individual needs and unique identities. However, social
workers are not always sufficiently creative or imaginative in overcoming
barriers to communicating with children with disabilities.

26

Page 84



Ofsted

The graded judgement for adoption performance is that it requires
improvement

71. Adoption is not always considered for all children looked after who are unable
to return home. There are initial delays in progressing plans, and early
opportunities to secure the child’s permanency arrangements have been
missed. Consequently, some children have lived with uncertainty for too long.
However, it is evident that permanency arrangements for children, either
through adoption or SGO, are progressed with a greater degree of urgency
once the case is transferred to the permanency team (Recommendation).

72. There has been an increase in the number of children being adopted in
Thurrock, from 13 in 2014-15 to 18 in the year to date. Managers are actively
working to raise the profile and consideration of adoption and permanence in
frontline teams through training, inter-team seminars and case tracking.
However, it is too early to see the impact. An adoption and permanency case-
tracking tool is also used to improve timely progression through children’s social
care to adoption. Its effectiveness is limited, as dates and details are not
included or updated for all children on the tracker to enable them to benefit
from this extra scrutiny.

73. The local authority is committed to pursuing adoption as an option for children
with complex needs, and has successfully secured adoptive placements for
children with disabilities or who have special needs, brother and sister
placements, and a young person in their teens. In the last year, the local
authority appropriately rescinded the decision of placement for adoption for one
child.

74. There has been an improvement in the length of time that children wait from
the date at which they enter care to when they are placed for adoption. For the
2012-15 three-year average this was 625 days, which is 85 days shorter than
the 2011-14 period (710 days). However, this figure, while showing a speedier
process, is greater than both the national average of 593 days and the
government target of 487 days. Similarly, after the court makes an order for a
child to be placed for adoption, the local authority now takes less time to place
the child in an adoptive family. For 2012-15, this was 186 days, which was 58
days shorter than the 2011-14 period. This is shorter than the national average
of 223 days, but longer than the government target of 121 days.

75. The positioning of the adoption family-finding social worker in the permanency
team has strengthened parallel planning. A greater sense of urgency is now

n O
OJ

LaVal
ayc

27



76.

77.

78.

79.

Ofsted

being applied to reduce the time that children have to wait before being
matched with a suitable family. The local authority has been proactive, and
currently 10 children are subject to placement orders and waiting for adoption.
One is still in the family-finding stage, six have already moved in with families
and three children are linked to prospective adopters, awaiting panel decisions
regarding the match.

Children are prepared well for adoption. A complete picture of the child, their
views and needs are captured well in child placement reports in order to
facilitate a positive match with prospective adopters. Detailed introduction
plans, although intense for carers, maintain a clear focus on the child. Well-
managed arrangements achieve a seamless transition for children into their
adoptive families. However, the lack of timeliness in completion of children’s life
story work in 2015 limited the effectiveness of this work.

The recruitment and assessment of potential adopters is thorough and rigorous,
and adheres to national regulations. All assessments, including prospective
adopter reports, are of a good standard, sufficiently detailed and informative.
Adopters spoken to described their experiences as ‘stressful’, ‘rewarding’ and
‘challenging’. However, prospective adopters waited between seven and 10
months for approval. There has been a lack of clear feedback to adopters
across all stages of the recruitment and assessment process, and adopters said
that this caused them unnecessary anxiety and stress.

The adoption panel is made up of representatives with relevant personal and
professional experience of adoption. The panel has appropriately identified
areas for improvement in relation to the quality of the medical contribution,
quality assurance and support. Improvements in these areas would help to
ensure that cases were better prepared for panel and avoid unnecessary delay.
The head of service, in his role as agency decision maker, provides oversight
and examination of panel information, and his decision-making is clear, concise
and timely.

The local authority completed a comprehensive appraisal of its adoption
services for children and has established a detailed action plan to address the
challenges for the service. For example, weaknesses include a lack of ‘foster to
adopt’ and concurrent placements, and the requirement of placements for
brothers and sisters and older children who do not match many of the
prospective adopters’ profiles. As a result, the recruitment, assessment and
approval of prospective adopters moved to a commissioned service in October
2015. Thurrock’s new and prospective adopters (eight approved, four at stage
two, three at stage one and 27 enquiries) have moved to the commissioned

28

Page 86



80.

81.

82.

Ofsted

provider, and this transition has been well managed. There is emerging
evidence of these new arrangements making a difference, with two children
and their prospective carers soon to be presented to panel for matching.

Potential adoptive families are provided with effective support when children
are first placed. However, once an adoption order has been secured, support is
less developed and the range of services are limited. Adoptive parents are not
clear about their future entitlements or what support could be available. Over
the past year, only 11 families have received post-adoption support, with eight
to 10 adults (total 20) attending bi-monthly group support sessions. Support
offered includes bereavement support, direct work with children, life story and
therapeutic play/work. The quality of this work is valued by the children and
adults, but the number receiving support is too low. Thurrock is not meeting its
responsibility to ensure that adoption support is available to all adoptive
children and their parents living in their area. Inspectors were informed of
seven adoption breakdowns for children who were previously adopted through
other local authorities but who now live in the borough and are the
responsibility of Thurrock. Workers with these young people failed to recognise
the need to refer them to the adoption support service or to offer specialist
adoption support, which they are entitled to (Recommendation).

The local authority provides an impressive support group for adoptive children.
This gives them the opportunity to meet regularly, share experiences, gain
confidence and learn from each other. Letterbox arrangements for 152 children
are in place and effective; birth parents and adoptive parents are supported to
maintain agreed levels of contact. Specialist support is also beginning to be
secured through good use of the adoption support fund. Since November 2015,
17 applications have been made, nine of which have been successful, primarily
for therapeutic counselling support. Five further requests are awaiting an
outcome. Adoption support for new carers will be provided by the new
commissioned provider. It is too early to evidence the impact of this new offer.

The local authority supports families with SGOs well and provides financial
support to 133 children’s special guardians at the same level as its foster
carers. Following the commissioned provider taking over the support of
adoptive carers, the adoption support service nhow has some capacity and has
extended its support offer to special guardianship carers and their families.
While it is still an emerging offer, the local authority successfully engaged 28
special guardians in a three-day workshop in March 2015, and it has a plan in
place to provide regular support groups for adult carers, children and young
people.

29



Ofsted

The graded judgement about the experience and progress of care leavers
is that it requires improvement

83. At the time of the inspection, the local authority was responsible for supporting
157 care leavers. Of these, 61 were aged 16 to 18, 92 were aged 19 to 21 and
four were over 21. Of these, 68 (43%) are unaccompanied young asylum-
seekers (UASC), which is a greater proportion than in previous years.

84. There has been a creative decision to place two after-care workers within the
targeted youth service, where their line manager and colleagues have great
experience of engaging young people in purposeful activities. This has led to a
significant improvement in the number of care leavers staying in education, or
entering employment or training. Currently, 62% of care leavers aged 19 to 21
are in employment, education or training, compared to 41% in March 2015
(which was lower than statistical neighbours at 51% and the England average
of 48%). Effective links have also been established with the local careers
centre. Care leavers state that the drop-in sessions at the local careers office
give them an insight into writing CVs and getting a job, which is very helpful.
However, the take-up and impact of this service is not monitored to evaluate
benefit and outcomes.

85. The local authority has appropriate plans in place to increase further the
number of care leavers engaged in education, employment and training,
through work with the Duke of Edinburgh’s Award scheme and Prince’s Trust.
To date, 10 care leavers have participated in a Duke of Edinburgh’s Award
scheme programme and just one in the Prince’s Trust, so this is still at an early
stage of development.

86. After-care workers have a tangible and clear commitment to the care leavers
whom they support. They frequently go beyond what they need to do in order
to support them. As a result, the local authority is regularly in touch with 89
(97%) of its current care leavers aged 19 to 21, a significant improvement from
2014-15 when the reported figure was 79%. Five care leavers were in custody
at the time of inspection. The local authority maintains regular contact with
these young people to ensure that appropriate plans can be made for their
release.

87. Regular contact with workers who know them well means that young people
know where and how to get help if they need it. They feel safe, and any
concerns or issues about their safety or well-being are taken seriously. All care
leavers who were spoken with as part of this inspection were aware of the risks

30 Page 88



88.

89.

90.

91.

92.

Ofsted

associated with sexual exploitation. Their workers know about their situations
and act promptly when required, such as in helping their care leaver when
faced with a situation of domestic violence or abuse.

Assessment records are too formulaic and are not presented in a user-friendly
format. The majority of pathway plans do not use the views of care leavers in
planning targeted next steps or to suggest how improvements can be made.
Young people told inspectors that they lose interest when developing and
reviewing their plans, saying that they stay involved in meetings because they
like, and do not want to offend, their workers (Recommendation).

Plans are not reviewed with sufficient regularity, due to capacity issues within
the after-care team. Crucially, plans and reviews neither record longer-term
aspirations nor adequately capture educational achievements and next steps
that might encourage or motivate young people to attain qualifications or to
broaden their horizons. For example, reviews are not suggesting possibilities for
apprenticeships at different levels and where these can lead. Information about
staying-on rates in school sixth forms and the numbers of those who enter
further education or training are not systematically collected. This limits further
planning and improvement to help young people make effective transitions
through adulthood (Recommendation).

Care leavers receive prompt and helpful support for their health and well-being
needs, and they know how to access medical help. They receive effective help
from a range of services such as counselling, and mental health and sexual
health services. They receive good personal support at times of need, and their
workers encourage and coax them to persevere. The local authority has
invested in a health app to give care leavers access to their health histories.
Although this is a promising development, it is not known how many care
leavers are using this new technology.

Support is limited for care leavers to develop skills for their transition to greater
levels of independence. There are currently no groups for care leavers to
support them in developing their independent living skills, although work is
undertaken on an individual basis. Care leavers are provided with appropriate
information, for example when applying for driving licences or passports. The
progress in implementing the ‘staying put’ policy to maintain stability of
accommodation and care has been too slow (Recommendation).

The large majority of care leavers (92%), including all those who have special
educational needs or a disability, live in suitable accommodation. Full checks
are made to ensure that accommodation is safe and that young people feel
secure. Additionally, managers carry out spot checks effectively to be assured

ayc oJ

Danp QQ
31



93.

94.

95.

Ofsted

that agreed measures are being followed by accommodation providers. Close
attention is paid to making sure that UASC are housed where they are safe and
can access services to help them, such as proximity to colleges to learn English.

The local authority gives priority and appropriate help to care leavers when
they seek their own accommodation. However, further work is required to
ensure that the process for securing local authority tenancies becomes more
young person friendly. If issues arise over tenancies, such as rent arrears or
unsocial behaviour, workers promptly intervene to minimise disruption, and to
make sure that the care leaver learns from the error or misbehaviour and can
be rehoused promptly.

Care and support for the 18 care leavers with disabilities are effective. They
have clear pathway assessments and plans, and benefit from much stability. All
are in suitable accommodation, with nine in residential accommodation and
nine in foster care. The majority have high needs and attend two local special
schools graded as outstanding by Ofsted.

Care leavers understand their rights and entitlements, and know what support
they can expect from their workers. They told inspectors that this is achieved
more successfully through personal contact with their workers than through the
written information available about their entitlements, which they described as
uninteresting and not engaging. Care leavers, including those with special
educational needs or who have a disability, receive a care-leaving grant which
helps them to settle into living more independently. The local authority
celebrates the achievements of care leavers positively at an annual awards
ceremony.

32

Page 90



Ofsted

Leadership, management and

governance Requires improvement

Summary

Leadership, management and governance require improvement in Thurrock, because
many elements of core business do not deliver consistently good services to children,
young people and families. Performance management is unsophisticated. Key data is
not sufficiently analysed to provide leaders and managers with a narrative to
understand the underlying issues or trends over time, and thereby develop relevant
action plans. Of note is the absence of regular case audit analysis. This gap means
that an accurate understanding of the quality of practice and any differences
between teams or particular aspects of work is missed, and improvements over time
cannot be monitored.

The effectiveness of management oversight varies between teams, and this is an
area for improvement recognised by the local authority. Steps are being taken to
address this, with a number of panels and surgeries set up to ensure that cases are
kept on track, alongside the development of management training and initiatives.
However, the quality of supervision is not routinely scrutinised.

Strong partnership working is evident, alongside effective corporate and cross-party
support for the maintenance and development of services. Swift action has taken
place when improvements were identified. This is evident in the response to issues
raised during this inspection and the recent appointment of a new DCS.

Commissioning arrangements are robust, and based on a comprehensive analysis
and understanding of local needs. This has led to joint commissioning of new
services, and detailed scrutiny and evaluation of the effectiveness of services already
commissioned. Further work is needed by the local authority to ensure that there is a
sufficient range and choice of placements for children and young people, and that
specific targets are in place for the recruitment and retention of foster carers.

The local authority uses learning from a range of sources to develop practice, but it
does not gather feedback from children and families sufficiently or demonstrate how
it has been used to improve services.

The high number of agency staff and vacancy rates within the workforce have
prompted the local authority to set up a retention and recruitment board to give this
issue continued attention. The local authority is appropriately working with
neighbouring authorities to develop joint strategies to reduce instability in the
workforce, and has achieved some success in the longer-term teams.

nrnn Q1
aUC J L

33



Ofsted

Inspection findings

96.

97.

98.

Performance management and quality assurance in Thurrock are
underdeveloped. As a result, the local authority lacks a full understanding of the
effectiveness of its services to children and families. A range of performance
data is available, including a daily snapshot providing basic information such as
numbers of children subject to plans and a corporate scorecard, which provides
more detailed recording of monthly activity. However, while some documents
offer a narrative and analysis, there are too many key areas, such as return
home interviews for children who have been missing, in which data is not
analysed to consider the key themes behind the figures. The newly appointed
interim DCS quickly identified performance reporting and analysis as an area of
weakness, and is working with colleagues to develop a strategic model to
strengthen this critical area. Despite a regular programme of case auditing
within the local authority, the information from these audits has not been
evaluated and does not form the backdrop for an action plan. This means that
there is an overall lack of clarity about the quality of practice, or improvement
and trends over time (Recommendation).

Management oversight is not effective across all teams, contributing to
inconsistent service delivery. The local authority found that management
oversight was less than good in 85% of its own case audits for this inspection.
The majority of case supervision records are poor, where actions agreed are
not specific enough and workers are not challenged. This contributes to poor
quality assessments and delays in progressing plans for children. In the
minority of cases that were better, clear decision making is seen, which leads to
decisive actions to protect and promote the welfare of children and young
people, and to progress plans. When cases were referred by inspectors to the
local authority for a review of decision making and actions, these were dealt
with thoroughly and swiftly, and detailed action plans were immediately put in
place to meet children’s needs.

The local authority is aware of the variability of management oversight and is
taking steps to address this. Senior managers are chairing a number of panels
and surgeries to regain management grip, and to ensure that casework is
progressed. The local authority also provides specific management training
courses for new managers, and during 2015 three new managers received
mentoring. A managers’ forum is in place, and a new aspiring managers’
scheme is being developed to provide training and support for those moving
into management roles. This scheme is under development and its impact
cannot yet be seen. Staff spoken with during the inspection stated that their

34

Page 92



99.

100.

101.

102.

Ofsted

managers are supportive, know about the work they do, and are available to
offer advice and guidance when needed.

Senior local authority managers, leaders and elected members work effectively
together to promote services for children and families in Thurrock. Very clear
governance arrangements are established between the key committees and
groups, and there is active communication between board chairs, leaders and
officers of the council. There is full corporate support for the work of children’s
services, and this critical function is receiving appropriate focus and
prioritisation across the council. For example, through budget setting, leaders
have maintained funding for children’s services, and the local authority’s
planning department plays an active part in the Health and Wellbeing Board,
helping to promote healthy lifestyles for children.

Children’s social care receives strong cross-party support from elected
members. This engagement is enhanced through monthly meetings between
the chief executive and the lead for each political group to ensure that they are
informed of current issues. Senior leaders and officers engage in regular
discussions and meetings to ensure that key issues are communicated in a
timely manner. For example, the head of care and targeted outcomes meets
fortnightly with the lead member for children’s services to provide an overview
of key issues and progress of work undertaken. These meetings are
supplemented by more informal discussions when critical incidents occur
regarding the welfare of children or staff.

The chief executive and lead member have not held formal meetings over the
past six months to hold the chair of the Local Safeguarding Children Board
(LSCB) directly to account. However, this gap in meetings has had limited
impact during what has been a busy time for the LSCB, as there have been
numerous discussions between the LSCB chair, council leaders and officers
regarding the publication of the recent serious case review, and the DCS and
lead member regularly attends the LSCB. These activities have ensured
effective scrutiny and oversight of the work of the LSCB and the chair.

The successful Health and Wellbeing Board is at the centre of the local
authority’s work with children, with its strategy providing the overarching
framework for the children and young people plan (CYPP). This plan sets out
four clear aims, priorities and actions, and gives direction to the Children
Partnership Board in promoting and securing children’s welfare. Although the
Children Partnership Board could evidence its activity in a number of areas, it
was hot able to show readily the impact of its work or how this linked to the
CYPP.

nrnn Q2
aUC I

35



Ofsted

103. The vast majority of commissioning arrangements are robust and based on a
joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA), which provides a detailed analysis of
local needs. This has led to a clear commissioning strategy with seven priorities
linked to the CYPP. Joint commissioning between Thurrock, Southend and
Essex, alongside the seven Essex Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), has
been effective, for example with the recent commissioning of a children’s and
young people’s emotional well-being and mental health service. In addition,
examples of commissioned services within the early offer of help show these
services to be making a real difference to the lives of children and families.
Services such as those for alcohol and substance misuse, a domestic violence
perpetrator programme and a sexual violence service are well evaluated, and
contracts are regularly and robustly monitored. Monitoring arrangements
consider how far services are meeting performance indicators and improving
outcomes, whether they are achieving value for money and whether their work
is preventing statutory involvement for children. Service user feedback about
these services gives clear indications that individuals feel safer as a result of the
help that they have received, and that they better understand the impact that
their behaviours have on their children and young people.

104. While there is a good understanding of local needs, there is mismatch between
the needs of the children looked after population and the availability of suitable
placements to meet these needs. The sufficiency statement does not
adequately address this gap and does not contain an updated action plan. This
means that there are no set targets for the recruitment and retention of a
specific number and type of foster carers to meet the needs of children looked
after in Thurrock. Too many children are looked after in placements outside the
borough (Recommendation).

105. With strong leadership, the corporate parenting committee is successfully
driving improvements on a number of fronts, as evidenced by improved
performance figures on immunisations, health assessments, dental checks and
return home interviews, and better marketing and recruitment of foster carers.
Not afraid to challenge senior managers and leaders, the committee has also
listened to the Children in Care Council and is taking action on passports and
savings accounts for children looked after. The committee has further work to
do to ensure that members of the Children in Care Council feel valued for their
contributions, and also to continue to improve timeliness of initial health
assessments.

106. Councillors have a good understanding of children’s social care and their
corporate parenting role. However, this is limited due to the poor quality of
strategic analysis of performance information. All 49 councillors in Thurrock

36 Page 94



107.

108.

109.

Ofsted

have successfully completed induction training to aid their understanding of
children’s social care, and 17 have attended corporate training courses. In
addition, the lead member meets with the Children in Care Council, and elected
members sit on the fostering and adoption panels. However, councillors do not
ensure that they regularly engage with children and families to seek their views
to inform service development. A recent report to the corporate parenting
committee noted that opportunities for senior officers and councillors to attend
meetings have not been used, which means that chances to hear children’s
views have been missed (Recommendation).

The overview and scrutiny committee is an effective group, which has increased
its workload in order to consider a wide range of issues affecting children and
families. The chair ensures that meetings consider a broad spectrum of reports
and activities, while maintaining an open slot for the LSCB, Youth Cabinet or
health services to bring any matters requiring immediate attention. The group
is mindful of local authority spending and has sought evaluations of services
and reasons for the development of particular packages of care. It has
demonstrated its tenacity by repeatedly raising issues of concern arising from a
serious case review.

Leaders, managers and elected members have a broad understanding of the
service's strengths and weaknesses. Their self-assessment demonstrates a
good understanding of the quality of their services to children and families. The
local authority shows a willingness to assess its own performance and to bring
in external agencies to advise or take on improvement work to augment its
work. It has used independent scrutiny, such as a review of the MASH in 2015,
and has recently commissioned an external provider to help it to strengthen its
edge of care and early help services to seek to reduce the number of children
becoming looked after. The local authority demonstrates that it can be swift in
responding when change is identified. This was seen during the inspection in
the effective response to cases requiring review and the response to a question
from an inspector which led to the development of a leaflet for young people to
explain the troubled families programme.

The local authority actively disseminates learning from serious case reviews,
information about practice developments and national research through easy-
to-read monthly blogs by the principal social worker. The local authority
evidences learning from complaints, with clearly recorded learning logs which
set out lessons learned and recommended actions. These have been effective
and led to changes in practice, such as better arrangements for transporting
children with disabilities, and identification of managers’ actions to ensure that
work is completed when staff are off sick. Children’s and families’ views and

37



Ofsted

feedback are not routinely sought, limiting opportunities for them to inform
service development (Recommendation).

110. Despite a workforce development strategy, and a regular retention and
recruitment board, the high number of agency staff in Thurrock leaves the local
authority vulnerable to staff churn. Currently, half of the social workers
employed in Thurrock are agency staff (49 of 98 registered social workers).
Some children have experienced delay in progressing their assessments and
plans as a result of changes in their social worker. The vacancy rate at the time
of the inspection was 21%, which is a slight improvement from 25% at
December 2015. Some teams such as the MASH and Children Family and
Assessment Teams are predominantly staffed by agency workers, and the past
nine appointments have been agency staff. Staff changes mean that teams lack
cohesion, identity and resilience when challenges occur. Although this leaves
the local authority potentially vulnerable, 22% of agency staff have been in
post for over two years, and 51% between six months and one year, which
does provide some stability. Conversely, staffing stability has improved within
the longer-term teams, with the successful recruitment of a number of newly
qualified social workers. Thurrock is taking action and working collaboratively
with the 10 other local authorities in the eastern region in an attempt to limit
the number of agency staff by managing pay rates, and terms and conditions.
The impact of this measure is yet to be seen.

111. Caseloads for workers are increasing and are currently above comparators.
They have risen from an average of 16 cases for a full-time worker in 2014 to
18 in 2015, and some social workers currently have caseloads of up to 28,
which is too high. This will need further monitoring by the local authority, as it
will not assist the recruitment of permanent staff.

112. The continued professional development of staff is actively encouraged, with
clear pathways established from the assessed and supported year in
employment (ASYE) social workers through to management level. This focus on
staff development is a strength of the local authority. The ASYE academy is
reported by staff as attractive to newly qualified social workers and, to date, is
showing signs of success. An increasing number of newly qualified social
workers are joining the local authority (19 this year and 12 last year). They
receive relevant training through an increasingly effective academy, and they
receive valued individual and group support. Successful use is being made of
additional agency social work staff to ensure that caseloads for ASYEs remain
low during their first year. Succession planning is being well considered, with
the development of mentoring, senior practitioners as practice educators and
the current development of an aspiring managers’ scheme.

38 Page 96



Ofsted

113. A comprehensive training programme is available to staff, and over the past 12
months 390 days’ training have been presented across a range of relevant
subjects. Figures are collated for the number of staff attending, but the impact
of the training is not fully evaluated over time. Specific management training
courses are available, such as a management essentials course with a focus on
leadership style and priority setting. However, this area of training provision
requires additional focus, as management oversight and supervision of staff
remains too variable. Of 14 supervision files audited by inspectors, none were
judged good, only four demonstrated reflective supervision and only one
demonstrated follow up on previous actions. Despite the local authority’s
awareness of the variability of management oversight and the poor quality of
supervision, it is not completing a regular audit of the frequency and quality of
supervision. This leaves the local authority unclear about the performance of
individual managers and the impact of management training
(Recommendation).

39



Ofsted

The Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB)

The Local Safeguarding Children Board is good

Executive summary

The Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) in Thurrock is effective and
innovative, and has a clear understanding of the key safeguarding priorities across
partner agencies. A renewal of governance and terms of reference in 2015 has
brought helpful clarity and demonstrates continued progress, following a review of
the board in 2013. There is a clear collective ownership of safeguarding across all
partners, who are positively engaged in action and reflection to support children,
young people and their families. The board is chaired well by an influential chair who
both supports and challenges partners, and accountability is high. Strong and
efficient support is offered by a committed business team. Partners report clear and
collective responsibility, and a high degree of challenge, scrutiny and accountability.
This was described by one board member as ‘good transparency and honesty’.

Child sexual exploitation, female genital mutilation and ‘Prevent’ duty have a high
profile, with key leads from relevant agencies working effectively with the LSCB.
Elements of the work of the LSCB, such as the ‘Walk on line’ roadshows, are
outstanding, ensuring that over 10,000 schoolchildren will have received interactive
safeguarding workshops of a high quality. The children most at risk of going missing,
sexual exploitation, gang involvement and online exploitation are given
comprehensive multi-agency consideration. The effective risk assessment group
(RAG) demonstrates added safeguarding value. Capitalising on the high degree of
multi-agency commitment, it leads case discussion using live access to a range of
databases and expertise.

The board considers the range of experiences for children, young people and their
families. It has influenced the development of the MASH, the use of appropriate
categories for child protection plans and deep-dive audits. These have evaluated the
experiences of the most vulnerable, including those who have been on a child
protection plan for more than 12 months and children looked after. The chair has
challenged MARAC about the lack of a MARAC report to the LSCB for the past two
years. This limits the board’s ability to monitor the work of this critical multi-agency
safeguarding group effectively. The quality of the audits undertaken individually is
high, but they lack overarching analysis. The take-up of multi-agency training offered
is good, and participants and partners speak positively about the benefits. More
analysis is required to enable full understanding of the impact of the training offer.

40 Page 98



Ofsted

Recommendations

114. To improve further the strategic learning available from the multi-agency audits
through overarching evaluation and analysis of outcomes and impact.

115. To undertake a comprehensive evaluation of the training provided in order to
demonstrate the impact on frontline practice.

Inspection findings — the Local Safeguarding Children Board

116. The LSCB in Thurrock meets its statutory requirements well. Governance
arrangements were refreshed in 2015, leading to new terms of reference which
provide a strong framework for the work of the board. This is also supported by
a helpful protocol between the Health and Wellbeing Board, and both the
children and adult safeguarding boards.

117. The LSCB works closely with other relevant boards and panels, and has ensured
that it has access, either as a member or through an open offer of attendance,
at the appropriate groups in order to influence planning. This includes either
the LSCB chair or business manager sitting on the Health and Wellbeing Board
and the separate health and well-being strategic group, and the community
safety partnership group where the ‘Prevent’ duty is considered, the Children
Partnership Board and the early offer of help, MASH and troubled families
groups. The LSCB business team apprentice sits on the Youth Cabinet. This
enables fully integrated planning and detailed links back to the LSCB executive
group and the LSCB full board. A positive action that came from the Children
Partnership Board ensured that each school was provided with a height and
weight profile to address childhood obesity.

118. The board is able to prioritise and challenge effectively, according to local need,
and in the last 12 months has shown impact through increasing the police
attendance at child protection conferences. Between April and November 2015,
police attended 18 out of 87 initial case conferences. At the time of this
inspection, this had increased to attendance at 96% from April 2015 for all
conferences. Other recent challenging conversations have focused on the need
for equity of funding and an overall increase in funding to manage the increase
in serious case reviews (SCRs), oversight of the development of the child sexual
exploitation local strategy and action plan, and ensuring the board’s proactive
involvement in the development and analysis of the MASH. There is a clear
business plan for the work of the board, and an action plan appropriately

o Q0
JJI

LaVal
ayc

41



Ofsted

reflects key local priorities, including missing children, protection from abuse
and exploitation, and the early offer of help.

119. Challenge within the board is strong, with agencies held to account through the
main board, and the chair demonstrating a strong and assertive style. Partners
are challenged collectively through themed discussions at the full board, for
example each agency’s performance relating to listening to the voice of the
child, and the impact of funding constraints and restructuring in individual
organisations. This was particularly helpful in enabling probation to explain the
transformation of their agency. The police identified a gap in following up with
comprehensive victim support in the discussion about the voice of the child.

120. There is a clear challenge to make improvements, if needed, in individual
agencies, and the chair demonstrates a strong challenge to the performance of
partners. One partner agency described this as ‘open, honest. We can fight,
disagree and still be okay with each other’. There have been recent challenges
to the police, for example, on the speed of their response to actions required by
agency-specific inspections. The chair has also challenged when there has been
poor attendance at subgroups and the lack of a report from MARAC for the past
two years. This has still not been produced. The board challenged children’s
social care on the low use of sexual abuse as a category in child protection
plans and on whether this fitted the anecdotal knowledge of risks to
adolescents. This has resulted in an increase in the age profile of child
protection plans to safeguard those at risk of child sexual exploitation. The
number of 10 to 15 year olds on a child protection plan has risen from 24% to
31%. At the time of the inspection, 12 children (5%) had an open plan for
sexual abuse. Numbers were previously suppressed, due to the low figure.

121. The work of the board is supported by the work of the management executive
group, where the detail of operational issues and concerns is appropriately
considered. As an example, the November 2015 meeting considered the
decrease in private fostering figures, the multi-agency review of child sexual
exploitation, a report from the youth offending service, risks of legal highs and
the planning for feedback from the new child protection level 3 pilot training
programme.

122. The performance board subgroup started in March 2015, enabling each partner
agency to attend and present data on the safeguarding work of their agency.
This is scrutinised by other board members, including the LSCB chair. This has
provided in-depth information on the broad range of functions of each agency.
This has led to peer challenge and an opportunity for detailed questioning,
including, for example the caseloads of midwives, and training on child sexual

42 Page 100



Ofsted

exploitation and female genital mutilation for fire, rescue and ambulance
services. Board members spoke highly of the learning afforded by the
performance board, the impact on understanding partner functions and the
rigour of challenge.

123. Section 11 assessments are undertaken annually, and the board flexibly accepts
the different formats used by agencies in acknowledgement that many agencies
report to three LSCBs within the pan-Essex arrangements. Compliance is high,
with very good progress made at the time of this inspection for the end-of-year
submission. The board maximises the potential from the returns, and recently
(spring term 2016) added a ‘Prevent’ audit to the school returns. This has
enabled specific data to be extracted and used to inform the ‘Prevent’ duty
action plan. A gap in training for school governors was identified and is now
being met, with some training having already taken place and more planned.

124. The board has developed a helpful learning and improvement framework with
statutory partners. The LSCB carefully considers whether a SCR is required, and
demonstrates a strong commitment to learn and improve practice. Over the
past three years, this has resulted in the board completing two SCRs, and it is
currently in the process of completing a further three. Correct decisions have
been made to explore learning through the rigorous SCR journey, resulting in
added value to the understanding of safeguarding practice.

125. The SCR subgroup is an effective group and has appropriately checked with the
national panel to reach decisions to proceed when there has been a split
decision among the subgroup members. The SCRs are undertaken thoroughly
and published on the website, and learning is disseminated widely. All of the
SCRs and the one individual management review showed appropriate learning
and led to a reconsideration of risk. For example, the adolescent neglect tool
came from this learning, as did the reconsideration of child sexual exploitation
as an increased area for a child protection plan for adolescents. It is clear from
this inspection that support to adolescents from the local authority has
improved. The majority of social workers are aware of the key issues from the
most recent published SCRs. The board also produces excellent summary
booklets to maximise learning, with a well-presented high-quality product.

126. If a decision is made that a SCR is not required, but that there are lessons for a
single agency, then the board undertakes a management review. One such
review has appropriately been undertaken and published in relation to
fabricated illness, showing openness in the learning for health partners. All
action plans are thoroughly followed up through an action matrix, and the chair
presented one SCR to the local authority’s overview and scrutiny committee.

k|
|V

PV Pa il |
aUC AL

43



Ofsted

127. The financial position of the board has been stretched, with challenges to
ensure an equitable contribution from one pan-Essex partner and, additionally,
to meet the need for SCRs. The number of SCRs has put added pressure on
time and resources. The majority of partner agencies make a proportionate
financial contribution overall, and the chair requested a review with one agency
when this was not the case, and a constructive solution was found. All agencies
have agreed to add finance to the board to meet the demands of the SCRs.

128. All partner agencies are committed to the board, and contribute time and
resources to ensure that it functions effectively. The chair is very clear with
partners that board business is part of everyone’s work. Suitably senior and
influential partner representatives attend the board, and are able to take back
lessons and challenges to their individual agencies. This has been challenged by
the chair previously to ensure that appropriate membership is now in place.
Subgroups are chaired across a range of partner agencies, reflecting the
collective ownership of the work of the board.

129. The LSCB in Thurrock benefits from being part of the Southend, Essex and
Thurrock (SET) shared arrangements, including shared policies and procedures
updated and available on the Thurrock LSCB website. Policies and procedures
are clear, accessible and easy to understand. Shared resources offer an
economy of scale between the three LSCBs as shown through the recent ‘I
didn’t know’ child sexual exploitation awareness campaign and sharing of local
expertise, including the strategic SET child sexual exploitation group and a
strategic SET child death review overview panel (CDOP) group. Child death
overview arrangements are effective, and there are strong rapid response
protocols in place. The number of notifications in Thurrock have remained
consistent over the last three years (10 in 2013-2014, nine in 2014-2015 and
nine in the year to date).

130. The Southend, Essex and Thurrock group enables collective pan-Essex learning
to be analysed for appropriately focused awareness-raising campaigns. These
have included safer sleeping, furniture safety and water safety. The current
pan-Essex focus is on suicide prevention, with relevant planning underway
using specialist mental health practitioners. There is a very strong commitment
and attention to detail in the work undertaken by CDOP. For example, the safer
sleeping campaign is launched every holiday with helpful information sent to
holiday parks, where usual sleeping arrangements will be different. This is a
highly efficient pan-Essex service with a strong commitment to prevention,
understanding and to support for families.

44 Page 102



Ofsted

131. Local understanding of child sexual exploitation in Thurrock is considered
through the developing multi-agency sexual exploitation group (MASE). This
subgroup has equipped itself for its task through exploration of the Ofsted child
sexual exploitation thematic study and is ambitious to understand the local
landscape more fully. This has included, for example, challenging each agency
to identify its 10 most vulnerable children or young people, an exercise which
revealed a gap in health data. It has also identified the five boys most at risk of
child sexual exploitation.

132. The comprehensive child sexual exploitation strategy and action plan have been
developed, and these are rigorously overseen through the work of the LSCB.
The strategy has been tested during 2015 through both internal and peer
review, which showed good steady progress, and the board has further
developed the child sexual exploitation action plan in response. Further work
will be undertaken, including the prosecution of perpetrators and increased
awareness raising. The ‘I didn’t know’ child sexual exploitation awareness-
raising campaign was launched during this inspection, and the board works
closely with the police. The MASE group has a good understanding of what
more needs to be done and this is informed by the detail of the experiences of
children through the risk assessment group (RAG). The plan for data analysis
will address the need for a more sophisticated *heat map’ of local risks.

133. The RAG established in March 2015 has brought together a number of separate
panels that looked at risk (child sexual exploitation, online exploitation and
missing children). This effective group has offered a real-time live multi-agency
discussion for the most vulnerable children, with immediate access to the range
of different agency databases. This approach has enabled a more sophisticated
understanding to emerge of the complex overlap between different types of
risk. This has resulted, for example, in coordinated intervention when children
are referred as being at risk, and also then found to be a risk to others. It has
started to reveal more detail on the prevalence of underlying risk, such as
children going missing and then found to be affected by gang involvement. A
clear action matrix ensures that all actions for each child are followed up
effectively. The RAG is chaired by the local authority and is an operational
service, sitting under the auspices of the LSCB. This unusual positioning allows
the broadest opportunity for referrals from all partners, and harnesses all
knowledge and investment from partner agencies in Thurrock to consider and
safeguard children. It is working well, with evidence of reduced risk for children
who are particularly vulnerable. However, it does not currently consider
information from return home interviews.

N2
UJ

PV Pa il |
aUC AL

45



Ofsted

134. The quality of the multi-agency audit work undertaken is highly detailed,
resulting in clear action plans that are effectively followed up. These audits
consider a broad range of relevant safeguarding issues across the partnership.
These include audits regarding children and young people who have been on a
child protection plan for more than 12 months and attendance at child
protection conferences. Issues considered demonstrate that the board is aware
of key issues across the local authority, and the findings from the audits
regarding areas for development are reflective of some of the findings from this
inspection, for example management oversight and life story work. Despite
good-quality detailed work, the audit subgroup is without a consistent chair and
attendance has not been strong. In its role of overseeing the multi-agency audit
programme in Thurrock, it has analysed and disseminated learning from the
audit programme through a recent learning and improvement booklet, but
requires regular multi-agency attendance to ensure a sustained higher degree
of overarching analysis and evaluation (Recommendation).

135. The LSCB values the views and contributions of children, and ensures that their
views and experiences influence the work of the board. The board is creative
and innovative in how it does this, including holding a ‘voice of the child’
conference in 2013—-14 and ensuring that children actively participated in the
board’s conference in 2014-15. The board, working jointly with the Community
Safety Partnership, has recruited 12 safeguarding ambassadors aged 13 to 16,
including a hate crime and a youth crime ambassador through the Youth
Cabinet.

136. To gauge understanding and risk to children online, the LSCB started a series of
roadshows called ‘Walk on line” in 2014. These covered the broadest range of
risks to children and young people, including child sexual exploitation,
grooming, sexting, going missing, cyber-bullying, female genital mutilation and
‘Prevent’ from a child’s perspective. Initially offered to Years 5 and 6 pupils,
they were extended to Years 10 and 11 pupils at the request of the Youth
Cabinet. 10,000 children and young people have attended, and impact has
been shown through changed behaviours such as amending privacy settings, as
measured through anonymous child-friendly questionnaires. ‘Walk on line’
demonstrates a creative and comprehensive understanding of risks to children
and young people. This outstanding piece of practice demonstrates a strong
partnership approach between the LSCB, education, parents and the specialist
police knowledge by the child exploitation online service.

137. A good range of training is offered, and this is valued by partner agencies, with
117 agencies currently participating in the training programme. The LSCB has
engaged well with non-statutory partners, including faith groups, and meets

46 Page 104



Ofsted

regularly as a member of Thurrock Faith Forum. It has good relationships with
local voluntary organisations that access training through the board and are
represented on subgroups of the board. Each course is evaluated by the
individual participant, and the learning and development subgroup evaluates
the effectiveness of specific training through feedback forms. Training is also
observed to evaluate its effectiveness directly. Partners are held to account for
both their attendance at multi-agency training and the training that each
agency offers on safeguarding, but there is no overall evaluation of the impact
of the full training offer. This means that the board cannot assure itself that the
training offer is having sufficient impact on frontline practice
(Recommendation).

138. The LSCB produces a clear annual report that demonstrates a comprehensive
understanding of the strengths and achievements of the board, together with
work still to be done. Strengths include improved engagement of all types of
educational establishments, close partnership work with the Youth Cabinet and
the overall steady progress made since the review of the board in 2013.
Evidence of impact includes the monitoring of child protection plans and the
challenge to increase consideration of sexual abuse, which had been an area
for improvement. All agencies contribute their own end-of-year evaluation,
including data, to the annual report so that their voices are heard, and they are
held to account for the difference that they have made.

47



Ofsted

Information about this inspection

Inspectors have looked closely at the experiences of children and young people who
have needed or still need help and/or protection. This also includes children and
young people who are looked after and young people who are leaving care and
starting their lives as young adults.

Inspectors considered the quality of work and the difference that adults make to the
lives of children, young people and families. They read case files, watched how
professional staff work with families and each other and discussed the effectiveness
of help and care given to children and young people. Wherever possible, they talked
to children, young people and their families. In addition, the inspectors have tried to
understand what the local authority knows about how well it is performing, how well
it is doing and what difference it is making for the people whom it is trying to help,
protect and look after.

The inspection of the local authority was carried out under section 136 of the
Education and Inspections Act 2006.

The review of the Local Safeguarding Children Board was carried out under section
15A of the Children Act 2004.

Ofsted produces this report of the inspection of local authority functions and the
review of the Local Safeguarding Children Board under its power to combine reports
in accordance with section 152 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006.

The inspection team consisted of eight of Her Majesty’s Inspectors (HMI) from
Ofsted.

The inspection team

Lead inspector: Jansy Kelly
Deputy lead inspector: Karen Wareing

Team inspectors: Julie Knight, Nigel Parkes, Margaret Burke, Louise Hocking, Peter
Green, Wendy Ratcliff

Senior data analyst: Judith Swindell
Shadow senior data analyst: Alison Edwards

Quality assurance manager: John Mitchell

48 Page 106



Ofsted

Any complaints about the inspection or the report should be made following the procedures set out in
the guidance 'Raising concerns and making complaints about Ofsted’, which is available from Ofsted’s
website: www.gov.uk/government/publications/complaints-about-ofsted. If you would like Ofsted to

send you a copy of the guidance, please telephone 0300 123 4234, or email enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk.

The Office for Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills (Ofsted) regulates and inspects to
achieve excellence in the care of children and young people, and in education and skills for learners of
all ages. It regulates and inspects childcare and children's social care, and inspects the Children and
Family Court Advisory and Support Service (Cafcass), schools, colleges, initial teacher training, further
education and skills, adult and community learning, and education and training in prisons and other
secure establishments. It assesses council children’s services, and inspects services for looked after
children, safeguarding and child protection.

If you would like a copy of this document in a different format, such as large print or Braille, please
telephone 0300 123 1231, or email enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk.

You may reuse this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under
the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence, write to the Information Policy Team,
The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

This publication is available at www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ofsted.

Interested in our work? You can subscribe to our monthly newsletter for more information and
updates: http://eepurl.com/iTrDn.

Piccadilly Gate
Store Street
Manchester
M1 2WD

T: 0300 123 4234
Textphone: 0161 618 8524
E: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk
W: www.ofsted.gov.uk

© Crown copyright 2016

49


mailto:enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/
mailto:psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ofsted
http://eepurl.com/iTrDn

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

gL sunr

218)
121008 S,UBJp|IYD) JO PESH

uBledwes JusuninIoes paysalel

Jo joedun Jojiuoly {g ssusbins ssuewiopad Ajyuow Je paiojuoLl

aq |m s)abie] asay) jsuiebe souewioued ‘puewsp peyoipesd pue Jusuno
Ylim Ul Ul S101eO 18180 JO Juew)inioal ay) Joj esed Ul mou ale sjeble] (v

Buiroidwy

sjuswaoeld pue uondopy
‘Buneysoy '1ebeuely eolaleg

ybno10q U} Jo INO peoe|d 5q O} DABY OUM JSYE PSOO| USIPNILD JO J9QUINU S} 8INPSI pue
sluawWwaoe|d J8}S0} J0j PUBLISP 2JNjNy PUE JUSLIND BY) 198LL 18])aq 0] S1aJed 13]S0} JO JusLW)NIoal pajabie) sinsug

Bulobuo|
/ 9L 1deg

a1e)
|BI100G S,UBIP|IYD JO PESH

suolepolwwosoe Buibeuew ul [aued ploysay L.

J0 ojo1 uayibuang (5 pauueld 1 s1Y) Jey) os ‘Uolepollwosoe Aejep

1O UOIEPOWWOSOE PIOAE O} $83|AI8S poddns pue aAlejusaard uay)buang
(g 2189 ojul BuIWOoD WBJPIYO Jo s1equNu pue sulsjed ey) meirey (v

paulejuley|

yoddng
Awe4 ‘JobBeuely eoiniag ‘Jaybees) essis )
puB 142 ® HSYIA 1ebeuepy a01a1eg ‘UeuA | sor

Kousbiows ue ul Jsye payoo|
aWo0aq 0] a|doad BunoA pue uslp|Iyd 1o} pasu ayr aanpal 0} s2e|d Ul a1e sjuswabuene jsngol jey) aunsug

9102 AON

ale)
BI00S S,UBIPIIYD JO Peer

sonoeid Jood BuiBus|eys / uonedioiued pue juswebebus Ajlanoe
Bunowoud a1e 9s3Y) jey] aINsua 0] pamelAal aq 0] SaolAles Uoddns

pue Aseoconpy (O sjepow aonoeld poob uo Buwelp uoiedioiued ssealoul
0] 1S9 MOy 21 UaKepapun ag o] asto1axe 6uidodg (g seinuiw mairay
PUE 20UBISJUOY) UOIOB}0Id PIYD |18 JoJ eorjd Ul sweysAs Buuojuop (v

poulRlueN

uopoelold PIYD
pue Buipienfejeg '19beuely 801A18S ‘olNeT SjeaN

Apdwoud
paje|nolio ale sanuiw Bunasul Jey} pue 'pueyalojaq sUodel 0} SS890B 9ARY Sjuaied 19L) PUE ABU} 1BU} 'SMaIAs)
pue $80UB194U00 ‘sBunasi Jay) '0) SINQUUOS pue ‘Ul sjeddnied o) pauoddns aJe usip|Iyd SI0W 1By} 8INSUg

gl-unr

ele
JBI00S S.USIPIYD 4O PEOH

sop1aoid Aq sjdoad BunoA o Juswabebus sanoe-oid

alinbas 0] Butojuow 10e1U0 peacdw| () %001 - %08 WoJy sasealoul
SIy} 1Y) 2inNSUS 0) UBIP|IYS Jajje PeXoo| Joj sajel |elayel Jo Buuojiuow
AJUIUO (g “sma1AI)UI BUIOY WIN]es Jo S)el dn exe) pue [BL8)a) 2U) PUE
'8Je0 pUE swWoy wolj Buissiw of oym uaIp|Iyo jo Buuoyuow Ao (v

Buirodus

uonosjold piyo) pue Buipienbajes
‘JeBeue|y 90IA19S 'BUNET BjeaN '§ JOUY
paxooT ualp|ly) 1eBeuely so1ueg ‘SX0) Ined

SMalAIBIUL 8saU) Jo dn-a)e) 9seaIdUl O] SIed
10 swoy woyy Buissiw usaq aaey oym 9jdoad BUNoA pUB UBIP|IYD O] SMBIAIBIUI SWOY UINISI JO JBYO By aA0Idw)

9\, 99 - BuUNT|

e1e)
[2190G S,UBIPIYD 1O pEaH

Apjenb asesoul pue Ajnuenb eonpal o) (y4AN|

0] pes| jey) asoy) A||eolj10eds) USHELSPUN SJUBLUSSSSSE JO Jequunu wﬁﬁ
2onpa) 0} ue|d Juswbeuew puelwsp jusweldw) (q “sjuawssasse Buunp
Wie) Yy uolusAslUl 19911p usy)Buai)s o) 201A19S JUaWISSesSe ay)
u)YliM $190JUNJOA JO uononposul 8y} edoog(Q sonoeid Jo Alenb malae)
0} sieyom [e1os ym sdoysyiom Ajlienb sejnbas eonponu| (g ewwelboid
1pne ybnosy; Jopuow pue Aeles Jo subig jo uonejusweldwi sje|dwo) (v

peulejuie

1v40 ' HSYIN 1ebeuepy 901195 'uBUA L
o0 g 1S4 ‘1ebeuepy aoialeg ‘1obe|(es) esels |

O]
a

Ayenb yBiy ARUSISISUOS B JO BJE USIP|IYD O} SUB|d pUE SlUsWSSasse jey) st

g} 08Q = aunr

aleD)
[E1205 BUBIPIYD jO PEaH

uonus AISIU|

Auea 1oy posu ay) eowold o) sBulyes siee A Alie] pue SIO)ISIA YjeaH
‘sequen susip|iyd £q -0 10} SIL djaH Ane3 Jo Junowe|
ay) esealoul o] (J S801AISS HOT SpNjoul O] Pepus]Ixe pUe pamsiaal si|
somewely soueinsse Allenb esnsu3l (Q ‘ewn 16U ey 1e saljiwey Jybu sy}
o) djgy jo u oid ey ul sieuped ebebua-oy (O ‘dieH Jo JeyO Auel sy
JO SSBUBAINDaY S asIWIXeW o} aINjonJjsal aolaas pue ue|d juswasoidui|
juswaldw| (g melral 8o1Mes JualusBeurw puewsp sja|dwo) (V|

Buiacaduy

dioH jo Je)y0 Alie pue wes | Aing
Aousbiaw3g ‘Buousiejuo) dnoig Ajiwed ‘Ualpiy)
pajqesiq -pea oibelens Buioy ‘e1o0p are[)

(¥

awiy Jybu sy} 1e poddns 1ybu ay) Butaieosl aue saljiwe)
PUB UBJPIIYD Jeu} 8INSud 0} SeojAIas didy APEa J0 8ouBINSSE Ajenb pue uoileulp00d yBIsIan0 usu)Buang

[aL-Bny

seoIneg
$,UBJp|1YD JO JojoBNq

SSOUBANIOYS

SSIWIXEW O} WES | BIUBWIONS PUE BIEQ JO 9IN2NAS Malaey(D Isebip)
s SonAjeue g sowjew Aq pauuidispun pue $JQ oyl Aq palleyo aq
o] pieog sjuswsaocidw, meu Juswedw| (g SolAIBUE %9 SOLISW JES|D YIM)
‘1seBIp eouewloped meu juswe|dwi pue dojeasp o) Ajloedes asealou) (v

pauleluiely

uonewJoysuel] B gO'YH | Hoddng ssauisng |
Ny 'eoueUIOpe | pesT o1Belens ‘BzeA |eqb|

Juawaaoidwl J0} SUOROE D0SdS 0} SPES) SIY) 1BY) pUB pasAleue Si elep SouBWIONSd S1BINDIE JBL) SINsug

(a1ep)
uaym Ag

OUM - (Sh13umQ

100j9s asee|d
= MsIAB] S| 0) peledwod

MOH - (s)uonoy jo uondussag

|aARI] JO UONOAQ

FEEES
osee|d -
21095

SWEN/3I L qOf* - pea] paubissy’

UONEPUBILINDDY

ON

sueyd jsurebe ssaitio|

MBINBL O] S19010 YUM Apieinbas Bunsatu 8q fim oym siapioy oijopiod s,uaipiiyo ayl Aq palesio uaaq sey Auinos
JO joA8] JoyLINy B LOIPPE Uf dai0d Buiuased 8)eiodiod ey Aq usssISA0 8q jiim ueld JusLwar0Iduw G|

SIY] O (M M MOY INO S18S UBID S| SUOHBPUBLLILLIOISL 858y} O] BUIpUOUS S

248 8M MOY INOGE JOHOXS 8G 0} JUem 0S[e INq BULIOJIOW SoUBULIOST 1einBa. N0 Ol 9S8y} PalEIodicat

aABY am IINsa. B SY 'PaISIO AG paybiybiy JusweAodw) JO SBaIE PUE SUOHEPUSUILIOOS Y] BUIODIIM B4
SPadU HoY) 58 0} PUB SYSII 8SaYl 8onpal 0] soeld Ui Bureq Saoines pue Sueld Inayim

ey JUBOHILBIS JO XS BJRIPBLLLLI 1B S.19M OUM DaYIUaP! BUOU YIm ‘uooadsul iy Buunp afes aq 0} punoy aram
ajdoad BunoA pue usipjiyd JusteA0I0Wr sanbal yooLNy ] ui Saye) pue 8idosd BunoA ‘uaippyo O SadAIES
ybnoylty "poob aq 0] JUBIBA0IIW! 84nbos SedINIBS S,uBIPHIYO Jey] Juswabpnf jleseno pue anebe 910z Aseniqed
uj UaIpjiyd Jalje PayOOof Joj pue uonasjold pue disy Jo PaauU Ut USIDILD JOj S8dIAIBS JO UOIDBdSU! PBISIO dYL

uopanpoRul

MIIASY JO Enn__

91-6ny-LE _

IOMBIIAY JO uEmz_

uosioned \Com_

9L'8°GZ - €A ue|d UonOY Juswanoldw| }Jomaweds 4 uonoadsu| 3jBulg S80IAIBG S,U3IP[IYD [19UNOY HI0ouNY |



jshade_2
Text Box
APPENDIX 2


gel, 1Xau - J3aYSaI00s maiaal aseajd "jaays siy) patapdweon asey nok asup

281
®» Buiobug

o)

eonoeid Jo|

Aljenb ayj uo Aunpniog pue MeIABAQ S,Ua1p|IyY) o) Hodsi jenuue pesodoid
pue pieog sjusweaordw| je paiojuow eq o] $sebold  eoueldwos
1ojuow pue Aoijod uoisiaiedns ajeulwassip pue malasy Bumpne jo (oo
1eynbas e aoe|d Ul Jnd pue Ylomewely saueInsse Ajljenb meu e ysiqeis3|

peulejuiepy

uanoejold plIyd;
pue Buipsenboajes “Jabeueyy eo1M9g ‘suUneT ajeaN

aonoead paaodwi ul Bupnsas sJe Ajjenb pue Aauanbay) jeu) 2insua o) sajy umsiaadns ypne _a_‘_m__._m,mw__ ql

9102 AON

ey
181908 S.UBJPIIYD JO PesH

uoNANPOId-02 JO PUE UONE)NSUOO ‘HOBQPES)

19sn uo paseq usaq aAeY ey} sjueludo|easp 92IMSS § sjuswecidwl
10 eouepIne Jo} sjabie) 1eajo jas o} pabeinoous eq o) Aunniog

pue melAIeAQ S,usipliy) pue pieog Bulueled ajeiodio)) (g pieog|
slusweaoidul], oY) 1B pajen|eAe pue Peioludi I Jey) SSWOoDdINo Jes|o|
Buionpoud s1 s1Y) 1Y) BINSUS 0] weens yom uonedionied usyibusng (v

paulejuiely

1OYIOA [B190G |Bdiound 'Jousg uAlluayd),

sluswdoeasp a21nI8S
adeys A|gesuowsp 0} pasn sJe ¥Oeqped) PUE SMBIA SSIILE) PUB S,USIP|IUD JBY) S]ENSUOLLSP PUB 8INsSug

BuioBugy

seolneg
$,U9Jp|1YD) JO JooalIQ,

swabeuew

PUEWSP UO YIMOAI! IM Y1om 3 JOW ‘uoiBay Lisise] ey

ulyiwm eys AausBe Jo osn ay) eonpey (5 swuweibosd sisbeuey Buuidsy
8Y) pue Awapeoy JASY oUl ybnosy) jjers umo ino mosb, o} ewweibord
uo puedx3 (g S0Q oYl Aq pelieys ‘pieog JUSWINIOey PUB UOHUSISY
o) YBNoy) JusW]INIDs) PUB UOYUS}B1 SA1J08)Je SALP O] nuNuo) (v

paUlBIUIBI

BIB]) |BID0G 5,U8IP|IYY JO PESH 'JSUED MRIPUY|

J1oOp JUOJ} B} JB SHE]S JBY} USIP|IYd 1o} 8ousuew.ad 1o) Buuued
Ales BuiSESIOUS SB UONS 'S8D1AISS 0] JusLaAcdwl YBnoly} saLp 0} AJLOYINE |B20] SU} 8|qRUS 0} PUB SIONIOM
|B100S Lyim sdiysuoiels1 Buunpus pling 0} 8|Ge 8Je UaJP|IyS JeU} 8INSUS 0} S0JOPOM BIQE)S 8J0W B 3N

210z yoely
'8 91 IsnBny

ae)

[e100G s,UBIp|Iy) JO peeH

sjusweAcidll AP 0] 82IAISS S||INS

pue Ajqedojdw3 wwm Bupiiom pejesbojul ueyibusng 133 %0/ Jo 1ebie)
[euonelidse paooxe pue (%z9) 133 eJe oysm SISAES| OIE0 JO JoquInu BYy]
©SB2IOUl 0) BNUNRUCY (F IOM LI| Juelnd jualle|dwod pue SIBAES) J91e3
Joj poddns ; Buluiey) asuepuedspul Jo |epow siam dnoib e dojeasq (v

Buiroidwy

Jsyy]
2 Jebeuep 00IAIGS 'BMO]) NB|

's|eob JuswAo|dwa pue [euofeanpa aAsIyoe 0} Wwey) djay o) sjabie) jleuoyeldse
10 Bumas ay1 ybnouy) Buipnjoul 's|ivjs souspusdapul uieb o) psuoddns Aj9ANOaYS Sle SIBABS| 8IED JRY) 8INS

9l
punry gt 1deg|

ae)
[RIZGS S URIBIYD JO pEay

sueld jo sjipne Apjenb)

se|nbes exeuspun(D y1sobip soueuIoped pesIASL LUIY)IM SSBUlBLY YOB)
pue sue|d Aemyjed Jo MOIAB) BY} UO PES| O} BALRUOD O] WES | 3IEDIB)YY
ay) ulyi Auerino jsod JeUoIoBId J

pauigjuieiy

oYy
pay007 ualp|y) Jebeuepy 801ASS '9¥0D (NE.

@
al

SMIIASI JBINGSI WOoJ) JyeuUaq SI9AEBS)
2180 1BU} pUB A|2A10940 SJsAes| 9182 96e6US 0} padojanap ase sued pue sjuswssasse Aemyied Jey) sinsug

1)

9} 1deg - eunp

ele)
{2108 SURIPILD [0 PUsH

J3)40 |eucifBe) pue (eso)

auy} aaoidun Jeneq o} sieuped uolbey uigIsE] Yum diysieuped ulyopm (a
©$2Y) Sseippe pue s320|q AJluep! o) \nd BuiAeys ese oym ejdoed BunoA
J0 18qUunU BY) MaIABI pue Jojiuoly (D e|doed BunoA paieiso) | Joj uondol
ue se jng Buifes ejowoid (g siapiaoid 4| pue sieles) Jejso yoonny)
Yim uoneyinsuod Ul Aotjod 1ng Buifels juauna sacsdwi pue ejepdn (|

paulejuiepy

sjuewese|d pue uondopy 'Busisoq
‘1eBeuRp @0IAIBg 1950 SMOIPUY B JBYY
poxooT UsipiiyD JeBeuely sojales ‘80D Ined)

sieak g1 Jo obe ey} puoAaq sIaIeD 18150}
13UL10} 1Y) Yim 8Al| 0} 8jdoad BunoA aiow 1o} 9)qissod Ji saxew Aoljod Ind Buikelg 8Adays ue jey; sinsug

| Elle)

a1e)

121908 S,UBIp|IYY JO pesH

uoisiaoid jo Ayjenb eyl uo sisjdope woy) yoeqpes)
NBBS "weso) yiim poddns uondope jsod 1oj jepow Aieallep mau e dojaasg

paulejulep

S]usWaoE|4 pPUER UORdOpPY
*Bune)soy JaBeuep B3IAIBS 1950 SMRIPUY

9oi1n9s ajeudosdde ue o) $s9008
dABY 8|qifi[@ 818 Oym SaY|ILE) PUB UBIPIYD (I8 Jey) 8nsua o) sjuswebuewe yoddns uondope-jsod dojarag

Ll
yaue - 9L Aepy

eie)

|e150S s,uaIp|Iy) Jo peal

sbeieae

pue(bu3 ey) mojsq siyi Buuq o} - uondope o) Jusweoe|d pue Jeye paxoo|
Buiwooeq piyo e usemjaq sAep jo Jequinu ay) Ul uonINpeI Jueoyubls

e ‘Bujuueld Aousueuned sAoaYe yBnoly) ‘weiod yw jebie; o} enujuo)
(D 'uondope Joj Juawase|d pue uoydope Joj aoerd o} uojesuoyine

HNoo Usamiag SAEP JO JOquINU Ul UO)INPS) BSESIOU| PUR UIRJUIE

(g 1dope o) 19)s0) pue AoueuNoU0D 40 Joyo aaloe-0id B Ym Aousuewiad
Aee usybuel)s pue weiod yum Buiom diysieuued pequg (y|

Buinosduy

sjuewaoe|d pue uoidopy ‘Buusisoy
Jafeuely 60IAI8G "I9S0 SMRIPUY B JalY
pe3jooT uaip|iy) ‘1ebeuely es1aieg 'exo) _:mnl:

uaipjya Joj sueld sousuewiad pJemio) 9l AJ9AIIOSYS PUB 83SI9A0 SIaBBUBL Jey) aINsuT

6]

[oL-deg

S
pue Buluieajuswenoidiu)|

|ooyag'pesT olbelen g
Wwuajuj 'uospiemp3 JeBoy

sue|d vy sjuswaoidwl Jojluow ©) sppne Ajjenb syeuepun

ApeinBey (D ULIp|yo Ja)E Pesoo) Jo) sewoono pue ssaiboid oiwepeoe
@y} ebue|(eYo PUE JO)IUOW O} BNUNUOD 0] AUNIOS PUE MOJAIBAQ) S,UBIPIYD
pue eapiWWoY) Buusied sjeiodio) (g [00Yos [ENHIA BY) JO Yiom ay)

Jo sjoadse |(e enoidwi pue sAup ‘Jojiuow o] Apog Buiuieaob e ysiigelsg {y

pauiejulep

100Y0g |BNUIA 8Y) JO PESH 'usiind Asjaey|

3oounyy
N0 S|00YJS pUsHE oym 8sou) Buipniour ‘1eye paoo| UIp|Iyd 1B Jo ssaiboud sy} sesAjeue pue sionuow
AlaAoaye 100Y2s [entia 8y} Jey) g piepuers ybly ABUsiSISUOD e Jo aie suejd uoneonps [euostad jey sinsug

(a1ep)
usym Ag

OUM - {shaumQ

jo0(s oses|d
- melAe) se| 0} pasedwos

MOH - (s)uonoy jo uondussaq

19AB1] JO UONI3NQ

osjes
oses|d -

dweN/olL gof - pea] paubissy

uoREpUSIWOIBY| on]




Agenda Iltem 8

13 October 2016 ITEM: 8

Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

School Capital Programme 2017/18

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All Key

Report of: Rory Patterson, Corporate Director of Children’s Services

Accountable Head of Service:Not applicable.

Accountable Director: Rory Patterson, Corporate Director of Children’s Services

This report is Public

Executive Summary

This report seeks approval for up to £7 Million funding to implement the next schools
capital programme. This will include secondary school expansions and possible
expansion of a further two primary schools, one in the Aveley/Ockendon area and
the other in the North East to meet increased predicted demand for pupil places from
September 2017.

The School Capital Expansion Programme has a current estimated provisional value
of £7 Million, to be funded from the DfE capital basic needs Grant, underspends from
the current capital programme, and S.106 education funding and would therefore
requires Council approval. There will be no requirement for prudential borrowing.

1. Recommendations:

1.1 That a provisional School Capital Programme budget of £7 million as set
out in this report be approved.

1.2  That authority subject to the Council’s procurement rules delegate to
the Director of Children’s Services, in consultation with the relevant
Portfolio Holder and Head of Legal, to commence, negotiate and award
any contracts/agreements or documents incidental to the School Capital
Programme within the budget as set out in this report.

2. Introduction and Background:
2.1 The local authority has a statutory responsibility to ensure that suitable and
sufficient school places are available in Thurrock for every child of school age

whose parents wish them to have one

2.2  The current school capital programme consists of three projects in Thurrock
schools. All projects in this extensive programme are due to be completed

Page 111



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

imminently or are in phase 2 with a completion date of February 2017. All
projects are predicted to be completed on time and within budget.

Through detailed pupil place forecasting and analysis of current Year 6
numbers, there is a predicted need to provide additional secondary places
from September 2017. We currently have 2,062 children in year 6 with in our
primary schools and there are 1,947 secondary places available as per PAN.
(This includes Hassenbrook having an intake of 150 in year 7). We also need
to take into consideration the number of in-year admissions, which continues
to increase year on year therefore, we also need to build in some additional
capacity to meet this demand.

A stringent process has been followed in order to decide on which schools
should be expanded. This commenced with a discussion held with each
secondary head to establish the schools view on expanding by 1 form of entry
(180 pupils). The schools that were in favour of expansion were noted and
proceeded to the next stage.

The second stage was for officers from Admissions, Highways, Finance,
School Improvement, Transport & Awards & Benefits to meet together which
happened on 6th September where discussions took place and each member
asked to provide narrative for their service area and provide a score from 1-5
(5 being the highest support) with regards support for or against expansion
and from this the strongest schools would be identified.

The third stage is for recommendationto be presented to the Director and
Portfolio holder for Educationand for them to consider feedback from officers
and agree those schools to be expanded . Officers would then notify the
successful schools.

When identifying the number of places required this took into consideration
Hassenbrook returning to its previous intake of 150 pupils whilst also building
in capacity to cater for in-year admissions which continues to increase.

In order to provide these extra places, an expansion programme led by the
council’s school capital team is required to start imminently and is likely to
focus on the expansion and adaptation to two or three secondary schools and
two primary schools. Feasibility studies will be carried out where necessary.

As part of our ongoing strategic analysis of future demand It is envisaged that
a further three new secondary schools are anticipated to be required in
Thurrock within the next five years. Greater detail is provided in our School
Place Plan 2016-20. It is likely that this need will be met through the Free
School bidding process.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options
If the local authority does not undertake the school expansions and builds, the

local authority will not be able to fulfil its statutory responsibility to ensure that
there are sufficient places available in Thurrock for every child of school age.

Page 112



3.2

4.1

5.1.

5.2.

6.1

7.1

The contract, due to its potential value over the threshold, is subject to
Thurrock Council & EU procurement legislation.

Reasons for Recommendation

Funding to the value of £7 Million is requested in order to take forward the
expansion programme for those identified schools and deliver required pupil
places from September 2017 and meet the council’s statutory duty.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)
This report is to be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The principle has been agreed with schools and any detailed build content will
be agreed with the relevant schools. Consultation will continue with each
school and key stakeholder, as each scheme and schedule of works evolves
within the programme.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

Approval of this funding will enable the Council to continue to meet its
statutory duty under the Education Act 2006.

Implications:
Financial

Implications verified by: Kay Goodacre
Interim Finance Manager

Additional accommodation required to meet the statutory requirement to
provide places for the increasing pupil numbers will be funded from a
combination of the DfE capital basic needs grant, underspends from the
current capital programme and Section 106 monies held for Education
provision. Once in-depth feasibility studies have been undertaken, funding
requirements will be quantified and confirmed. This will include any additional
funds applied for and successfully obtained from the Education Funding
Agency, under the Targeted Basic Need Programme, which supports specific
place needs in Local Authorities with exceptional growth.

Page 113



7.2

7.3

Legal

Implications verified by: Assaf Chaudry
Major Project Lawyer

The Council has a duty under the Education Act 1996 to ensure the provision
of “sufficient schools” for the provision of primary and secondary education in
their area.

The report proposes to commence a procurement exercise for the schools
capital programme, and contractors to take forward the proposed schemes
within the current affordability envelope of £7 Million. Given its value it has to
comply with the Council’s procurement rules including the Public Contract
Regulations 2015. Other than that there are no other legal implications
arising from this report.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Natalie warren
Community Development Officer

There are currently no direct diversity and equality implications. However, the
next Thurrock Schools’ Capital Programme will continue to commit to
improving learning environments for young people, supporting improvements
in standards and raising aspirations to give all children the best possible life
chances. The provision of these projects will help to tackle inequality and
social exclusion.

Equality legislation places a duty on public bodies to prevent discrimination in
all aspects of service provision, including procurement. It provides a clear and
positive legal duty to eliminate discrimination and ensure equality of
opportunity.

The Council should note that where an external supplier carries out a function,
the Council remains responsible for meeting the statutory duty set out in these
Acts. A community and equality impact assessment will be completed to
inform the tender process.

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):

The procurement approach set out in this report will enable the Council to
continue to meet its statutory duty under the Education Act 1996, to ensure
that suitable and sufficient places are available in Thurrock for every child of
school age whose parents wish them to have one, whilst ensuring value for
money and a seamless service provision.

Page 114



9. Appendices to the report

e Appendix 1 - Pupil Place Planning Documents 2016-2020

Report Author:
Janet Clark

Strategic Lead
Education, Specialist Support Service

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



PUPIL PLACE PLAN
2016 - 2020

(s thurrock.gov.uk




Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION ... .ttt e 3
SCHOOL PLACE PLANNING .....ooiiiiiiiiiiii e 4
CON T EXT i e e e e e reeeaan 5
SCHOOLS AND PLANNING AREAS ... ..o 8
PRIMARY FORECASTS ..o 11
SECONDARY FORECASTS ... .o 22
AUTHORITY WIDE ISSUES ... 29
ANNEX 1: PUPIL PLACE FORECASTING METHODOLOGY ........ocooviviiiiiiiiiineen, 30
ANNEX 2: SPECIAL AND ADDITIONAL NEEDS ... 32
ANNEX 3: PROVISION FOR PUPILS OUT OF SCHOOL ........cuciiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 34
ANNEX 4: POST 16 PROVISION ...cooiiiiiiiiiee e 35
ANNEX 5: MAP PRIMARY PHASE PLANNING AREAS ... 37
ANNEX 6: MAP SECONDARY PHASE PLANNING AREAS ..o 38
ANNEX 7: PRIMARY FORECAST WHOLE SCHOOL .......cccvviiiiiiiieecieeeeei e 40
ANNEX 8: PRIMARY FORECAST RECEPTION ......coiiiiiiiiiii e 42
ANNEX 9: SECONDARY FORECAST WHOLE SCHOOL.........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 44
ANNEX 10: SECONDARY FORECAST YEAR 7 ..oveiiiiiieieeeee e 45

For the purpose of this document, data has been extracted from the
Autumn 2015 Census

2
Page 118




INTRODUCTION

Welcome to the third edition of the Pupil Place Planning (PPP) document. To date
the publication of this document has been welcomed and widely used by
stakeholders such as developers, schools and academies and many others. The
forecasts contained in this document are also used to inform the schools capital
programme and to date we have delivered high quality projects that contributes to
ensuring the delivery of good educational outcomes for the children of Thurrock.

Having this data has allowed us to review trend data on pupil numbers which helps
with future forecasting. Thurrock continues to be a place of choice for families
wishing to move into the area and this can be seen from the numbers of children
requiring a school place.

We are very fortunate in Thurrock to have built strong working relationships with our
schools and academies and this allows us to work in partnership with them when
identifying locations where we can build in additional capacity for schools places.
The Authority has arranged for a sub group of the Schools’ Forum to be set up so
that we can work closely with this group in reviewing data and options. This allows
for total openness and transparency with decisions that are made when meeting the
demand for additional places. This group has worked effectively over the last twelve
months and has been welcomed by stakeholders. This has further strengthened the
partnership working we have in place with our schools and academies.

It is hoped that this document continues to be of interest to all stakeholders and that
the content is both useful and clear.

3
Page 119



SCHOOL PLACE PLANNING

Over the last 4 years we have seen a steep increase in the primary population and
these numbers are not subsiding and continue to increase. These numbers have
risen by 29% in Thurrock schools. This edition identifies the pupil increase we have
been experiencing over the last few years now feeding in to our secondary provision.
This is a major issue going forward as we now need to increase secondary capacity.
Officers have been in dialogue with the DfE with regards this issue and will be
working with prospective sponsors to meet this demand.

The PPP document covers education for children in the age range of 4 — 16. Post
16 provision information is contained in Annex4.

Special and Additional Needs Educational provision and Early Years and Childcare
provision are undertaken by another specialist area within Thurrock Council and are
not covered in this document.

Thurrock Council has a legal obligation to provide a school place for every child of
school age who live in the borough. PPP is a difficult art and can never be an exact
science. Planning for school places begins with the acquisition of birth data which
identifies the number of children that are born and the post code they live in and it is
assumed that 4 years later they will enter the school system in a local school. There
are a number of factors that are forever changing and need to be considered. In-
year admissions, where children come into the Authority mid—year (outside the
normal admission rounds) is very difficult to foresee and project. Numbers of children
that have moved in to Thurrock from elsewhere in the country and those that have
moved in from other countries can be seen on page 29.

Thurrock’s forecasting for school places to date has been robust and accurate with a
0.3% difference between forecasts and actual numbers admitted for September
2015. The difficulty with forecasting is that although forecasts are accurate we are
not able to identify how old the children will be that move into the Authority and to
what year group they will move into. This takes close monitoring and we need to be
in a position at times to take swift action in opening up classes within certain year
groups. Every effort is made to seek and offer a school place within reasonable
travelling distance from the pupil’s home.

Work is currently being commissioned to review the methodology of the calculation
of child yield from new Housing developments within Thurrock. It is hoped that more
up-to-date and robust formulae can be found to enable Thurrock to project the
number of pupils produced from any given development. Thurrock currently does
not project any child yield from a one bedroomed flat but the current economic
climate suggest that this is not so. One other issue that has arisen, when working
with our Awards and Benefits team, is that evidence reveals that families are moving
in with other families within existing dwellings making it difficult for Thurrock Council
to predict demand at local school level.

4
Page 120



CONTEXT

Thurrock is located on the north bank of the river Thames, twenty miles east of
central London and has 18 miles of river front. More than half of the land in Thurrock
is designated Green Belt land.

Thurrock boasts a 21st century, forward-looking council, using modern management
methods, leading an empowered workforce to deliver entrepreneurial services with
all our partners to all of our communities. It is a place of opportunity, enterprise and
excellence, where individuals, communities and businesses flourish. There are many
exciting projects to be proud of, such as:-

e Thames Enterprise Port - providing 12,000 jobs with a £1.5 billion investment

e Thames Nature Park

e Development of Tilbury - providing 1,000 homes, 3,800 jobs and a £800
million investment

e Development of Grays — providing 4,500 homes, 1,600 jobs and a £650
million investment

e Development of Purfleet — providing 2,500 homes and a media centre, 2,800
jobs and a £1.5 billion investment

e Development Lakeside/Thurrock — providing 6,000 homes, 9,000 jobs and a
£1.15 billion investment

e Improvements to the M25 at junctions 30/31

e High House Production Park - 250 jobs and a £65million investment

e RSPB Rainham Marshes

Thurrock’s population is 163,270, having grown by 11% in the last 10 years.
Thurrock has a young population by national standards. There are 42,154 children
aged 0-18 years (25.8% of population) and 12,372 children are aged 0-4 years
(7.6% of population). The number of 0 -19 year olds in Thurrock is set to increase to
50,500 by 2037. The distribution of children under 15 years of age is centred in the
south of the borough in Tilbury, Chafford, North Stifford, West Thurrock and parts of
Ockendon.

The population is increasingly diverse. According to the 2011 census BME
population was 15.7% — a significant increase from the 2001 census of 4.7%.
Among school-age children, over one in four (26.5%) are from a black and minority
ethnic group. The latest available data (2012) indicates that Thurrock may have a
slightly higher population of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller children than the national
average (0.3% compared to 0.2%).

Thurrock’'s Community Strategy lays out the long-term vision and priorities for
Thurrock. There are five priorities which are reflected in the council’s Corporate Plan

5
Page 121



and Medium Term Financial Strategy, as well as service strategies and plans. The
five priorities which have cross-party political support are:

e Create a great place for learning and opportunity;

e Encourage and promote job creation and economic prosperity;

e Build pride, responsibility and respect to create safer communities;
e Improve health and well-being;

e Promote and protect our clean and green environment;

Much of the riverside area of Thurrock is highly urbanised with a mixture of industrial
and residential development at the west and eastern ends of the Authority. The
Authority is characterised by five main urban communities plus a large rural area
containing five main villages. The urban communities are:

e Grays and the adjacent Chafford Hundred
e West Thurrock and Purfleet

e Stanford-Le-Hope and Corringham

e Tilbury and Chadwell St Mary

e Aveley and Ockendon

The schools planning areas are different to the above and are listed on pages 9 &
10.

Thurrock also boasts a large retail park at Lakeside.

South Essex College opened in September 2014. The new £45 million Thurrock
Campus is a state-of-the-art facility, located on Grays High Street in the heart of the
town centre, with teaching facilities second to none, with specially designed
workshops for construction and engineering, as well as art & design.

The residents of Thurrock benefit from good transport links. The M25 passes
through the local authority area as does the A13 trunk road from London to
Southend. There are also 7 railway stations in Thurrock on the line which connects
Southend and Fenchurch Street in central London.

6
Page 122



The table below demonstrates the conversion of live births in Thurrock to the actual
take up of school places. This data enables Thurrock to project the place
requirements for future years using the birth data available.

Year of
Birth

2003-04

2004-05

2005-06

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

Number
of live
births in
the
authority

1,938

2,152

2,024

2,241

2,261

2,367

2,330

2,454

Year
entering
school
at 4+

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

Number
of
children
admitted
into
reception

1,709

1,844

1,884

2,237

2,263

2,321

2,277

2,430

Historical
uptake
factor

88.18%

85.69%

93.08%

99.82%

100.09%

98.06%

97.73%

99.02%

The graph below highlights that Thurrock’s live births reached a peak in 2010/11

which was the September 2015 intake in reception.

2500

BIRTH DATA OVER LAST TEN YEARS

2450

2400

2350

2300

2250

2200

2150 -

2100 -

2050

2000 -

i

T
2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014

7
Page 123




SCHOOLS AND PLANNING AREAS

Schools

There are currently 39 state maintained primary schools in Thurrock and 10 state
maintained secondary schools as detailed in the table below:-

Academies | Community | Voluntary Voluntary | Foundation | Free
Aided
Schools Schools Controlled School
Primary Schools 23 7 5 1 1
Secondary
Schools 9 0 1 0 0

Full details of the schools and the oversubscription criteria applied to each one is
available in the Council's Admissions Book. This publication also contains
information on making an application for a school place and can be accessed on the
Council’s website.

Each Academy, Free School and Voluntary Aided-School is its own Admissions
Authority. The Council is the Admissions Authority for Community Schools and
Voluntary Controlled Schools. In respect of Voluntary Aided Schools the governing
body of the school determines admission arrangements. For Academies and Free
Schools, the relevant Academy Trust is the Admission Authority. Each individual
Admissions Authority applies its own oversubscription criteria to applications and
determines which applicants to offer places to.

Applications for all state funded secondary schools in Thurrock are made via the co-
ordinated admissions process which is administered by the Council.

8
Page 124



PUPIL PLACE PLANNING AREAS

Thurrock Council has 8 schools planning areas, five for primary and 3 for secondary.

The Primary planning areas are detailed in the table below:-

Primary Planning Areas

Aveley, Ockendon and Purfleet

Grays

e Aveley Primary e Belmont Castle Academy
e Benyon Primary e Deneholm Primary
e Bonnygate Primary e Harris Primary Academy Chafford
e Dilkes Academy Hundred
e Holy Cross Catholic Primary e Harris Primary Academy Mayflower
e Kenningtons Primary Academy e Little Thurrock Primary
e Purfleet Primary Academy e Quarry Hill Academy
e Shaw Primary Academy e St Thomas of Canterbury Catholic
e Somers Heath Primary Primary
o Stifford Clays Primary
e Thameside Primary
e Tudor Court Primary
e Warren Primary
e West Thurrock Academy
Tilbury Corringham and Stanford-Le-Hope
e Chadwell St Mary Primary e Abbots Hall Primary Academy
e East Tilbury Primary & Nursery e Arthur Bugler Primary
e The Gateway Primary Free e Corringham Primary
e Herringham Primary Academy e Giffards Primary
e Lansdowne Primary Academy e Graham James Primary Academy
e St Mary’s Catholic Primary e St Joseph’s Catholic Primary
e Tilbury Pioneer Academy e Stanford-le-Hope Primary
e Woodside Academy
Rural areas

Bulphan C of E Primary
Horndon on the Hill C of E Primary
Orsett C of E Primary

The planning areas for the Primary phase are shown on the map in Annex 5. The
Primary phase forecast whole school summary is shown in Annex 7. The Primary

Reception summary forecast is shown in Annex 8.

9
Page 125




The Secondary planning areas are detailed in the table below:-

Secondary Planning Areas

West
e The Ockendon Academy
e Ormiston Park Academy

Central
The Gateway Academy
Grays Convent High School
The Hathaway Academy
Harris Academy Chafford Hundred
William Edwards School

East
e Gable Hall School
e Hassenbrook Academy
e St Clere’s School

The planning areas for the Secondary phase are shown on the map in Annex 6.

The Secondary phase whole school summary forecast is shown in Annex 9.

The Secondary Year 7 summary forecast is shown in Annex 10.

10
Page 126




PRIMARY FORECASTS

Pupil place projections for each of the revised planning areas are set out in the
following pages.

The whole school projections for each primary school planning area have been
calculated using birth data which is projected to calculate reception numbers along
with the actual number of children on roll in the schools in the October 2015 census,
adding the pupil yield from housing developments and then adding an additional
element of places to cater for in-year admissions. This degree of additional places is
required to enable schools to absorb the number of pupils we anticipate will arrive in
Thurrock from elsewhere in the UK and abroad in the September 2016/17 academic
year and beyond. It also allows a margin to facilitate a degree of parental
preference. The impact of inward migration will be closely monitored and forecasts
adjusted accordingly.

Full details of the methodology used to determine the pupil place forecasts for the
primary phase are set out in Annex 1.

11
Page 127



UNCLASSIFIED -

hUTI’OCk.gOV.Uk Aveley, Ockendon and Purfleet
) \ A& ""'Ur“:;'-J = - -- @ff
. & L O o - V.

A : B
g /l'_' Aainham Lodge |
church : Fml
Jtry - Fark

(7 pl:
- ‘.\V

7

N

\‘u:i“\~ Gacs

L CountryfPark
L S G

@ FPrimary Schools

E Primary School Areas

7 T e
) S eV Ay

W
\ Ciaf PitH
South B, The Riount
' Ockendon _*:* 27
all| . O
LHele=s

L ==
fZS()LIAth L
Ocke r‘l(’ij’{)n

‘_"qf‘jﬁ‘

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457

Scale 1:55,000

12
Page 128




Aveley, Ockendon & Purfleet

N.B. Published Admission Number (PAN)

Aveley, Ockendon & Purfleet WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN
Aveley 420
Benyon 210
Bonnygate 420
Dilkes 420
Holy Cross 315
Kenningtons 420
Purfleet 630 485 507 528 552 555
Shaw 420 400 401 395 396 392
Somers Heath 420 248 251 249 254 248
In Year Admissions 231 241 245 248 249
3,675 3,538 680 8 04 80
Aveley, Ockendon & Purfleet RECEPTION FORECAST
School PAN
Aveley 60
Benyon 30
Bonnygate 60
Dilkes 60
Holy Cross 45
Kenningtons 60
Purfleet 90
Shaw 60
Somers Heath 60
In Year Admissions
525 3 6 6

The above forecasts include the child yield from proposed developments at: Aveley
Football Ground, Mill Road, Former Ford Factory, Arisdale Avenue, Green Plus Ltd -
Arisdale Avenue and Aveley Village Extension south of B1335.

Holy Cross will reduce its PAN to 210 from September 2017, Somersheath school
will increase by 210 places becoming a 2FE school in September 2016.

13
Page 129



(& thurrock.gov.uk UNCLASSIFIED - Grays

S R

@ Primary Schools

D Primary School Areas
Mami rf =3 | N

P

Scale 1:60,000

14
Page 130



Grays

Grays WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN Sep-20
Belmont Castle 630
Deneholm 420
Harris Chafford Hundred 630
Harris Mayflower 1,050
Little Thurrock 630
Quarry Hill 420
St Thomas' 630
Stifford Clays 630
Thameside 840
Tudor Court 840
Warren 420
West Thurrock 420
In Year Admissions
7,560

Grays

School PAN
Belmont Castle 90
Deneholm 60
Harris Chafford Hundred 90
Harris Mayflower 150
Little Thurrock 90
Quarry Hill 60
St Thomas' 90
Stifford Clays 90
Thameside 120
Tudor Court 120
Warren 60
West Thurrock 60
In Year Admissions

Tl 1121 | 1,152 1,096 1,099

The above forecasts include child yield from proposed developments at:
Land Part of Little Thurrock Marshes, Thurrock Park Way Tilbury Essex, Bannatyne's

Health Club, Howard Road, Chafford Hundred, Former Factory Units, Schoolfield
Road, and Land South of West Thurrock Way Lakeside.

Harris Mayflower will increase to a 5FE school from September 2016. They have
been filling up from reception upwards since September 2014. Their intake for
September 2014 and September 2015 has been 90 reception places in each of

these years.

Thameside will increase to a 4FE school in September 2016.

15
Page 131



ZsT obed

UNCLASSIFIED - Tilbury

Cruise
O
=\ Terminal
1

e R

S ——
Ferry P,

L DAN/CCOCDNIT

@ Primary Schools

[ primary schooi Areas

o Barrow 0 4 B, reemy

Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457

Scale

1:55,000

16




Tilbury

Tilbury WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17

Chadwell St Mary 210 227 231

East Tilbury 630 597 577 565

Gateway 420 420 419 420

Herringham 420 413 411 407 404 402

Lansdowne 630 613 622 619 616 615

St Mary's 210 216 PAK]

Tilbury Pioneer 420 349 347

Woodside 630 553 566 613 638 640

In Year Admissions 241 240

3,570 3,606 3,663 3,700 3,687 3,673
Tilbury RECEPTION FORECAST
School PAN

Chadwell St Mary 30

East Tilbury 90

Gateway 60

Herringham 60

Lansdowne 90

St Mary's 30

Tilbury Pioneer 90

Woodside 90 93 108 94 92

In Year Admissions 35 33 34 34 34
540 538 500 534 516 523

The above forecasts include child yield from proposed developments at:
Former St Chads School, St Chads Road.

Woodside Academy will increase to a 3FE school in September.

17
Page 133




Q,? thurrock gov uk UNCLASSIFIED - Corringham and Stanford Le Hope

g : =T i sy S ) T Lioat il oo 3
kL) - " i ] =il Bowers Hal

-

Bowvers Msrshés

\ 1
32r Hall

"I Rural Areas

orring
'F:‘i L
r#:Corring i

Groa: Pon

"Stanford Le Hope

ij:ﬁ_i‘n g ha m ? n d & 3 % .Cx’F:" ~aven \

1 N
| Lotthall
Fm

Gotfincwaod! |
Fm !

@ Primary Schools

[ primary school Areas

: 3 e

Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457 Scale 1:65,000




Corringham and Stanford Le Hope

Corringham & Stanford le Hope WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20

Abbots Hall 210 209 201 197 194 190

Arthur Bugler 420 409 399 409 406 404

Corringham 420 409 401 402 402 399

Giffards 420 405 399

Graham James 420 320

St Joseph's 210

Stanford-le-Hope 420 344

In Year Admissions 169 170 168 161 155
2,520 2,584 \ 2,594 2,562 2,461 2,408

Corringham & Stanford le Hope RECEPTION FORECAST

School PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20

Abbots Hall 30 28 23 26 27 26

Arthur Bugler 60 50 51 70 58 57

Corringham 60 50 50 66 60 57

Giffards 60 60 49 53 55 54

Graham James 60 34 37 36 42 37

St Joseph's 30 30 30 30 30 30

Stanford-le-Hope 60 46 44 58 49 49

In Year Admissions 21 20 24 22 19
360 319 304 363 343 329

The above forecasts include child yield from proposed developments at:
Land Adjacent A13 Railway Line And Southend Road, Land Adjacent To The

Railway Line, Manorway & West of Victoria Street.

19
Page 135



o¢T abed

UNCLASSIFIED - Rural Areas

Qp thurrock.gov.uk

B ZREl = Hall

——)

T

le House
Frn

Tillingha'n
Hall

Neke Hef
8 Frr

<. Horndon On The

S ¢

TLB,Q.-KGra_yrs

Hill CE

@ Primary Schools

E Primary School Areas

| ( )

e 7

Crown copyright and

database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457

Scale 1:65,000




Rural Area

Rural WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN
Bulphan 84
Horndon-on-the-Hill 210
Orsett 210 221
In Year Admissions 32 32
504 556 495 485
Rural RECEPTION FORECAST
School PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20
Bulphan 12 12 12 12 12 12
Horndon-on-the-Hill 30 27 27
Orsett 30 25 23
In Year Admissions 4 4
72 68 66

The above forecasts include child yield from proposed developments at:
Tylands Farm, South Hill, Langdon Hills and Land Adjacent to Thatched Cottage Baker
Street.

The live birth data for this planning area indicates that there will be a small shortfall in
Reception places in September 2016. It is expected that any excess demand will be
met in other planning areas.

Primary Forecast Summary

The pressure in the primary phase is being managed and will continue to be regularly
monitored closely. The inward migration experienced in recent years appears to have
had a more significant impact on primary places than secondary places. This may be
because we have had surplus places in our secondary schools which could absorb the
newcomers or it may be that the families arriving in Thurrock have younger children.

The ONS 2011 census data demonstrates that Thurrock has a significant population
under 19 years. The largest percentage of the adult population is of child bearing age
and therefore it is unlikely that the demand for school places will reduce in the near
future.

The Council will continue to monitor the impact of inward migration in order to respond
to changing circumstances.

Future additional places will almost certainly be required across the Local Authority.

21
Page 137



SECONDARY FORECASTS

Whole school forecasts for each secondary planning area has been calculated using
formulae to calculate transition rate from year 6 to year 7 and the current numbers on
roll in schools on the census data from October 2015 and by also adding the pupil yield
from any developments. An additional element has been added in to allow for in-year
admissions.

22
Page 138



A

UNCLASSIFIED - West

\ i
v& Home _4

Fm jt

2

A )

& ) Rainham Lodgs |
UOFmi,

drachurch
i

North
= _ISHff(‘)I d

o

Secondary Schools

E Secondary School Areas
- T T o

X

23
Page 139



West Planning Area

West Planning Area

WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST

School

PAN

Sep-16

Sep-17

Sep-18

Sep-19

Sep-20

Ormiston Park Academy

900

491

531

545

540

556

The Ockendon Academy 990 1,196 1,249 1,287
In Year Admissions 109 114 121
1,890 1,694 1,781 1,862 1,914 1,972
West Planning Area YEAR 7 FORECAST
School PAN | Sep-16 Sep-17 Sep-18 Sep-19 Sep-20
Ormiston Park Academy 180 138 142 132 115 118

The Ockendon Academy

In Year Admissions

The above forecasts include child yield from developments including those proposed
at: Former Factory Units, Schoolfield Road, Land South of West Thurrock Way
Lakeside, Aveley Football Ground, Mill Road and Aveley Village Extension south of

B1335.

The Year 7 forecast for The Ockendon Academy indicates that there are more
potential applicants in the catchment area than the school’'s Planned Admission
Number can accommodate. However, there will be places available at Ormiston
Park Academy to meet the need for Year 7 places in this planning area in September

2015 and beyond.

24
Page 140




thurrock.gov.uk UNCLASSIFIED - Central

™= -

R

@ Secondary Schools

D Secondary School Areas

WA\ (17
Jir:

A

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457 Scale 1:85,000

25
Page 141



Central Planning Area

Central Planning Area

WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST

School PAN | Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20
Grays Convent 620 531 536 582 614
Harris Academy Chafford Hundred 900
The Gateway Academy 1,020

The Hathaway Academy

900 946

William Edwards

1,210 1,221 1,232 1,254 1,270 1,308

In Year Admissions

4,650 4,753 4,875 5,103 5,269 5,428

Central Planning Area

YEAR 7 FORECAST

School

PAN

Grays Convent

124

Harris Academy Chafford Hundred

180

The Gateway Academy

210

The Hathaway Academy

180

William Edwards

250

In Year Admissions

944

The forecasts above include child yield from proposed developments including those
at: Bannatyne's Health Club, Howard Road, Chafford Hundred, Star Industrial
Estate, Linford Road, Chadwell St Mary, South East Essex College, Wood View
Grays, Grays Gas Holder Site, Land Part of Little Thurrock Marshes, Thurrock Park
Way Tilbury Essex, Little Malgraves Farm, Lower Dunton Road, Bulphan.

William Edwards have increased their intake by 10 pupils for September 2016.

Harris Academy Trust continues to pursue a site for a new secondary school with the
intention of opening in September 2017.

26
Page 142



Qj thurrock gov uk UNCLASSIFIED - East

% " koo

Ful e gy s 1

GableHall .

=By

L 4

Cerrifgna

ook

Elvih Sunds

Cozing Matshas

@ Secondary Schools

D Secondary School Areas

T

Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457 Scale 1:100,000

27



East Planning Area

East Planning Area WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School
Gable Hall
Hassenbrook Academy
St Clere's
In Year Admissions
3,144 3,264 3,420 3,514 3,620
East Planning Area YEAR 7 FORECAST
School
Gable Hall
Hassenbrook Academy
St Clere's
In Year Admissions

The forecast for the East Planning Area include child yield from developments at:
Land Adjacent A13 Railway Line And Southend Road, Land Adjacent to the Railway
Line, Manorway & West of Victoria Street, Bata Land Adj. Bata Avenue, East Tilbury
and Land at St Cleres Golf Club.

Secondary Forecast Summary

The demand for secondary places is increasing and will continue to do so over the
next few years. Thurrock Council are detailed discussion with the DfE on how this
shortfall of places can be met. There will be further discussion held with secondary
schools and academies over the forthcoming months. Sufficient places will be
available for September 2016 intake.

28
Page 144



AUTHORITY WIDE ISSUES

The main factor for pupil increases in both the primary and secondary phases are
the in-year admissions. The table below details the increases of in-year admissions
outside the normal admission rounds.

No. of children requiring a
No. of children requiring a primary school place outside of
primary school place outside | the normal admission round
Academic | of the normal admission who arrived in Thurrock from Total
Year round who arrived in Thurrock | elsewhere in the UK.
from abroad. “In Year
Admissions”
“In Year Admissions”
2012/13 181 455 636
2013/14 189 585 774
2014/15 242 698 940
2015/16* 136 432 568
* NB 2015/16 figures for months only.

The figure for “In Year” applications from families arriving in the Authority for the
2015/16 academic year shown above was accurate in January 2016. However, it is
possible that the final figure may surpass that for 2014/15.

Planning for the children arriving in Thurrock is difficult as we do not know who they
are, how old they are, and therefore, which year groups they will apply for until they
make contact with School Admissions. Some may require Reception and Year 7
places, but many will require places in other year groups. This introduces the
potential of bulge classes in year groups other than Reception and Year 7 as we
have experienced this year.

With the unpredictable demand for places from outside of Thurrock and additional
element of pupil places has been added to each planning area within the Authority.

29
Page 145



ANNEX 1: PUPIL PLACE FORECASTING METHODOLOGY

The statutory obligation for all Local Authorities is to provide sufficient school places.
Thurrock Council regularly reviews all data, trends and builds a robust analysis of
pupil planning to ensure a place for all pupils that live in Thurrock either at normal
admission rounds or the unforeseen “in-year” admissions.

The unprecedented levels currently experienced for in-year admissions has put
pressure on school places but with the excellent relationships we have with our
schools and academies, Thurrock Council has been able to meet these pressures.

Primary Forecasts

Thurrock Council uses live birth data provided by the health service which forms the
basis of calculating the place requirements four years later. This data contains post
codes where the child lives which are then allocated to a school in that area to
calculate places required in that schools planning area.

Whole school forecasts are based on pupil census data, this provides actual pupil
numbers in each year group. The number of children calculated from any building
development is added to this to then calculate the number of school places required.
An element of additional places is then added to cater for in-year admissions.

The building developments that are taken into consideration in this edition of the
PPP document are listed under each planning area.

There is a project team made up of officers from various departments in the authority
that play a part in PPP that meet up every two weeks to review forecasts and any
emerging issues. This allows the Authority to be proactive in taking any necessary
action to meet growing pressures for school places.

Secondary Forecasts

With the high level of primary school places we have we know that these will feed
through to our secondary schools. When calculating year 7 forecasts we use
existing primary numbers. Trend data shows us that we have an average transfer
rate of 92%, meaning 8% of our children go elsewhere, usually to neighbouring
Authorities. Thurrock has no secondary provision for Catholic boys who tend to move
out of the area to attend secondary school.

The Year 7 forecasts in this document were arrived at by examining the conversion
rate from Year 6 to Year 7 for the last three years. This is the number of Thurrock
Year 6 children who went on to become Year 7 students.

Having established the predicted number of Year 7 students for each school, we
then addressed the child yield from housing development.

30
Page 146



We know the predicted number of children in each area that are likely to arise from
developments but we cannot know how old they will be or which year group they will
require. We therefore assume that some of the children generated by new
developments will require primary places and some secondary places.

A number of places are therefore added to the whole school predictions for both
primary and secondary at the schools in the areas where the development is due to
take place. If a major development falls between two or more schools the child yield
is divided between the schools.

Migration

In recent years Thurrock has experienced an increase in the number of children
applying for a school place “In Year”. These arrivals during the academic year are
difficult to manage as we do not know how many of each age group will arrive. The
extent of inward migration in recent years indicates that 6% of school places are
required in the primary phase to ensure that the new arrivals can be accommodated.
It is not clear if the same extent of provision is required in the secondary sector.

The forecasts are not constrained by the physical accommodation available in the
schools in the planning area and therefore indicate where pressure on places is
likely to arise.

Pupil Migration

Thurrock is a net exporter of pupils. The numbers both in and out of the Local
Authority for receptions and year 7 are listed below. The percentages listed are
comparing these numbers against September 2015 actual numbers for reception &
Year 7.

These numbers just relate to the normal admission round.

Primary

8 children are expected to come in to the LA +0.33% by September 2016
62 children expected to go outside of the LA -2.6% by September 2016
Secondary

62 children are expected to come in to the LA +3.3% by September 2016

299 children are expected to go outside of the LA - 5.82% by September 2016

31
Page 147



ANNEX 2: SPECIAL AND ADDITIONAL NEEDS

In September 2014 Education, Health and Care Plans were introduced for children
and young people aged 0 — 25. This is a new way of working to allow the
identification of children and young people’s needs, bringing together Education,
Health and Social Care support into one plan. It is based on a more family focused
approach with a stress on the individual goals for children, improving their
opportunities for education and employment.

For children who currently have a statement of special educational needs, their
statement and support will remain in place until it is converted to an Education,
Health and Care Plan. The Local Authority has until April 2018 to convert all
statements to EHCPS. The SEN service will work with families to transfer the
statement according to the Transition Plan which can be found on the website.

Further information on the new Education, Health and Care Plans can be obtained
from the Council’s website www.askthurrock.org.uk/kb5/thurrock.

Provision

The Council has two schools for children who have special needs and are unable to
achieve their potential in a mainstream setting.

School Status Needs Met Age Range | Number of
Places
Beacon Hill Academy Severe and profound learning 3to019 72
Academy difficulties
Treetops School Moderate learning difficulties 3to019 276
and Autism

Beacon Hill Post 16 Unit caters for students with severe and profound and multiple
learning difficulties from 16 to 19. The Unit is located on the site of Treetops School
in Grays. Students follow a personalised, accredited curriculum which promotes
independence and transition to lifelong learning in the community.

Treetops is a day special school for pupils between the ages of 3 and 19. The
school caters for children and young people with moderate learning difficulties and
autism. The school is located in Grays and is an Authority maintained school.

32
Page 148




In addition there are a number of mainstream schools with specialist provision in the

Primary Sector:

School Type of Provision Age Range Number of Places

Warren Primary Resource base for pupils with | 4-11 14

hearing impairment
Stanford Le Hope Resource base for pupils with | 4-11 5
Primary Academy visual impairment
Corringham Primary Resource base for pupils with | 4-11 20
Academy speech and language

difficulties
Harris Primary ICAN resource base for Nursery age 5FTE
Academy children with speech,

language and communication

needs
Dilkes Primary Resource base for pupils with | 4-11 10
Academy behavioural, emotional and

social difficulties
Lansdowne Primary Resource base for pupils with | 4-11 12
Academy social

communication/moderate

learning difficulties

Secondary phase schools with specialist provision are:

School Type of Provision Age Range Number of Places
Ormiston Park ASCEND unit (BESD) 11-19 15
Academy
Harris Academy Resource Base for 11-19 20
Chafford Hundred pupils with speech,
language and
communication
impairment

St Clere’s School Resource Base for 11-19 6 in VI Unit
pupils with visual and 11 in HI
hearing impairment.

Support is offered to students with special needs post 16 years at Palmers Sixth
Form College and South Essex College.

33
Page 149




ANNEX 3: PROVISION FOR PUPILS OUT OF SCHOOL

The Olive Academy provides a broad curriculum to a diverse group of young people
across three sites: The Phoenix Primary Centre, the Culver Secondary Centre, the
Tuition Centre based at the Culver site and the Assessment Centre.

The service provides education for children and young people who have experienced
difficulty learning for a variety of reasons. Each of our sites caters specifically for the
identified needs of individual students aged between 5 years and 16 years.

The Academy also provides support to students in mainstream schools who
experience difficulties and are at risk of exclusion.

Admission to the service is by referral only. All referrals are made via the Council’s
Access and Inclusion Officer. The service is currently supporting 119 students.

Further information on the Olive Academy can be obtained from the Council’s
website.

34
Page 150



ANNEX 4: POST 16 PROVISION

The 2008 Education Act raised the age of participation for young people in England.
Those born on or after 1% September 1997 must remain in some form of education
or training until their 18" birthday. This may be:

e full time education at school or college,

e an apprenticeship or traineeship,

e part time education or training as well as being employed, self-employed or
volunteering for 20 hours per week or more.

Thurrock Council works in partnership with schools and colleges and other providers
to plan provision for post 16 education and training. Young people can pursue a wide
range of both academic and vocational courses in a range of settings.

Four secondary schools in Thurrock currently offer post 16 education; Gable Hall,
Hassenbrook and St Clere’s schools form the Stanford and Corringham 6™ Form
consortium and between them provide a range of academic and vocational courses.

The Ockendon Academy Studio School and 6" form is a 14 to 19 school offering a
range of academic qualifications in addition to work based training. Applications for
work based training places in the Studio School should be made via the Council’s
school admissions team. There are currently 35 places in the Studio School and this
number will increase in future.

The table below provides the number of students in Thurrock school 6™ forms at
October 2015. Stanford and Corringham 6" Form Gable Hall, Hassenbrook and St
Clere’s consortium.

Gov School 12 13 14 Post-16 Total
CA Gable Hall 75 116 191
VA Grays Convent
Harris Academy Chafford
CA Hundred 171 119 290
CA Hassenbrook Academy
CA Ormiston Park Academy 17 26 13 56

CA St Clere's

CA The Gateway Academy

CA The Hathaway Academy

CA The Ockendon Academy 68 30 98

CA William Edwards School

TOTALS 331 291 13 635

35
Page 151



Palmers College in Grays is a 6™ form college and offers a range of A level, BTEC
and secretarial courses to over 2000 students. Find out more about the courses on
offer on the college website www.palmers.ac.uk

The recently opened South Essex College of Further and Higher Education in Grays
offers a wide range of training opportunities which lead to accredited qualifications.
Young people can study anything from bricklaying to costume design.

Full details on the opportunities available to Post 16 students can be found on the
UCAS Progress website www.ucas.com.

36
Page 152



€GT abed

ANNEX 5: MAP PRIMARY PHASE PLANNING AREAS

UNCLASSIFIED - Thurrock: Primary Phase Planning Areas

(> thurrock.gov.uk

§-Aveley,lockendon A

and I?ur:'f‘l‘e

S R St - =i & o . o

D Primary School Areas

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457

Scale 1:125,000

37




vGT obed

ANNEX 6: MAP SECONDARY PHASE PLANNING AREAS

UNCLASSIFIED - Thurrock: Secondary Phase Planning Areas

{33 thurrock.gov.uk

E Secondary School Areas

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457

Scale 1:125,000

38




@ thu rrOCk gOV u k UNCLASSIFIED - Thurrock: Secondary Phase Planning Areas

D Secondary School Areas
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100025457 Scale 1:125,000

39



ANNEX 7: PRIMARY FORECAST WHOLE SCHOOL

Aveley, Ockendon & Purfleet WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN
Aveley 420
Benyon 210
Bonnygate 420
Dilkes 420
Holy Cross 315
Kenningtons 420
Purfleet 630
Shaw 420
Somers Heath 420
In Year Admissions
3,675 3,538 680 8 oV 80
Grays WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN
Belmont Castle 630
Deneholm 420
Harris Chafford Hundred 630
Harris Mayflower 1,050
Little Thurrock 630
Quarry Hill 420
St Thomas' 630
Stifford Clays 630
Thameside 840
Tudor Court 840
Warren 420
West Thurrock 420
In Year Admissions
7,560 7,617 7591 7,630
Tilbury
School PAN
Chadwell St Mary 210
East Tilbury 630
Gateway 420
Herringham 420
Lansdowne 630
St Mary's 210
Tilbury Pioneer 420
Woodside 630
In Year Admissions

3,570 3,606 3,663 3,700 3,687 3,673

40
Page 156



PRIMARY FORECAST WHOLE SCHOOL CONTINUED

Corringham & Stanford le Hope WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20
Abbots Hall 210 209 201 197 194 190
Arthur Bugler 420 409 399 409 406 404
Corringham 420 409 401 402 402 399
Giffards 420 405 399
Graham James 420 320
St Joseph's 210
Stanford-le-Hope 420 344
In Year Admissions 169 170 168 161 155
2,520 2,584 2,594 2,562 2,461 2,408
Rural WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST
School PAN Sep-16 Sep-18 | Sep-19
Bulphan 84
Horndon-on-the-Hill 210
Orsett 210
In Year Admissions
504

41
Page 157




ANNEX 8: PRIMARY FORECAST RECEPTION

Aveley, Ockendon & Purfleet RECEPTION FORECAST
School PAN
Aveley 60
Benyon 30
Bonnygate 60
Dilkes 60
Holy Cross 45
Kenningtons 60
Purfleet 90
Shaw 60
Somers Heath 60
In Year Admissions
525 3 6 6
Grays RECEPTION FORECAST
School PAN Sep-17
Belmont Castle 90 90
Deneholm 60
Harris Chafford Hundred 90
Harris Mayflower 150
Little Thurrock 90
Quarry Hill 60
St Thomas' 90
Stifford Clays 90
Thameside 120
Tudor Court 120
Warren 60
West Thurrock 60
In Year Admissions
1080
Tilbury
School PAN
Chadwell St Mary 30
East Tilbury 90
Gateway 60
Herringham 60
Lansdowne 90
St Mary's 30
Tilbury Pioneer 90
Woodside 90 93 108 94 92
In Year Admissions 35 33 34 34 34
540 538 500 534 516 523

42
Page 158




PRIMARY FORECAST RECEPTION CONTINUED

Corringham & Stanford le Hope RECEPTION FORECAST

School PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20
Abbots Hall 30 28 23 26 27 26
Arthur Bugler 60 50 51 70 58 57
Corringham 60 50 50 66 60 57
Giffards 60 60 49 53 55 54
Graham James 60 34 37 36 42 37
St Joseph's 30 30 30 30 30 30
Stanford-le-Hope 60 46 44 58 49 49
In Year Admissions 21 20 24 22 19

360 319 304 363 343 329

Rural RECEPTION FORECAST

School PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20
Bulphan 12 12 12 12 12 12
Horndon-on-the-Hill 30 27 27
Orsett 30 25 23
In Year Admissions 4 4

72 68 66

TOTALS PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20
PRIMARY NUMBERS 17,829 | 16,539 | 16,899 | 16,885 | 16,849 | 16,828
In Year Admissions 1,157 1,184 1,181 1,179 1,169

17,829 17,696 3,08 3,066 8,028 09

43
Page 159




ANNEX 9: SECONDARY FORECAST WHOLE SCHOOL

West Planning Area

WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST

School

PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19 | Sep-20

Ormiston Park Academy

900 491 531 545 540 556

The Ockendon Academy

990 1,196 1,249 1,287

In Year Admissions

109 114 121

1,890 1,694 1,781 1,862 1,914 1,972

Central Planning Area

WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST

School

PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17 | Sep-18 | Sep-19

Grays Convent

620 531 536 582 614

Harris Academy Chafford Hundred 900
The Gateway Academy 1,020
The Hathaway Academy 900 946
William Edwards 1,210 1,221 1,232 1,254 1,270 1,308
In Year Admissions
4,650 BNEE 4,875 5,103 5,269 5,428

East Planning Area WHOLE SCHOOL FORECAST

School PAN
Gable Hall 1,270 1,328 1,386 1,443 1,460 1,504
Hassenbrook Academy 550 587 605
St Clere's 1,065 1,138 1,177 1,221 1,237 1,274

In Year Admissions

2,885 3,144 3,264 3,420 3,514 3,620

44
Page 160



ANNEX 10: SECONDARY FORECAST YEAR 7

West Planning Area

YEAR 7 FORECAST

School

PAN

Sep-17

Sep-18

Sep-19

Ormiston Park Academy

180

142

132

The Ockendon Academy

In Year Admissions

Central Planning Area

115

School

Grays Convent

Harris Academy Chafford Hundred

The Gateway Academy

The Hathaway Academy

William Edwards

In Year Admissions

East Planning Area

School
Gable Hall
Hassenbrook Academy
St Clere's

In Year Admissions

TOTALS PAN Sep-16 | Sep-17
SECONDARY NUMBERS 9,425 8,970 9,280 9,711
In Year Admissions

9,425 10,385

45
Page 161

9,997 10,299

10,697 11,020



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

13 October 2016 ITEM: 9

Children’s Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Council Spending Review Update

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All Key

Report of: Sean Clark, Director of Finance and IT

Accountable Head of Service: Sean Clark, Director of Finance and IT

Accountable Director: Sean Clark, Director of Finance and IT

This report is public

Executive Summary

This report summarises the main changes to the MTFS for the period 2017/18
through to 2019/20 and the governance structure for the Council Spending Review
and Transformation Programme, including the budget planning table enabling
agreement of the budget in February 2017.

This report specifically updates the committee on the proposals currently being
considered that will affect Children’s Services budgets.

1 Recommendations

1.1 That Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the revised
MTFS position, and the Council Spending Review approach and
timetable.

1.2  That Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee comment on the
proposals currently being considered within the remit of this committee.

2 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

21  The MTFS presented to Council in February 2016 shows the budget gap over
the 3 years 2017/18 to 2019/20 as £18.443m. This already assumes delivery
of £2.534m savings previously agreed for 2017/18 (see Appendix 1) and
assumes a Council Tax increase of 3.99% in each year.

2.2  As part of the ongoing budget planning process, the MTFS has been updated
to reflect latest assumptions. The table below sets out the movements from
the previous position and revised budget gap.

Page 163



2.3

2.4

2.5

3
3.1

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total
February 2016 7.378 6.098 4.967 18.443
Business Rates 0.399 0.663 (0.463) 0.599
Inflation (0.285) (0.071) (0.071) (0.427)
Capital Financing - (0.042) 0.591 0.549
Government Grant - - 1.785 1.785
Revised Budget Gap 7.492 6.648 6.809 20.949

The key movements include:

The position for 2017/18 and 2018/19 reflects a reduction in the provision for
inflation but, adversely, also the possible impact of a significant category of
business rate appeals that have been lodged;

The majority of the increase is expected in 2019/20 and is largely as a result
of further analysis on the four year funding settlement. It is prudent, at this
stage, to reduce down the level of grant and business rate support in light of
discussions on the removal or reduction of New Homes Bonus and further
comments on grant levels; and

The increase in Capital Financing reflects the likely interest rate increases
towards the end of the MTFS period. This increased cost has been offset with
significant savings in 2016/17 and smaller reductions over the following two
years as a result of pushing back the impact in light of current economic
forecasts.

One off funding has been identified to meet the costs of a Clean It, Cut It, Fill
It pilot. The results of this pilot will be used to determine whether growth is
required in the budget for a permanent increase to the Environment and Place
budgets and this will be reported once known.

The position above includes the assumption of a 3.99% increase in council tax
each year — 1.99% general increase and 2% adult social care precept. The
table below sets out how any reductions to this assumption will increase the
deficits set out in paragraph 2.2:

An increase of: Increases the budget gap by (Em)
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total
3.99% 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
3.00% 0.570 0.585 0.605 1.760
2.00% 1.140 1.170 1.210 3.520
1.00% 1.710 1.755 1.815 5.280
0.00% 2.280 2.340 2.420 7.040

Council Spending Review Process and Timetable

Given the level of saving previously delivered across the council, the
pressures identified in 2016/17 and that there are minimal reserves to call

Page 164



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

upon, it is essential that there is a clear strategy to close the budget gap set
out in the MTFS. As a result, the focus will be on 3 key areas:

e Income generation — including increasing the Council’'s commercial
trading base. Council Tax increases also fall under this category;

e Achieving more / same for less — including further transformational
projects, contract reviews, spend to save initiatives and alternative
delivery models; and

e Demand management / early intervention. Examples include the Local
Area Co-ordinators and Community Hubs.

However, where the budget gap cannot be fully closed through the above, the
likely solution will be reductions to, or full cessation of, service provision.

Crossing through all of these areas is the need to adapt our workforce and
change our culture to be an organisation which is more entrepreneurial,
digitally-minded and commercially-aware.

The Council Spending Review will be underpinned by the following principles.

e Becoming financially self-sustainable;

e Atarget of 15-20% efficiencies in each service;

e A review of all services by March 2019 using common design principles
(customer / demand management, commercial, ICT / digital, people,
procurement, property and process);

¢ Non-statutory income generating services should be cost neutral; and

e Outcome focused including consideration of prevention and early
intervention.

There has been some discussion that the Service Review is a top slice
approach. It is important to note that the intention of these reviews is more a
focus on making the use of financial, physical and people assets more
efficient through challenging service delivery on the principles set out above.

The transformation framework for achieving this is set out in the governance
structure in Appendix 2. The officer Transformation Board will oversee a
number of Strategic Boards each with a specific focus and cross cutting
membership. Each Strategic Board will be sponsored by a member of
Directors Board and guided by the principles outlined above and strategic
policy direction set by Members. The governance structure also includes the
cross-party Council Spending Review Panel.

The timing of these reviews is set out at Appendix 3.

Page 165



3.8

3.9

3.9.1
3.9.2

3.10

4.2

Growth Performance
Customer Service & Demand Management Commercial
ICT / Digital People
Procurement Property

Service Review

The Council Spending Review timetable has been prepared to achieve
agreement of the budget by Cabinet and Council in February 2017. The main
milestones are summarised below:

e July/August 2016 — Officer boards identify proposals and estimated
savings for consultation with Cabinet Members;

e 7th September 2016 — Cabinet consider Q1 budget update including
budget planning timetable and governance;

e September 2016 — Council Spending Review Panel (cross-party with
Group Leaders and Deputies) consider savings options ahead of
consultation;

e October/November 2016 — O&Ss consider proposals and public
consultation where required;

e January 2017 — Cabinet agree proposals for implementation informed by
O&S recommendations and draft budget referred to Corporate O&S; and

e February 2017 — Cabinet and Council budget setting.

At this stage, the £7.492m budget gap for 2017/18, set out in paragraph 2.2,
has been reduced to circa £0.9m though this rises to £1.3m when the
contribution to increase the general fund balance is added. This assumes:

A 3.99% council tax increase; and

No further investment in other services, including investment in Environmental
Services.

Officers continue to work towards closing the remaining balance and
identifying additional funds for further investment in services.

Children’s Services

The biggest impact on Children’s Services will come from the review carried
out by IMPOWER and the recommendations from that review currently being
implemented.

IMPOWER was commissioned by the Council to review the provision of
children's social care in terms of demand and costs. The department was
experiencing high rates of referrals, children with a child protection plans, and
children in care with associated increases in costs. Over three months from
May 2016, the team undertook a detailed analysis of the service to identify

Page 166



areas of opportunity for managing demand more effectively and then develop
an implementation programme.

4.3 In the initial phase, the review identified opportunities to:
e improve productivity in the system;
e reduce needs of children before they reach social care; and
e reduce costs in social care.

4.4 The review identified that the children’s social care system is suffering from a
high level of demand, a significant proportion of which is avoidable. This
leads to:

e too many unnecessary assessments which lead to no further action,

¢ high levels of spending on placements (with too many out of authority
independent foster carers),

e too many agency staff to cover higher levels of work (assessments and
caseloads), and ultimately,

e too many children in care when, with more targeted and effective early
intervention, family breakdown could have been prevented.

4.5 To tackle these challenges, a programme of change is required. The review
grouped this work into five projects to reduce avoidable demand and costs
across the children’s social care system:

Opportunity Description Impact on costs

area

1 Getting Ensure the right demand is Reduce demand to
partners to entering the system by working the front door,
step up with partners remove unnecessary

assessments

2 Making Develop the prevention and Reduce demand for
prevention early intervention offer to statutory  services,
work prevent higher levels of need in fewer children

the future and enable safe step
down of care to the community

needing to be looked
after

3 Social work Enable more active Reduce
where it is interventions to reduce the assessments and
needed level of need in the system and escalation to social

enable step down of care care

4 Creating a Reduce the proportion of Reduce spend on
sustainable agency staff induction and on-
workforce going costs  for

Agency staff

Page 167




Opportunity Description Impact on costs
area
5 Thurrock Increase the ratio of in house Reduce spend on

foster carers
for Thurrock
children

foster care provision to reduce
placement costs

IFA placements, spot
purchasing,  social
worker travel

4.6

4.7

4.8
4.8.1

4.8.2

To tackle these challenges, a programme of change is required. Following
the analysis IMPOWER were commissioned to project manage
implementation of a number of project strands to: manage demand; increase
the number of in-house foster carers; and reduce the level of agency staff. As
the programme is designed to transform the social work operating model and
change the behaviour of partner agencies, it is anticipated that savings will not
be realised until year three (2019 /20) of the programme, although quick wins
will start to dampen demand in the first year of implementation.

The MTFS currently assumes £3.5m per annum for demand led growth.
Whilst not reducing demand the review should lead to a stabilisation of costs
thus reducing the need for the full provision. The working assumption at this
time is to reduce the £3.5m to £1.5m covering both adults’ and children’s
social care.

Other considerations

Previously Agreed Savings — appendix one sets out savings that were agreed
during 2014/15 for delivery within the period of the MTFS. Savings for
Children’s Services include £232k from “Reduce and realign youth provision
across Thurrock and related service through internal reorganisation and
developing the services as a mutual/ outsourced”.

There are a number of cross cutting savings targeted with examples including
the reduction of the council wide spend on agency staff, consultants and
overtime. The impact of these targeted reductions on services is currently
being evaluated.

Reasons for Recommendation

The Council has a statutory requirement to set a balanced budget annually
and to review its adequacy of reserves. The report outlines the budget gap
over the next three years as per the MTFS and the approach and timetable to
manage the position.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

The budget planning governance structure includes involvement and
consultation with Officers, Portfolio Holders and Members. The timetable
allocates October - December for Overview and Scrutiny committees to
consider proposals and public consultation where required. The process also

Page 168




7.1

7.2

8.2

includes the Council Spending Review Panel, made up of cross-party Group
Leaders and Deputies who will meet regularly during the budget planning
period and ahead of key decision points.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

The implementation of previous savings proposals has already reduced
service delivery levels and our ability to meet statutory requirements,
impacting on the community and staff. There is a risk that some agreed
savings may result in increased demand for more costly interventions if needs
escalate particularly in social care. The potential impact on the Council’s
ability to safeguard children and adults will be kept carefully under review and
mitigating actions taken where required.

The scale of future budget reductions as set out in this report are such that
work is underway to follow a transformational approach to tackle the
challenge.

Implications
Financial

Implications verified by: Carl Tomlinson
Finance Manager

The financial implications are set out in the body of this report.

Council officers have a legal responsibility to ensure that the Council can
contain spend within its available resources. Regular budget monitoring
reports will continue to come to Cabinet and be considered by the Directors
Board and management teams in order to maintain effective controls on
expenditure during this period of enhanced risk. Austerity measures in place
are continually reinforced across the Council in order to reduce ancillary
spend and to ensure that everyone is aware of the importance and value of
every pound of the taxpayers money that is spent by the Council.

Legal

Implications verified by: David Lawson
Deputy Head of Law & Governance

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

There are statutory requirements of the Council’'s Section 151 Officer in
relation to setting a balanced budget. The Local Government Finance Act
1988 (Section 114) prescribes that the responsible financial officer “must
make a report if he considers that a decision has been made or is about to be
made involving expenditure which is unlawful or which, if pursued to its

Page 169



conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency to the
authority”. This includes an unbalanced budget.

8.3  Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Becky Price

Community Development and Equalities
There are no specific diversity and equalities implications as part of this
report.
A comprehensive Community and Equality Impact Assessment (CEIA) will be
completed for any specific savings proposals developed to address future
savings requirements and informed by consultation outcomes to feed into final
decision making. The cumulative impact will also be closely monitored and
reported to Members.

8.4  Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder)

Any other significant implications will be identified in any individual savings
proposal business case to inform the consultation process where applicable
and final decision making.

9. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected
by copyright):

e None

10. Appendices to the report
e Appendix 1 —2017/18 Savings Tracker
e Appendix 2 — Council Spending Review Governance Structure
¢ Appendix 3 — Service Review Timetable

Report Author:

Sean Clark

Director of Finance and IT

Page 170



thurrock.gov.uk

T/ 9bed

Appendix 1

Previously Agreed Savings 2017/18

Adults, Housing and Health

Roger Harris External Placements 500
Roger Harris Public health — review of contracts 250
Roger Harris Reduction in Voluntary Sector Core Grants 75
Total 825

Childrens Services

Rory Patterson

Reduce and realign youth provision across Thurrock and related service through
internal reorganisation and developing the services as a mutual/ outsourced service

232

Total

232

Environment & Place

Steve Cox Transportation restructure and highways efficiencies 250
Steve Cox Invest in modern highway maintenance 260
Steve Cox Planning - increased income and/or efficiencies 35
Steve Cox CEDU Restructure - Regeneration 300
Total 845




2/ abed

Legal Services

thurrock.gov.uk

Fiona Taylor

Legal traded service income

Total

Finance & IT

Sean Clark

Further changes to staffing levels and revisions of prudential charges

582

Total

582




Governance Structure for Council Spending Review
and Transformation Programme

Council
(decision

ICT / Digital Board making)

€/ abed

(> thurrock.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Service Review Board: Proposed Projects

The following is an indicative timetable for the Service Review Board

Directorate

Waste

Street & grounds
Specialist grounds
Highway reactive maintenance
Development management
Building control

Strategy & growth
Highways infrastructure
Special projects

Heritage, arts & culture
Libraries

Land charges

Business improvement
Highways & transport
Transport development
Economic development
Regeneration

Housing development/Gloriana
Registrars

Sport & leisure

Corporate property
Public protection

Grants programme review
Care & targeted outcomes
(MPOWER)
Commissioning

Business administration
Children’s Centres

Domiciliary care

Collins House

Fieldwork services

In-house provider services
Careline

Single point of access

Public health

Commissioning

Integration with ASC & peer review

Welfare reform

Investment in HRA stock
Homelessness

Private rented sector

Anti-social behaviour & enforcement

Tenancy &
neighbourhoods

Fraud
Debt collection
Revenues

ICT
Benefits

Corporate Finance
Risk & insurance
Internal Audit

Executive support hub

HR & Payroll

People & OD

Corporate Programme Team
Customer Services

Recruitment

Improvement

GIS

Information Management

Strategy & Communications
Performance, Quality, Business Support

Democratic Services
Member's Services
Electoral Services

Legal Services

Procurement
Commercial

Page 175




This page is intentionally left blank



/1T abed

Dates of Meetings: 6 July 2016, 13 October 2016, 8 December 2016, 1 February 2017

Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Work Programme
2016/17

Topic Lead Officer Requested by Officer/Member
6 July 2016
Ofsted Report and Action Plan Andrew Carter Members
0-19 Wellbeing Model Bath Capp Members
Review of Children Centre Services Andrea Winstone Members
Serious Case Review Update Actions Andrew Carter Members
from Megan
13 October 2016
Educational Attainments Roger Edwardson Members
Children’s Social Care (CSC) Complaints | Anas Matin Members
and Representations Annual Report
2015/16
Final Report on the Ofsted Action Plan Andrew Carter Members
School Capital Programme 2017/18 Janet Clark / Sarah Williams Members
8 December 2016
Review of Children’s Centre Services Roger Edwardson / Andrea Winstone Members
Update on Ofsted Action Plan Andrew Carter Members

Updated: September 2016

0T Wal| epuaby



8/ T abed

Update of Child Exploitation Andrew Carter Members

School Improvement Peer Report Roger Edwardson / Andrea Winstone Members

Anti-Bullying Policy Malcolm Taylor Members

Academic Report for Children Looked Keeley Pullen Members

After

Serious Case Reviews for James and Andrew Carter Members

Harry

Performance Dashboard Andrew Carter / Rory Patterson Members
1 February 2017

Commissioning out of Nurseries in Roger Edwardson Members

Tilbury

The implementation of the increase from | Roger Edwardson Members

15 to 30 hours free childcare from

September 2017

Anti-Bullying Prevention at Primary Malcolm Taylor Members

Schools




	Agenda
	 
	2 Minutes
	5 Educational Attainments
	Appendix 1 - Key Stage 1 Headline Summary 2016
	Appendix 2 - Key Stage 2 Headline Summary 2016

	6 Children's Social Care Complaints and Representations Annual Report 2015/16
	Appendix 1 - Children's Social Care Complaints and Representations Annual Report 2015-16

	7 Ofsted Inspection Report and Action Plan
	Appendix 1 - Single Inspection of LA Children's Services and Review
	Appendix 2 - Local Authority Draft Action Plan

	8 School Capital Programme 2017/18
	Appendix 1 - School Capital Programme 2017/18

	9 Council Spending Review Update
	Appendix 1 - Council Spending Review Update
	Appendix 2 - Council Spending Review Update
	Appendix 3 - Council Spending Review Update

	10 Work Programme



